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NOTICE OF EIGHTEENTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE is hereby given that the Eighteenth Annual General Meeting of the members of One97 Communications
Limited (“the Company”) will be held on Friday, September 28, 2018 at 10 A.M. (IST) at its registered office at
First Floor, Devika Tower, Nehru Place, New Delhi-110019,India to transact the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS
1. To receive, consider and adopt:

(@) the audited financial statement of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2018, the report of the Board
of Director’s and Auditors’ thereon; and

(b) the audited consolidated financial statement of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2018 and the
Auditors’ report thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place Mr. Joseph Chung Tsai (DIN 07788455) who retires by rotation, being eligible
offers himself for reappointment.

3. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Ravi Chandra Adusumalli (DIN 00253613) who retires by rotation and,
being eligible offers himself for reappointment.

4. To consider and approve appointment of M/s. Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP (FRN No.
012754N/N500016), as Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office from the conclusion of this Annual
General Meeting till the conclusion of 23 Annual General Meeting and to fix their remuneration, by
considering and if thought fit, passing, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 139 and 142 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Rules framed thereunder or any amendment thereto or modification thereof and subject to all the applicable
laws and regulations, the appointment of M/s. Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP (FRN No.
012754N/N500016), as Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of 5 (Five) years i.e. from the
conclusion of this Annual General Meeting (AGM) till the conclusion of 23 Annual General Meeting of the
Company, be and is hereby approved on the remuneration including out of pocket expenses (collectively
"Auditors' Remuneration™) as may be recommended by the Audit Committee of the Board, in consultation
with the Statutory Auditors and such Auditors' Remuneration may be paid on a progressive billing basis, in
one or more instalments."

SPECIAL BUSINESS

5. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 149, 161, 150, & 152 of the Companies Act,
2013 & its schedule 1V (as amended or re-enacted from time to time) read with rule no 4 of the Companies
(Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules 2014, Ms. Pallavi Shardul Shroff (DIN 00013580), who
was appointed as Additional Director (Independent and Non-Executive Director) by the Board of Directors
with effect from February 09, 2018 whose term expires at this Annual General Meeting of the Company and



in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing proposing his candidature for the office of
the Director, be and is hereby appointed as an Independent Director for the term of 3 (Three) years i.e. till
February 8, 2021”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, Mr. Vijay Shekhar Sharma, Managing Director, Mr. Vikas Garg, SVP-
Finance, Mr. Madhur Deora, Chief Financial Officer and Mr. Vimal Chawla, Company Secretary of the
Company, be and is hereby severally authorized to give effect to above appointment and make necessary
filing with Registrar of Companies, NCT of Delhi and Haryana and to do all acts, things and deeds incidental
thereto.”

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 161 and other applicable provisions (including
any modification or re-enactment thereof), if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Articles of
Association of the Company,Mr. Kabir Misra (DIN 07654111) who was appointed as an Additional Director
by the Board of Directors with effect from November 07, 2017 whose term expires at this Annual General
Meeting of the company and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing proposing
his candidature for the office of the Director, be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company whose
period of office will be liable to determination by retirement of directors by rotation.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, Mr. Vijay Shekhar Sharma, Managing Director, Mr. Vikas Garg, SVP-
Finance, Mr. Madhur Deora, Chief Financial Officer and Mr. Vimal Chawla, Company Secretary of the
Company, be and is hereby severally authorized to give effect to above appointment and make necessary
filing with Registrar of Companies, NCT of Delhi and Haryana and to do all acts, things and deeds incidental
thereto.”

To approve the remuneration of Mr. Vijay Shekhar Sharma, Managing Director for FY 2018-19

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a Special
Resolution:

RESOLVED THAT in supersession of the earlier resolutions passed, pursuant to the provisions of Section
196 & 197 read with Rule 7 of The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014 and such other applicable rules and subject to Schedule V and other applicable provisions, if
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (as amended or re-enacted from time to time) (hereinafter referred to as
Act), the consent of the members of the Company, be and is hereby accorded to approve the remuneration
to be paid to Mr. Vijay Shekhar Sharma, Managing Director of the Company for the financial year 2018-19,
as recommended by the Board and Nomination and Remuneration Committee at their meetings held on
August 17, 2018, on the terms and conditions mentioned herein below:

1. Remuneration: Rs. 3,00,00,000/- p.a. (including lease rent accommodation) for FY 2018-19
2. Perquisites : Following perquisites to be provided

(@) Two Venhicles.

(b) Fuel Expenses & Toll charges.

(c) Accommodation on Lease.

(d) Expenses related to electricity, water, maintenance etc. of the accommodation provided by the
Company.

(e) Driver’s Salary and Overtime & Night Charges of Drivers to be paid extra, if any.

(F) Vehicle’s Insurance.

(9) Expenses related to Vehicle’s maintenance.

(h) Communication Expenses which includes reimbursements of mobile bill, data card bill, internet bills,



etc.

(i) Reimbursements related to meal expenditure.

() Travel Expenses.

(k) Medical Insurance of Mr. Vijay Shekhar Sharma and his family.

(I) Contribution to Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund or Annuity Fund as per the rules of the
Company. These will not be included in the computation of the ceiling on perquisites or remuneration
to the extent these either singly or put together are not taxable under the Income Tax Act, 1961.
Gratuity shall be payable as per the rules of the Company. Encashment of leave at the end of the tenure
will not be included in the computation of the ceiling on perquisites.

(m) Leave Travel Assistance, as per the rules of the Company; value not exceeding one month’s salary.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT notwithstanding to the above, in the event of any loss or inadequacy of
profits in any financial year of the Company during the tenure of Mr. Vijay Shekhar Sharma as Managing
Director of the Company, the remuneration payable to him shall be in accordance with the limits prescribed
in Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors/Nomination and Remuneration Committee be and
is hereby authorized to fix the remuneration and/or perquisite of Mr. Vijay Shekhar Sharma and revise such
remuneration and/or perquisite from time to time within the maximum limits specified above and to the
extent as permissible under the relevant provisions of law. The Board of Directors/Nomination and
Remuneration Committee be and is hereby further authorized to vary / modify / amend any of the aforesaid
terms and conditions provided such variation / modification / amendment is in conformity with the
applicable provisions of the Act, as amended from time to time and to do all acts, deeds and thing as deems
necessary to give effect to this resolution.”

By Order of the Board of Directors
For One97 Communications Limited

Sd/-
Vimal Chawla
Company Secretary
Membership No. 16746
Place: Noida
Date: September 04, 2018

Regd Off: 1* Floor, Devika Tower
Nehru Place, New Delhi — 110019,India



Notes:

A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO
APPOINT A PROXY, OR WHERE THAT IS ALLOWED, ONE OR MORE PROXIES TO ATTEND
AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF AND SUCH PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER
OF THE COMPANY. PROXY FORM IN ORDER TO BE EFFECTIVE SHOULD BE DULY
STAMPED, SIGNED AND COMPLETED IN ALL RESPECTS MUST BE DEPOSITED AT THE
REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY ATLEAST 48 HOURS BEFORE THE
COMMENCEMENT OF THE MEETING.

A member holding more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights
may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other member.

No person shall be entitled to attend and vote at the meeting as a duly authorized representative of anybody
corporate which is a shareholder of the Company, unless a copy of the resolution appointing him/her a duly
authorized representative, certified to be true copy by the Chairman/Managing Director/Company Secretary,
shall have been deposited at the registered office of the Company before the time fixed for the
commencement of the meeting.

Members are requested to notify the changes of address if any, to the Company quoting their respective folio
nos.

We request and encourage our members to register their email-id for e-communication in the records of their
Depository Participant (in case of electronic holding). The Members who are holding shares in physical
form, they may register their e-mail id by sending an email to compliance@paytm.com with a subject
“Registration of email id.”

An Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, relating to the Special
Business to be transacted at the Annual General Meeting is annexed hereto.

Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding, maintained u/s. 170 of the
Companies Act, 2013 will be available for inspection by the members at the AGM

The Register of Contracts or arrangements in which the Directors are interested, maintained u/s.189 of the
Companies Act, 2013, will be available for inspection by the Members at the AGM.

All documents referred to in the notice and explanatory statement shall be open for inspection at the
corporate office of the company at B-121, Sector 5 Noida, Uttar Pradesh — 201301 on all working days,
between 11.00 a.m. and 5.00 p.m. upto the date of the Meeting. The company has intimated from the
Registrar of Companies to keep books of account at a place other than the registered office of the company.



EXPLANATORY STATEMENT
(Pursuant to section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013)

Item No. 5

The Board of Directors of the Company had appointed Ms. Pallavi Shardul Shroff as an Additional Director
(Independent) with effect from February 09, 2018 to hold office till the conclusion of the ensuing Annual
General Meeting of the Company.

In terms of Section 149 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the resolution seeks the
approval of the members for appointment of Ms. Pallavi Shardul Shroff, as Independent Director for a term of
3 (Three) consecutive years, upto February 08, 2021 and she shall not be liable to retire by rotation.

In the opinion of the Board of Directors, Ms. Pallavi Shardul Shroff, fulfils the conditions specified in the
Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder for appointment as Independent Director of the Company and
she is independent of the management.

The Board considers that her association would be of immense benefit to the Company and it is desirable to
have Ms. Pallavi Shardul Shroff as Independent Director of the Company.

The Company has received a notice in writing for proposing the candidature of Ms. Pallavi Shardul Shroff for
her appointment as Director of the Company in accordance with the provisions of Section 160 and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Except, Ms. Pallavi Shardul Shroff, to whom the resolution relates, none of the Directors and Key Managerial
Personnel of the Company and their relatives is concerned or interested, financially or otherwise in the
resolution.

Item No. 6

Mr. Kabir Misra was appointed as Additional Director of the Company as nominee of Softbank, in terms of
clause 5.2.4 of the Shareholders” Agreement dated May 3, 2017 and subsequent amendments thereto, to hold
office till the conclusion of the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of the Company w.e.f.
November 07, 2017 in accordance with the provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Articles
of Association of the Company.

The Company has received a notice in writing for proposing the candidature of Mr. Kabir Misra for his
appointment as Director of the Company in accordance with the provisions of Section160 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

It is proposed to appoint Mr. Kabir Misra as Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.

Except, Mr. Kabir Misra, to whom the resolution relates, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel
of the Company and their relatives is concerned or interested, financially or otherwise in the resolution.

Iltem No. 7

The Members of the Company, at their previous Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on August 31, 2017,
had appointed Mr. Vijay Shekhar Sharma as Managing Director w.e.f. December 19, 2017 for a period of five
(5) years and also approved the remuneration payable to him for FY 2017-18.

It is recommended by the Board to approve remuneration payable to Mr. Vijay Shekhar Sharma as Managing
Director of the Company for a further period of one year i.e. for FY 2018-19. His remuneration has been
recommended by Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board respectively, at their meetings held



on August 17, 2018.

Pursuant to Section 196, 197 & 203 read with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 7 of
Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014 framed and
all other applicable provision of the Companies Act, 2013, the remuneration payable to Mr. Vijay Shekhar
Sharma is placed before the shareholders for their approval vide special resolution.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives of the Company are, in any way,
concerned or interested in the said resolution, except Mr. Vijay Shekhar Sharma.

DETAILS OF DIRECTORS SEEKING APPOINTMENT/RE-APPOINTMENT AND FIXATION OF
REMUNERATION OF MANAGING DIRECTOR AT FORTHCOMING ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING

Mr. Ravi Chandra Adusumalli

Mr. Ravi Chandra Adusumalli is a Partner with SAIF Partners funds, one of the largest and active funds in the
country across early and growth stage companies. Ravi joined SAIF in 2002. Prior to this, he worked at
Mobius Venture Capital, Credit Suisse, and Wasatch Funds. Ravi graduated from Cornell University with a
B.A. in Economics and Government.

Mr. Joseph Chung Tsai

Mr. Joseph Chung Tsai joined as a member of the Alibaba founding team in 1999 and has served as the
executive vice-chairman since May 2013. He was previously the chief financial officer and has been a member
of the board of directors of Alibaba Group Holding Limited since the formation. Prior to joining the Alibaba
Group, he worked in Hong Kong with Investor AB, the main investment vehicle of Sweden's Wallenberg
family, and has also served as the Vice President and General Counsel of Rosecliff, Inc. He was previously
also an Associate Attorney in the tax group of Sullivan & Cromwell LLP, a New York based international law
firm.

He is qualified to practice law in the State of New York and received his bachelor's degree in Economics and
East Asian Studies from Yale College and a juris doctor degree from Yale Law School.

Mr. Kabir Misra

Mr. Kabir Misra has been with SoftBank since 2006 and is currently a Partner at SoftBank Investment
Advisers. Mr. Misra has managed 4 funds for SoftBank — most recently the SB PrinceVille Fund (which
invested in Fitbit, Zynga, Gilt and Criteo among others). He works closely with SoftBank’s direct investments
and acquisitions and has been closely involved with Alibaba since 2004. In this capacity, Mr. Misra has
worked with investments into uStream (sold to IBM), RenRen, Yahoo Japan (particularly on their Google
deal), Yandex, Twitter and Facebook.

Prior to SoftBank, Mr. Misra worked in technology and M&A investment banking in New York, Menlo Park
and Hong Kong, as well as spending a year in Seoul with Samsung.

Ms. Pallavi Shardul Shroff

Ms. Pallavi S. Shroff is the Managing Partner of Shardul Amarchand Mangaldas with about 37 years of
extensive experience. Her broad and varied representation of public and private corporations and other entities
before various national courts, tribunals and legal institutions has earned her national and international
acclaim. Ms. Shroff is the Head of the Litigation practice at the Firm, with an extensive knowledge in matters
of dispute resolution and arbitration. She also mentors the Competition Law practice at the Firm.



Ms. Shroff has been closely involved with some of the largest and most challenging litigation and arbitration
matters in India with regard to energy, infrastructure, natural resources, mergers & acquisitions, legislative and
policy related matters. She appears regularly in the Supreme Court and High Courts of India, and in
arbitrations, mediations and international legal disputes.

With regard to Competition Law, Ms. Shroff regularly advises international and national clients on various
aspects of the Competition Act 2002. She was a key member of the high-powered SVS Raghavan Committee,
which contributed to formulating the legal framework for the new Competition law and a draft of the new
Competition Act.

Ms. Shroff has always been active in public-policy related work. She was a member of the committee set up
by the Government of India to advise the Government regarding compliance with Article 39.3 of the TRIPS.
She played a pivotal role in formulating and drafting of policy documents necessary for the continuing efforts
to establish India’s first ‘Zero Piracy Zone’ for the state of Karnataka, and for developing an anti-piracy
advocacy programme for the judiciary. Ms. Shroff is presently a director on the boards of prestigious Indian
companies, including Apollo Tyres, Trident Group, One97 Communications Ltd (Paytm), Maruti Suzuki India
Ltd, Juniper Hotels Ltd and Gujarat Alkalies & Chemicals Ltd.

For her legal acumen and thought leadership, Ms. Shroff is frequently featured by several international
publications. She is ranked ‘Band 1’ for Competition Law & Dispute Resolution by Chambers and Partners
2018; ‘Market Leading Lawyer’ by Asialaw Profiles 2018 and ‘Leading Lawyer’ for Dispute Resolution by
Legal 500, 2018 among others. Under Ms. Shroff’s leadership, the Firm has been recognised as one of the
world’s leading International Arbitration Firms in the GAR 100 editions, 2017 & 2018 by Global Arbitration
Review. Ms. Shroff has been recently conferred ‘Lifetime Achievement Award’ at the Legal Era’s Indian
Legal Awards 2017-18. She has also been awarded ‘India Managing Partner of the Year’ by Asian Legal
Business Asia Law Awards 2017 and ‘Disputes Star of the Year’, India by Asialaw Asia-Pacific Dispute
Resolution Awards, 2017. Ms. Shroff has been recognised as one of the Most Powerful Women in Indian
Business by Business Today, five years in succession (2013-17).

Mr. Vijay Shekhar Sharma

Profile of Mr. Vijay Shekhar Sharma are disclosed in later part of this explanatory statement.

In pursuance to Secretarial Standard-2 issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI).

Name of the | Mr. Joseph Chung | Mr. Ravi | Ms. Pallavi Shardul | Mr. Kabir Misra | Mr. Vijay Shekhar
Director Tsai Adusumalli Shroff Sharma
DIN 07788455 00253613 00013580 07654111 00466521
Age (in years) 54 42 62 49 40
Quialification B.A. (Economics), | Graduate from | B.A., Economics Hons. | AB in Economics B. Tech
East Asian Studies | Cornell  University | (1976) Lady Shri Ram | from Harvard
(ale College), | with B.A. in | College, Delhi | University and an
Juris Doctor Degree | Economics and | University; MBA from
(YYale Law School) | Government. M.M.S. (1978) | Stanford
Jamnalal Bajaj Institute | University
of Management
Studies, Bombay
University;
LLB (1981) Govt. Law
College, Bombay
University.




Remuneration NIL NIL NIL NIL Rs. 3 Crore p.a. plus

sought to be paid perquisites &
allowances

Terms and | Mr. Joseph Chung | Mr. Ravi Adusumalli | Ms. Pallavi Shardul | Mr. Kabir Misra NA

Conditions of | Tsai is eligible to be | is eligible to be re- | Shroff is appointed as | is appointed as

appointment(s) re-appointed as | appointed as | an Independent | Director, liable to

Director, liable to | Director, liable to | Director, not liable to | retire by rotation,
retire by rotation, as | retire by rotation, as | retire by rotation for a | as per the
per the provisions | per the provisions of | period of 3 years, as | provisions of the
of the Companies | the Companies Act, | per the provisions of | Companies Act,
Act, 2013 and | 2013 and Articles of | the Companies Act, | 2013 and Articles
Articles of | Association of the | 2013 and Articles of | of Association of
Association of the | Company, subject to | Association of the | the Company,
Company, subject | the approval of the | Company, subject to | subject to the
to the approval of | members of the | the approval of the | approval of the
the members of the | Company in  this | members of  the | members of the

Company in this | AGM. Company in this AGM. | Company in this
AGM. AGM.
Justification for NA NA e Pursuant to the NA NA
choosing the provisions of
appointees as Section 149 (1) of
Independent the Companies Act,
Director 2013 particular

class of companies
need to appoint at
least one Woman
Director on its
Board.

e The Company
being a Public
Company with a
turnover of more
than Rs. 300 crores
is required to
comply with the
above provision.

e Accordingly, Ms.
Pallavi Shardul
Shroff has been
appointed as an
Additional Director
(Independent) with
effect from
February 09, 2018
by the Board of
Directors of the
Company to hold
office till  the
conclusion of the
ensuing Annual
General Meeting of
the Company.

Remuneration NIL NIL NIL NIL Rs. 3 Crore p.a. plus
last drawn from perquisites &
the Company allowances




Date of first
appointment on
the Board of
Directors of the
Company

31.07.2017

16.02.2012

09.02.2018

07.11.2017

22.12.2000

Shareholding in
the Company (as
on the date of
AGM Notice)

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

90,51,624
Shares (16.32%)

Equity

Relationship
with other
Directors,
Managers
other
Managerial
Personnel(s) of
the Company

and
Key

None

None

None

None

None

Number of
Board meetings
attended during
the financial
year 2017-18

NIL

List of
Directorships
held in other
companies, as on
March 31, 2018

As per list attached
as Annexure-I

As per list attached as

Annexure-|

As per list attached as
Annexure-|

As per
attached
Annexure-|

list
as

As per list attached as
Annexure-|

Membership/
Chairmanship of
Committees  of
Board of
Directors of
other companies,
as on March 31,
2018

NIL

TV18

Home

Shopping Network
Limited (Nomination
& Remuneration

Committee)
Member

Gujarat Alkalies
And  Chemicals
Limited (Audit
Committee) -
Member

Maruti Suzuki
India Limited
(Audit Committee)
— Member
Juniper Hotels
Private  Limited
(Audit Committee)
— Member
Trident Limited
(Audit Committee
& Nomination &
Remuneration
Committee) -
Member

NIL

e Paytm

Money
Limited (Audit
Committee &
NRC) — Member
Paytm Payments
Bank Limited
(NRC, IT Strategy,
Risk Management,
Management/Super
visory, Fraud
Monitoring &
Outsourcing
Committee) -
Member

One97
Communications
India Limited -
Audit & NRC -
Member

Place: Noida

Date: September 04, 2018

Regd Off: 1* Floor, Devika Tower
Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110019
CIN- U72200DL2000PLC108985

Website- www.one97.com

By Order of the Board of Directors
For One97 Communications Limited

Sd/-

Vimal Chawla

Company Secretary
Membership No. 16746




Disclosure as required under Section Il of Part 11 of Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 and the
corresponding Rules, is given hereunder:

General Information:
1. Nature of Industry: The Company carries on the business inter alia to provide telecom based value added

services to various telecom operators across the territory, payment gateway aggregator services, ticket
services, utility bills payments, insurance, hotel booking services etc.

2. Date or expected date of commencement of commercial production: Not Applicable, since the Company has
already commenced the business activity. The Company was incorporated on 22" December, 2000.

3. In _case of new Companies, expected date of commencement of activities as per project approved by
financial institutions appearing in the prospectus: Not Applicable.

4. Financial Performance based on given indicators:

Particulars 2017-18

(Rs. In Cr)
Total Income 3234.57
Depreciation 68.92
Tax expense (1.01)
Total Expenses 4718.50
Net Profit/(Loss) (1490.47)
Paid-up Capital 55.32
Reserves & Surplus 7575.55

5. Foreign Investment or Collaboration, if any:

The Company has received Foreign Direct Investment under FDI guidelines. As on the date of this notice,
out of total paid-up capital, 82.52% (approx.) is held by Foreign Investor under Foreign Direct Investment
scheme of RBI. Further, the Company has following wholly owned subsidiaries and joint ventures overseas:

Name of the Entity Status Country
One97 Communications Singapore | Wholly owned Subsidiary Singapore
Private Limited

One97 Communications Nigeria | Wholly owned Subsidiary Nigeria
Limited

One97 USA Inc. Wholly owned Subsidiary USA
One97 Communications FZ-LLC Wholly owned Subsidiary Dubai
Ciqual Limited Joint Venture United Kingdom




1. Information about the appointee:

1.

Background Details: Mr. Vijay Shekhar Sharma is the Managing Director, Founder and Promoter of One97
Communications Limited. As a Managing Director, he is responsible for strategies and directions for
sustainable growth of the Company. As he is the promoter of the Company, he is associated with One97
Communications Limited since its incorporation i.e. year 2000. Under his dynamic leadership, the Company
has attained the respectable position and grown as a pioneer in the mobile VAS across leading telecom
operator, become a leader in mobile wallet space, consolidate payment gateway aggregator services etc.

Mpr. Vijay Shekhar Sharma has a Bachelor’s degree in Engineering from Delhi College of Engineering.

. Past Remuneration: Remuneration drawn by Mr. Vijay Shekhar Sharma for the period April 01, 2017 to

March 31, 2018 is Rs. 3 crores and other perquisites & allowances approved in the terms of appointment.

Recognition or Awards: In 2015, Vijay was recognized as Entrepreneur of year by Earns & Young and in
same year as Future Leaders at the NASSCOM Future Leaders event. In addition, he is recognized among
the most Innovative CEOs of 2014 by Inc India. In 2011, Vijay Shekhar Sharma was featured in Inc 500
survey about India’s Fastest Growing Mid-sized Companies. In Addition, he won Mobile Entrepreneur of
the Year at WAT Awards. In 2010, he was selected as the VAS Person of the Year at the IAMAI’s India
Digital Awards.

Job Profile and his suitability: Mr. Vijay Shekhar Sharma, Managing Director, is responsible for day-to-day
management & strategic decisions of the Company, subject to overall superintendence, control and direction
of the Board of Directors. Being a founder of the Company, he has brought the Company to great
achievements. Taking into consideration his qualifications and expertise in the business segment and, he is
best suited for the responsibilities of current assigned role.

Remuneration Proposed for the FY 2018-19: There is no increase in remuneration paid in FY 2018-19.
Hence the remuneration proposed is Rs. 3,00,00,000 and other perquisites & allowances as detailed in the
resolution.

Comparative remuneration profile with respect to industry, size of the company, profile of the position and
person (in case of expatriates the relevant details would be with respect to the country of his origin): With
increased size and turnover, it is also imperative for any ITES company to have highly experienced
professionals having specialized knowledge and skills to understand and project the market trend, consumer
behavior, consumption pattern and many relevant indicators for better product mix. It also requires
expertise for appropriate fund allocation, optimum utilization of various resources in the business. Mr. Vijay
Shekhar Sharma has successfully proved his expertise in very effective manner and drove the Company
towards the growth over the period of time. Hence, the Board of Directors considers that the remuneration
proposed to them is justified commensurate with other organizations of the similar type, size and nature in
the industry.

. Pecuniary Relationship directly or indirectly with the company or relationship with managerial personnel, if

any: Apart from receiving the remuneration proposed, Mr. Vijay Shekhar Sharma holds 90,51,624 equity
shares in the Company. Additionally, his brother, Mr. Ajay Shekhar Sharma holds office and place of profit
under Section 188(f) of the Companies Act, 2013. Mr. Vijay Shekhar Sharma or any of his relative does not
have any other pecuniary relationship with the Company.

I11. Other Information:



1. Reason of loss or inadequate profits: The Company has incurred huge capital expenditure in creating a
brand and establishing its business activity. We have incurred a considerable amount in various capital &
operational expenditures which resulted into losses during the financial year.

2. Steps taken or proposed to be taken for improvement:

The Company is focusing on strengthening its position in various business segments like Payments Bank,
Insurance and Insurance Broking, travel ticketing, hotel, mobile wallet services etc. and that would result
into better turnover in coming fiscal years.

We have created “Paytm” as a popular brand and platform which provides ease of online marketplace,
mobile wallets, recharges and Payment Gateways Aggregator services, Payments Banking Services etc. We
are committed to grow this business further and turn it into a profitable business in the years ahead.

3. Expected Increase in productivity and profits in measurable terms:

The business and consumer confidence is expected to improve in the coming years, geared with a
streamlined organizational design, the company intends to grow its businesses. The improvement in
consumer sentiment and increased consumer spending through online platforms will enable the growth
momentum to pick up. The management continuous to be cautiously optimistic towards the external
economic environment and expects consumer demand to become more consistent and robust in the ensuing
financial years. Further, various policy decisions taken would act as growth channel for the Company which
would contribute in increased revenues and higher margins. Further, a number of initiatives for productivity
and profitability, increased investments in technology, customer engagements, loyalty programs and
improving the customer experience, have shown encouraging results.

IV. Disclosures:
The detailed elements of remuneration including other perquisites are given in the respective resolution &

explanatory statement. The disclosures as required under this section shall be disclosed in the Board of Director’s
report for the FY 2018-19.



FORM NO. MGT.11
Proxy form
[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of
the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985
Name of the company: One97 Communications Limited
Registered office: First Floor, Devika Tower, Nehru Place, New Delhi — 110019

Name of the member (s):
Registered address:

E-mail Id:
Folio No/ Client 1d:
DP ID:
I/We, being the member(s) of ...................... shares of the above named company, hereby appoint
1.  Name:
Address:
E-mail Id:
Signature: .........coooiiiiiiiiii , or failing him
2. Name:
Address:
E-mail Id:
Signature: ............. , or failing him
3. Name:
Address:
E-mail Id:
Signature: .............

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 18" Annual General Meeting of the
company, to be held on the Friday, September 28, 2018 at 10 a.m. at registered office of the Company and at any
adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

Resolution No:
1. To receive, consider and adopt
a. the audited financial statement of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2018, the report of the Board of
Director’s and Auditor’s thereon; and
b. the audited consolidated financial statement of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2018 and the
Auditor’s report thereon,
2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Joseph Chung Tsai who retires by rotation and, being eligible offers himself for
reappointment.
3. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Ravi Chandra Adusumalli who retires by rotation and, being eligible offers
himself for reappointment.
4. To appoint M/s. Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP as Statutory Auditors of the Company.
5. To regularize the appointment of Mr. Kabir Misra as Director.
6. To regularize the appointment of Ms. Pallavi Shardul Shroff as an Independent Director.
7. To approve remuneration of Mr. Vijay Shekhar Sharma, Managing Director for FY 2018-19.
8
S

igned this ............. dayof...... 2018
Signature of shareholder Gt
Revenue
Signature of Proxy holder(s) Stamp

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office
of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.



ONE97 COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED
Registered Office: First Floor, Devika Tower, Nehru Place, New Delhi — 110019

IATTENDANCE SLIP|

Please complete this attendance slips and hand it over at the entrance of the hall.

Full name of the Shareholder in Block Letters:

Folio No. :

No. of Shares held:

| hereby record my presence at the 18" Annual General Meeting of the Company, held at First Floor, Devika
Tower, Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110019 on September 28, 2018 at 10 A.M.

Signature of the Shareholder-

Note: Only Shareholders of the Company or their Proxies will be allowed to attend the Meeting.

---------------------------------------------------------------- CUT HERE




Route of Map of the Location of the Meeting to be held on September 28, 2018
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Annexure-1 to Notice of AGM

List of Directorships held by Mr. Joseph Chung Tsai as on March 31, 2018:

S. No. | Names of the Company /Body corporate Position held
1. |Paytm E-Commerce Private Limited Director
2. |0ne97 Communications Limited Director
3. IMFG Il Ltd. Director
4. [Beijing Yahoo! Information Technology Co., Ltd. Director
5. |PMH Holding Limited Director
6. |Parufam Limited Director
7. [Timcross Development Inc. Director
8. |Alisoft (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. Director
9. |[Zhejiang Alibaba Finance Credit Network Technology Co., Ltd. Director
10. |Alipay (China) Information Technology Co., Ltd. Director
11. [Setenta Capital Limited Director
12. |[Zhejiang Alibaba Small Loan Co., Ltd. Director
13. |[Nammu Investment Holdings Limited Director
14. |Alibaba (Guangzhou) Technology Co., Ltd. Director
15. |APN Ltd. Director
16. |Alibaba Group Holding Limited Director
17. |Shangcheng (Shanghai) Commercial Factoring Co., Ltd. Director
18. [Joe and Clara Tsai Charitable Foundation Limited Director
19. |Lakeside Partners, LP Director
20. HLP Investment Limited Director
21. |Lakeside Partners (GP) Limited Director
22. |Koubel Holding Limited Director
23. [The Hong Kong Entrepreneurs Fund Limited Director
24. [The Taiwan Entrepreneurs Fund Limited Director
25. |Ali Sports (Shanghai) Co. Ltd. Director
26. [Magic Leap, Inc. Director
27. |Suzhou Huaren Culture Investment Center (Limited Partnership) Director
28. |Cainiao Smart Logistics Network Limited Director
29. |CMC Holdings Limited Director
30. |Rajax Holding Director
31. |[SCMP Group Holding Limited Director
32. |CKHH Alipay Internet Services (HK) Limited Director
33. |Alipay Payment Services (HK) Limited Director
34. BBB China Sports Holdings Limited Director
35. |B-Cubed Basketball Holdings Limited Director
36. [Chruch Bay Road Limited Director
37. IMFG Aviation Ltd Director
38. [The Ink Factory Limited Director
39. [Xiaopeng Motors Director




Annexure-1 to Notice of AGM

List of Directorships held by Mr. Ravi Adusumalli as on March 31, 2018:

Names of the Company /Body corporate Position held
TV18 Home Shopping Network Limited Director
Brainbees Solutions Private Limited Director
Robemall Apparels Private Limited Director
Le Travenues Technology Private Limited Director
One97 Communications Limiteed Director

Zen Lefin Private Limited

Nominee Director

Nuvo Logistics Private Limited

Nominee Director

BusyBees Logistics Solutions Private Limited

Director

Urbanclap Technologies India Private Limited

Nominee Director

'Youngmonk Technologies Private Limited

Nominee Director

Tracxn Technologies Private Limited

Nominee Director
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Paytm E-Commerce Pvt. Ltd.

Director




Annexure-1 to Notice of AGM

List of Directorships held by Ms. Pallavi Shardul Shroff as on March 31, 2018:

S. No. | Names of the Company /Body corporate Position held
1. |Gujarat Alkalies and Chemicals Limited Director
2. |Apollo Tyres Limited Director
3. |Maruti Suzuki India Limited Director
4. [Trident Limited Director
5. [First Commercial Services India Private Limited Director
6. |Amarchand Towers Property Holdings Private Limited Director
7. |Baghbaan Properties Private Limited Director
8.  |PSNSS Properties Private Limited Director
9. uniper Hotels Private Limited Director
10. |Aavanti Realty Private Limited Director
11. |First Full Services Private Limited Director
12. [First Universal Virtual International Arbitration Centre Private Limited Director
13. |UVAC Centre (India) Private Limited Director

14. |Amarchand Mangaldas Properties Private Limited Director
15. Singapore International Arbitration Centre (India) Private Limited Director




Annexure-1 to Notice of AGM

List of Directorships held by Mr. Kabir Misra as on March 31, 2018:

S.No. | Names of the Company /Body corporate Position held
1. Hike Global Pte. Ltd. Director
2. PayActiv Director
3. Coupang, LLC Director
4. Starburst I, Inc Director
5. Flipkart Limited Director
6. SB China and India Holdings Ltd President Director
7. Acuta Capital Director




Annexure-1 to Notice of AGM

List of Directorships held by Mr. Vijay Shekhar Sharma as on March 31, 2018:

S. No. | Names of the Company /Body corporate Position held
1. |Vijaya Traders Private Limited Director
2. |0ne97 Communications India Limited Director
3. |0ne97 Communications FZ LLC Director
4. |0One97 Communications Singapore Private Limited Director
5. |One97 USA Inc Director
6. |One97 Communications Rwanda Private Limited Director
7. |Paytm Labs Inc. Director

. |One97 Communications Bangladesh Private Limited Director
9. |One97 Benin SA Director
10. [One97 Ivory Coast SA Director
11. |Paytm E-Commerce Private Limited Director
12. |Paytm Payments Bank Limited Director
13. |Paytm Financial Services Limited Director
14. \Applied Life Private Limited Director
15. Paytm General Insurance Corporation limited Director
16. Paytm Life Insurance Corporation Limited Director
17. |Paytm Money Limited Director
18. [Paytm Entertainment Limited Director
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Dear Members,

The Directors take pleasure in presenting the Eighteenth Directors’ Report of the Company together with the Audited

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Financial Statements and Accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2018.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Consolidated (INR in Standalone (INR in Crores)

Crores)

2017-18 2016-17 2017-18 2016-17
Revenue from Operations 3058.09 614.62 2987.41 598.33
Other Income 256.71 165.57 247.16 166.26
TOTAL REVENUE 3314.80 780.19 3234.57 764.59
Less: Expenses
Employee Benefit Expense 625.36 332.64 540.06 323.92
Finance Cost 28.83 4.50 27.74 4.42
Depreciation and Amortization Expense 78.88 40 68.92 39.05
Other Expenses 4151.88 1584.15 4081.78 1579.75
TOTAL EXPENSES 4884.95 1961.29 4718.50 1947.14
Profit/Loss before share of result of (1570.15) (1181.10) - -
associates and taxation from continuing
operations
Share of result of associates (30.81) (27.47) - -
Profit/Loss before exceptional items and tax (1600.95) (1208.57) (1483.93) (1182.55)
from continuing operations
Exceptional items 3.40 591.32 (2.30) 591.32
Profit/Loss before Tax from Continuing (1597.56) (617.25) (1486.23) (591.23)
Operations
Tax Expense 1.53 2.48 (1.01) 3.65
Profit/Loss from Continuing Operations (1599.09) (619.73) (1485.22) (594.88)
Profit/Loss for the period from (5.25) (279.91) (5.25) (284.75)
discontinued operations
Profit/Loss for the year (1604.34) (899.64) (1490.47) (879.63)
Total Comprehensive Income/Loss (1606.05) (903.09) - -
Loss attributable to Equity holders of the (1589.46) (899.64) - -
parent
Loss attributable to  Non-controlling (14.88) - - -
interests
Total Comprehensive Income/Loss (1591.17) (903.09) - -
attributable to Equity holders of the parent
Total Comprehensive Income/Loss (14.88) - - -
attributable to Non-controlling interests




Basic & Diluted EPS for continuing (317.40) (134.17) (294.79) (128.79)
operations (attributable to | (attributable
equity holders to equity
of parent) holders of
parent)
Basic & Diluted EPS for discontinued (1.04) (60.65) (1.04) (61.65)
operations (attributable to | (attributable
equity holders to equity
of parent) holders of
parent)
Basic & Diluted EPS for continuing and (318.44) (194.73) (295.83) (190.44)
discontinued operations (attributable to | (attributable
equity holders to equity
of parent) holders of
parent)

COMPANY’S PERFORMANCE

Our total income on standalone basis increased to Rs. 3234.57 crores in FY 2017-18 from Rs. 764.59 crores in FY 2016-
17. Our total income on consolidated basis increased to Rs. 3314.80 crores in FY 2017-18 from Rs. 780.19 crores in FY
2016-17.

DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors have not recommended any dividend for the financial year 2017-18.

CHANGES IN THE CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Authorized Share Capital:

During the year, the authorized share capital of the Company was INR 1041,066,000 comprising of 56,100,000 Equity
Shares of Rs. 10 each and 2,759,000 Preference Shares of Rs 174 each.

After end of the financial year under review, the authorized share capital of the Company has been reclassified and as on
date of the report, the authorized share capital of the Company is INR 1041,066,000 comprising of 10,41,06,600 Equity
Shares of Rs. 10 each.

Issued, Subscribed, Paid-up Share Capital:

During the year under review, the Company had issued 80,90,159 equity shares of INR 10/- each by way of preferential
cum private placement basis. The Company had received collectively INR 6441,89,81,323 in relation to the above equity
shares issued.

Further, after the end of financial year, the Company had issued:

(@) 10,000 equity shares of INR 10/- each by way of preferential cum private placement basis. The Company had
received collectively INR 8,00,00,000 in relation to the said equity shares issued.



(b) 1,16,001 equity shares of INR 10/- each by way of preferential cum private placement basis for consideration other
than cash, i.e. in exchange of the equity shares of Orbgen Technologies Private Limited (“OTPL”), at a ratio of 1 :
0.12, i.e. in exchange for every 1 equity share of OTPL held, 0.12 equity shares of the Company has been issued (at
an implied issue price of INR 10,560 per equity share of the Company)

During the year under review, the Company has also issued 2,44,459 equity shares of INR 10/- each to various employees
under the Employees Stock option Scheme (ESOP 2008).

Further, after the end of the financial year, the Company has further issued 27,619 equity shares of INR 10/- each under
the Employees Stock option Scheme (ESOP 2008).

Post issuance of above mentioned shares, the issued and paid up equity share capital of the Company as on date of this
report stands at INR 55,47,88,910.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Board met 9 times in financial year 2017-18 viz., on 28.04.2017, 24.05.2017, 10.06.2016, 21.06.2017, 24.07.2017,
05.08.2017, 15.10.2017, 07.11.2017, 02.02.2018. The maximum interval between any two meetings did not exceed 120
days.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
During the period under review, following Directors had resigned:

(@) Ms. Peng Yijie with effect from 31.07.2017.

(b) Mr. Gowrappan Kumaraguru with effect from 31.07.2017.
(c) Mr. Kai Nin Kenny Man with effect from 31.07.2017.

(d) Mr. Neeraj Arora with effect from 06.02.2018.

Further, the following Directors were appointed during the period under review:

(@) Mr. Chen Yan as an Alternate Director to Mr. Jing Xiandong with effect from 31.07.2017.

(b) Mr. Joseph Chung Tsai as an Additional Director with effect from 31.07.2017- Investor Director by Alipay Singapore
E-commerce Private Limited.

(c) Mr. Kabir Misra as an Additional Director with effect from 07.11.2017 - Investor Director by SVF India Holding
(Cayman) Limited.

(d) Ms. Pallavi Shardul Shroff as an Additional Director (Independent Director) with effect from 09.02.2018.

(e) Mr. Ting Hong Kenny Ho as an Alternate Director to Mr. Joseph Chung Tsai with effect from 02.02.2018.

Mr. Joseph Chung Tsai, Mr. Kabir Misra and Ms. Pallavi Shardul Shroff were appointed as Additional Directors pursuant
to Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 and hold office up to the date of forthcoming Annual General Meeting. The
members are requested to consider their regularization as Directors of the Company.

The Company has received declaration from the Independent Directors declaring that they meet the criteria of
Independence in terms of Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and that there is no change in their status of
Independence.

During the period under review, due to internal reorganization, Mr. Madhur Deora was appointed as Chief Financial
Officer (CFO) (KMP) of the Company in place of Mr. Amit Sinha with effect from 10.06.2017.

During the period under review, due to internal reorganization, Mr. Vimal Chawla was appointed as the Company
Secretary (KMP) of the Company, with effect from 02.02.2018, in place of Mr. Amit Gupta.



In terms of the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Amitabh Kumar Singhal and Mr. Joseph
Chung Tsai, Directors of the Company, are liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the
Company and being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment.

Further, after the financial year under review, following appointments have been made on the Board:

(@) Mr. Saurabh Jalan as an Alternate Director to Mr. Kabir Misra with effect from 06.04.2018.
(b) Mr. Mukul Arora as an Alternate Director to Mr. Ravi Chandra Adusumalli with effect from 18.05.2018.

As on date of the report the composition of Board of Directors is as below:

SI. No. | Name Designation

1. Mr. Vijay Shekhar Sharma Managing Director
2. Mr. Ravi Chandra Adusumalli Director

3. Mr. Jing Xiandong Director

4. Mr. Amitabh Kumar Singhal Director

5. Mr. Joesph Chung Tsai Director

6. Mr. Kabir Misra Additional Director
7. Mr. Mark Schwartz Director

8. Ms. Pallavi Shardul Shroff Additional Director
9. Mr. Chen Yan Alternate Director
10. Mr. Ting Hong Kenny Ho Alternate Director
11. Mr. Saurabh Jalan Alternate Director
12. Mr. Mukul Arora Alternate Director

COMMITTEES OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

The Company has following statutory committees of Board as required under the Companies Act, 2013 as at 31 March,
2017:

1) Audit Committee
2) Nomination and Remuneration Committee
3) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

As on the date of this report, the composition of the committees as per applicable provision of the Companies Act, 2013
and rules are as under:

Name of the Committee Composition of Committee

Audit Committee Mr. Mark Schwartz, Member

Mr. Ravi Chandra Adusumalli, Member
Ms. Pallavi Shardul Shroff, Member
Mr. Ravi Chandra Adusumalli, Member
Mr. Jing Xiandong, Member

Mr. Mark Schwartz, Member

Ms. Pallavi Shardul Shroff, Member
Mr. Vijay Shekhar Sharma, Member
Mr. Ravi Chandra Adusumalli, Member

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Corporate Social Responsibility Committe
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| | 3. Mr. Mark Schwartz, Member

POLICY ON DIRECTORS APPOINTMENT AND POLICY ON REMUNERATION

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(e) and Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the policy on appointment of Board
Members including criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes, independence of a Director and the policy
on remuneration of Directors, KMP and other employees is attached as Annexure-1 to this report.

BOARD EVALUATION

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board has undergone peer evaluation of all Board members,
annual performance evaluation of its own performance, as well as the evaluation of the working of the Board Committees.
This evaluation is led by the Chairman of the Board or Nomination and Compensation Committee with specific focus on
the performance and effective functioning of the Board. The evaluation process also considers the time spent by each of
the Board members, core competencies, personal characteristics, accomplishment of specific responsibilities and
expertise.

The performance evaluation has been done by the entire Board of Directors, except the Director concerned being
evaluated. The criteria for performance evaluation are as follows:

e That the composition of the Board is appropriate with the right mix of knowledge and skills sufficient to
maximize Company performance in regard to future strategies;

e That the Board operates in a congenial environment which facilitates open and meaningful communication, equal
participation and opportunity and timely resolution of issues;

e That the Board sets out the targets to be achieved every year with a clear vision and works toward its
accomplishment;

e That the Board stays abreast of issues and trends affecting the business of the Company, anticipates problems and
react to the situations in a timely manner;

e That the Board meetings are called at suitable intervals and proper notice and agenda is provided to all the
Directors in a timely manner;

e That the Board meetings deliberates issues on length, takes decisions in a timely manner while maintaining a
balance between presentations and discussions;

e That the Board receives accurate and useful information, based upon which decisions to be taken in a timely
manner;

e That the Board speaks in “one voice” when directing or delegating to management and bring discussions to a
conclusion with clear direction to management;

e That the number of meetings during the year is adequate for the Board to fulfill its responsibilities;

e That the Board is effective in implementing best corporate governance practices for creating transparency across
the Company;

e That the Board follows a systematic approach for following-up the decisions taken during the meetings;

e That the Board provides ample time to all the members to provide their comments on the minutes of the meetings.

DISCLOSURE UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION,
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

Your Company is committed to provide a healthy environment to all its employees and thus has zero tolerance on any
discrimination and/or harassment in any form. The Company has in place a Prevention of Sexual Harassment (POSH)
policy in line with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013. An internal complaints committee has been formed where complaint can be made by the aggrieved
employees. The policy of “Prevention of Sexual Harassment” at workplace is available on intranet for employees. Penal
consequences of Sexual Harassment ("SH”) and the constitution of the Committee is displayed at conspicuous places. The



posters are also displayed in regional languages at all offices. During the year, 10 (Ten) cases were reported and dealt with
by Internal Complaints Committee under the policy.

EMPLOYEES STOCK OPTION SCHEME

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board inter alia, administer and monitor the Employees’ Stock
Option Scheme (ESOP Scheme) of the Company in accordance with the Companies Act, 2013 and applicable rule framed
thereunder. The Company maintains a Register of Employees Stock Option wherein the particulars are being entered
forthwith for option granted in terms of Section 62 of the Companies Act, 2013.

In terms of the Rule 12 of Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 disclosure under ESOP scheme are
made as under:

Option Granted 390,172
Options Vested 385,779 (these are vested options available for
exercise as on Mar18)
Option Exercised 226,034 (Exercise during the FY 2017-18)
Exercise Price Rs.10 for 31,771
Rs.49 for 59,618

Rs.90 for 111,450
Rs.180 for 23,195

Option Lapsed 314,692 (Lapse during the FY 2017-18)
Variation of terms of options N.A
Money realized by exercise of option 17,444,591

The total number of shares arising as a result of | 220,487
exercise of options

Total no. of Options in force 988,521

Employee wise details of option granted to:

a. Key Managerial Personnel For FY 2017-18
Vimal Chawla, Company Secretary-476 options

b. Any other employee who receives a | For FY 2017-18
grant of options in any one year of 1. Sunil Goyal — 20,750 options
options amounting to 5% or more of
options granted during that year

c. ldentified employees who were granted | NIL
options during any one year equal to or
exceeding of issued capital (excluding
outstanding warrants and conversions)
of the Company at the time of grant.

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURE AND ASSOCIATES:

As on 31% March 2018, your Company had the following Subsidiaries:

Sr. No. | Name of Subsidiary Company Percentage Of Holding

1. One97 Communications India Limited 100%

2. Paytm Entertainment Limited 100%




3 Paytm Money Limited 100%
4 Paytm Financial Services Ltd. 100%
5. Urja Money Private Limited 54%
6. Wasteland Entertainment Private Limited 70%
7 Mobiquest Mobile Technologies Private Limited 55%
8 Little Internet Private Limited 63%
9. Xceed IT Solution Private Limited 55%
10. Nearbuy India Private Limited 63%
11. Acumen Game Entertainment Private Limited 55%
12. One97 Communications FZ-LLC 100%
13. One97 Communications Nigeria Limited 100%
14. One97 Communications Singapore Private Limited 100%
15. One97 (U.S.A)) Inc. 100%
16. One97 Communications Tanzania Private Limited * 100%
17. One97 Communications Rwanda Private Limited * 100%
18. One97 Communications Bangladesh Private Limited™* 100%
19. One97 Communications Uganda Limited* 100%
20. One 97 Benin SA* 100%
21. One 97 Ivory Coast SA* 100%
22. Paytm Labs Inc. * 100%
23. One97 Communications Malaysia Sdn. Bdn.* 100%

* Subsidiary of One97 Communications Singapore Private Limited

A report on the performance and financial position of each of the subsidiaries and associates as per the Companies Act, 2013
is provided in Annexure-2.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

In accordance with section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013, an extract of the annual return in the prescribed format
is appended as Annexure-3 to the Board Report.

PARTICULAR OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

During the year under review, the Company has neither given any loans and nor provided any guarantees covered under
section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Investments made by the Company are provided in the standalone financial
statements. (Refer Note no. 5, 6, 7(a).

PARTICULAR OF CONTRACT AND ARRANGEMENT MADE WITH RELATED PARTIES

With reference to Section 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013, all contracts and arrangements with related parties under
Section 188(1) of the Act, entered by the Company during the financial year, were in the ordinary course of business and
on arm’s length basis. During the year, the Company had entered into following contract or arrangement with related
parties which could be considered ‘material” (i.e. transactions Which were required to be placed before the members of the
Company) according to the policy of the Company on materiality of Related Party Transactions. The disclosure of the
Related Party Transactions in the form AOC-2 has been annexed as Annexure-4 to this Report.

(a) Business Transfer Agreement (“BTA”) with Acumen Game Entertainment Private Limited



BTA for transfer of online gaming business being operated through the One97 Gaming Platforms, as carried on or
powered by One97 together with all Assets and Assumed Liabilities pertaining thereto, and which are not solely being
charged through the telecom network on a slump sale basis.

(b) Business Cooperation Agreement (“BCA”) with AGtech Holdings Limited and Acumen Game Entertainment
Private Limited

Providing of Customer Access Services, the Payment Services, the Consultancy Services, the Technical Support
Services, the Co-Sharing Services and any other Additional Services by OCL to Acumen with regard to various
games, including but not limited to games of skill, games of chance, mobile games, lottery games, quizzes, card
games and event guessing. In order to assist with the operation of the Acumen’s business from time to time to further
the objectives of the Joint Venture Agreement, One97 and AGtech have agreed to provide or procure the provision of
the Services as defined in the BCA, to Acumen on the terms and conditions set out in BCA.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

In terms of the provisions of Sections 73 of the Act read with the relevant Rules of the Act, the Company had no opening
or closing balances and also has not accepted any fixed deposits during the year under review and as such, no amount of
principal or interest was outstanding as on March 31, 2018.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

Your Company has established a robust system of internal controls to ensure that assets are safeguarded and transactions
are appropriately authorized, recorded and reported. The Company’s internal control system comprises internal audit
carried out by PricewaterhouseCoopers Private Limited, Chartered Accountants and periodical review by management.
The Audit Committee of the Board addresses significant issues raised by both, the Internal Auditors and the Statutory
Auditors. The Company has also implemented compliance tool to centrally monitor the compliances of all applicable laws
to the Company. The Company had engaged independent agency to conduct independent check on the effectiveness and
robustness on the Internal Financial Control System. The Company believes that the overall internal control system is
dynamic and reflects the current requirements at all times, hence ensuring that appropriate procedures and controls, in
operating and monitoring practices are in place.

HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

One97 recognizes human resource to be the most valuable asset of the Company. People development continues to be a
key focus area at One97. The Company continues to pay a focused attention on the development of human relations
within the organization. One97 believes in building a culture of innovation and creativity where our employees are
inspired to achieve excellence in their area of functioning.

A statement containing the names of employees employed during the financial year ended 31* March, 2018 as under Rule
5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 may be availed by the
members by making a written request to the Company Secretary of the Company at the e-mail id:
compliance@paytm.com.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Company has a robust Risk Management Framework to identify, evaluate business risks and opportunities. This
framework seeks to create transparency, minimize adverse impact on the business objectives and enhance the Company’s
competitive advantage. The business risk framework defines the risk management approach across the enterprise at
various levels including documentation and reporting. The framework has different risk models which help in identifying


mailto:compliance@paytm.com

risks trend, exposure and potential impact analysis at a Company level as also separately for business segments. The
Company has identified various risks and also has mitigation plans for each risk identified. The Board of Director
periodically review the Risk Management Framework & approves the necessary changes required therein.

Risk mitigation continues to be a key area of concern for the Company, which has regularly invested in insuring itself
against unforeseen risks. The Company’s insurable assets like serve, computer equipment, office equipment, furniture &
fixtures etc. have been adequately insured against major risks. The Company has also taken appropriate Directors’ &
Officers’ Liability Insurance Policy to cover the risk on account of claims, if any, filed against the Company.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

In terms of the Section 135(5) of Companies Act, 2013, the Company is not fulfilling the criteria of having average net
profit for immediate three preceding financials years. Accordingly, the Company is not required to spend amount in the
CSR activities during the financial year.

VIGIL MECHANISM/ANTI BRIBERY & WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The Company has adopted a Vigil mechanism/Anti bribery & Whistle blower Policy to deal with instance of fraud and
mismanagement, if any. The policy aims that its directors, officers and employees strictly comply with all applicable laws
and regulations and observe the highest standards of business ethics in India and foreign countries.

In addition, the Company has also set up a whistle-blower helpling, to enable employees to report any violations of this
Policy. The identity of the complainants are kept confidential during investigations and may be disclosed only on a ‘need-
to-know’ basis to others. The Company also accepts anonymous complaints.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Total foreign exchange earned (accrual basis) by the Company during the year under review was Rs. 35,46,51,903 as
compared to Rs. 19,22,87,613 during the FY 2016-17.

Total foreign exchange expenditure incurred (accrual basis) by the Company during the year under review was Rs.
34,71,23,525 as compared to Rs. 316,273,710 during the year FY 2016-17.
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

Being in service sector, the particulars relating to conservation of energy, technology absorption as required to be
disclosed under the Act are not applicable to the Company.

SIGNIFICANT & MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS

There are no material litigations outstanding as on March 31, 2018. Details of litigation on tax matters are disclosed in the
financial statements.

OTHER DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 134 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Except as disclosed elsewhere in the report, there have been no material changes and commitments, which can affect the
financial position of the Company between the end of the financial year and the date of report.

The Board of Directors informs the member that during the financial year there has been no material changes, except as
disclosed elsewnhere in the report:



. In the nature of Company’s business.
o Generally in the classes of business in which the Company has interest.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the requirement clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, your Directors
confirm that:

a. inthe preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper
explanation relating to material departures;

b. the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at
the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the Company for that period,;

c. the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d. the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

e. the directors, had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal
financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively.

f. the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that
such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

STATUTORY AUDITORS & AUDITOR’S REPORT
Statutory Auditors

At the 15" Annual General Meeting held on September 30, 2015, M/s S.R. Batliboi & Associates, LLP, Chartered
Accountants, were appointed as statutory auditors of the Company to hold office till the conclusion of the 18" Annual
General Meeting of the Company. The term of M/s S.R. Batliboi & Associates, LLP, Chartered Accountants is till the
conclusion of forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

In terms of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013, it is proposed to appoint M/s Price Waterhouse Chartered
Accountants LLP (FRN No. 012754N/N500016) as Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of 5 years, subject to
the approval of members of the Company in the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, to audit the Annual Accounts of
the Company for Financial Year 2018-19 and onwards i.e. from the conclusion of 18th Annual General Meeting up to the
conclusion of the 23rd Annual General Meeting (subject to ratification by the members at every subsequent AGM).

The points raised in the Auditors” Report are self-explanatory and do not call for any further comments. The Auditors’
Report is enclosed with the Financials Statements of the Company. The Auditors’ Report does not contain any adverse
remarks or qualifications.

Secretarial Auditors

M/s Pl & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries were appointed to conduct the secretarial audit of the Company for
the FY 2017-18, as required under Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and corresponding rules framed thereunder.



The Secretarial Audit Report for fiscal 2017-18 forms part of the Annual Report as Annexure-5 to this Report. The
Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any qualification, reservation and adverse remark.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Your Company strives to attain high standards of corporate governance while interacting with all the stakeholders. The
increasing diversity of the investing community and the integrated nature of global capital markets render corporate
governance a vital issue for investors. The Company believes that timely disclosures, transparent accounting policies and
a strong independent Board go a long way in maintaining good corporate governance, preserving shareholders trust and
maximizing long term corporate value. In pursuit of corporate goals, the Company accords high importance to
transparency, accountability and integrity in its dealings. Our philosophy on Corporate Governance is driven towards
welfare of all the Stakeholders and the Board of Directors remains committed towards this end.

The Board of Directors supports the broad principles of Corporate Governance and lays strong emphasis on its role to
align and direct the actions of the Company in achieving its objectives.
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NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

1) Objective and purpose

2)

3)

4)

a)

To lay down criteria and terms and conditions with regard to identifying persons who are qualified to become
Directors (Executive and Non-Executive) and persons who may be appointed in Senior Management and
Key Managerial positions and to determine remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial personnel and Other
employees.

To determine remuneration based on the Company’s size, financial position, trends and practices on
remuneration prevailing in peer companies in the similar industry.

To provide them reward, linked directly to their efforts, performance, dedication and achievement relating to
the Company’s operations.

To retain, motivate and promote talent and to ensure long term sustainability of talented managerial persons
and create competitive advantage.

Scope of the Policy

The policy shall be applicable to the following in the Company:

a)
b)
c)

d)

Directors
Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)
Senior Management

Other employees of the Company

Constitution of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Board shall determine the membership of the Committee.

The Committee will comprise at least three members of non- executive directors, a majority of whom shall
be independent directors.

One of the independent non-executive directors shall be designated by the Board to serve as the
Committee’s Chairman.

Appointment criteria and qualifications

a)

Letter of appointment shall be issued based on the recommendations of the Committee on the basis of the
guidelines for the same under the Companies Act, 2013 or the Company Internal policy.

The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and experience for
appointment to the position of Directors, KMPs & Senior Management.



5)

c)

h)

A potential candidate should possess adequate qualification, expertise and experience for the position
he/she is considered for appointment. The Committee shall review qualifications, expertise and experience,
as well as the ethical and moral qualities possessed by such person, commensurate to the requirement for
the position.

The Committee shall determine the suitability of appointment of a person to the Board of Directors of the
Company by ascertaining the fit and proper criteria’ of the candidate. The candidate shall, at the time of
appointment, as well as at the time of renewal of directorship, fill in such form as approved by the
Committee to enable the Committee to determine the ‘Fit and Proper Criteria’. The indicative form to be
filled out is placed as Annexure 1 to this policy.

The Company shall not appoint or continue the employment of any person as whole time director who has
attained the age of seventy years. Provided that the term of the person holding this position may be
extended beyond the age of seventy years with the approval of shareholders by passing a special resolution
based on the explanatory statement annexed to the notice for such motion indicating the justification for
extension of appointment beyond seventy years.

The Committee shall ensure that there is an appropriate induction & training programme in place for new
directors, members of senior management, and KMP.

The Committee shall make recommendations to the Board concerning any matters relating to the
continuation in office of any director at any time including the suspension or termination of service of an
executive director as an employee of the Company subject to the provision of the law and their service
contract.

The Committee shall recommend any necessary changes to the Board.

Term / Tenure

a)

Managing Director/Whole-time Director

i) The Company shall appoint or re-appoint any person as its Chairman & Managing Director, Executive
Chairman, Managing Director or Executive Director for a term not exceeding five years at a time.

ii) No re-appointment shall be made earlier than one year before the expiry of term of the Director
appointed.

Independent Director

i) An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to five years on the Board of the Company and
will be eligible for re-appointment on passing of a special resolution by the Company and disclosure of
such appointment in the Board's report.

ii) No Independent Director shall hold office for more than two consecutive terms, but such Independent
Director shall be eligible for re- appointment in the Company as Independent Director after the expiry of
three years from the date of cessation as such in the Company. The Committee shall take into



consideration all the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the relevant rules, as
existing or as may be amended from time to time.

6) Remuneration

a)

In discharging its responsibilities, the Committee shall have regard to the following policy objectives:

i) To ensure the Company’s remuneration structures are equitable and aligned with the long-term
interests of the Company and its shareholders;

ii) To attract and retain competent executives;
iii) To plan short and long-term incentives to retain talent;
iv) To ensure that any severance benefits are justified.

The remuneration / compensation / commission etc. to the whole-time director, KMP, senior management &
other employees will be determined by the Committee and recommended to the Board for approval.

The remuneration to be paid to the MD and/or whole-time director shall be in accordance with the
percentage/ slabs/ conditions laid down in the Articles of Association of the Company and as per the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there under.

Increments to the existing remuneration / compensation structure of the Senior Management excluding the
Board of Directors comprising of members of Management one level below the Executive Director, including
the Functional Heads will be jointly decided by the Chairman & Managing Director and Head- Human
resources.

Remuneration to Whole-time/ Managing Director, KMP, senior management:

i) Fixed pay — The MD and/or whole-time director / KMP and senior management shall be eligible for a
monthly remuneration as may be approved by the Board on the recommendation of the Committee and
the shareholders wherever applicable. The breakup of the pay scale and quantum of perquisites
including, employer’s contribution towards provident fund, pension scheme, medical expenses, club
fees and other perquisites shall be decided and approved by the Board on the recommendation of the
Committee.

i) Minimum Remuneration — If in any financial year, the Company has no profits or its profits are
inadequate, it shall pay remuneration to its MD and/or Whole-time Director in accordance with the
provisions of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 and if the Company is not able to comply with
such provisions, previous approval of the Central Government shall be required to be obtained.

Remuneration to Non-Executive / Independent Director:

i)  Remuneration — The remuneration / commission shall be fixed as per the slabs and conditions
mentioned in the Articles of Association of the Company and with the provisions of Companies Act,
2013 along with the rules made there under.



7)

8)

9)

ii) Sitting Fees — The Non- Executive/ Independent Director may receive remuneration by way of fees for
attending meetings of Board or Committee thereof. Provided that the amount of such fees shall not
exceed the limits prescribed under Companies Act, 2013.

Removal

Due to reasons for any disqualification mentioned in the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under or
under any other applicable Act, rules and regulations, the Committee may recommend to the Board with reasons
recorded in writing, removal of a director, KMP or senior management personnel or functional heads, subject to
the provisions and compliance of the Act, rules and regulations.

Retirement

The director, KMP, senior management & functional heads shall retire as per the applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 along with the rules made there under and the prevailing policy of the Company. The
Board will have the discretion to retain the Directors, KMPs & Senior Management even after attaining the
retirement age, for the benefit of the Company.

Diversity

a) The Company aims to enhance the effectiveness of the Board by diversifying it and obtain the benefit out of
it by better and improved decision making. In order to ensure that the Company’s boardroom has
appropriate balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives that are imperative for the execution
of its business strategy, the Company shall consider a number of factors, including but not limited to skills,
industry experience, background, race and gender.

b) The policy shall confirm with the following two principles for achieving diversity on its Board:

i)  Decisions pertaining to recruitment, promotion and remuneration of the directors will be based on their
performance and competence; and

ii) For embracing diversity and being inclusive, best practices to ensure fairmess and equality shall be
adopted and there shall be zero tolerance for unlawful discrimination and harassment of any sort
whatsoever.

c) In order to ensure a balanced composition of executive, non-executive and independent directors on the
Board, the Company shall consider candidates from a wide variety of backgrounds, without discrimination
based on the following factors:

i) Gender - The Company shall not discriminate on the basis of gender in the matter of appointment of
director on the Board. The Company encourages the appointment of women at senior executive levels
to achieve a balanced representation on the Board.

ii) Age - Subject to the applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013, age shall be no bar for appointment
of an individual as director on the Board of the Company.



i) Nationality and ethnicity - The Company shall promote having a boardroom comprising of people
from different ethnic backgrounds so that the directors may efficiently contribute their thorough
knowledge, sources and understanding for the benefit of Company’s business;

iv) Physical disability - The Company shall not discriminate on the basis of any immaterial physical
disability of a candidate for appointment on Company’s Board, if he/she is able to efficiently discharge
the assigned duties.

v) Educational qualification - The proposed candidate shall possess desired team building traits that
effectively contribute to his/ her position in the Company. The Directors of the Company shall have a
mix of finance, legal and management background, that taken together, provide the Company with
considerable experience in a range of activities including varied industries, education, government,
banking, and investment.

10) Minutes of Committee Meeting

Proceedings of all meetings must be recorded as minutes and signed by the Chairman of the Committee at the
subsequent meeting. Minutes of the Committee meetings will be tabled at the subsequent Board and Committee
meeting.

11) Disclosure of this policy

The policy shall be disclosed in the Annual report of the Company, as required under Companies Act, 2013,
Rules made there under and the Listing Agreement, as amended from time to time and as may be required
under any other law for the time being in force.

12) Review

The Committee as and when required shall assess the adequacy of this policy and make any necessary or
desirable amendments to ensure it remains consistent with the Board’s objectives, current law and best practice.



SALIENT FEATURES OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF SUBSIDIARY / ASSOCIATES / JOINT VENTURES AS PER COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Part A: Subsidiaries

AOC-1

Annexure-2

Name of Subsidiary Reporting Reporting Share capital Reserve & Surplus Total Assets Total Liabilities Investments Turnover Profit Provisions Profit Propo %

S.Ngq Company Period Currency & before for After sed sharehol
exchange Taxation Taxation Taxation Divide | ding
rate, if in nd
foreign
subsidiary

1. One97 Communications April to

India Limited March INR 4015,00,000 (43,70,018) 4024,16,379 52,86,398 - 250 46,47,943 (1,00,584 ) 47,48,527 100%
2. One97 Communications FZ- January to AED - 100%
LLC December 15,00,000 (41,27,404 ) 78,26,534 104,53,938 - 27,09,381 70,63,234 70,63,234

3. One97 Communications April to NRN (1041,35,322) 100%
Nigeria Limited March 100,00,000 (3369,03,571) 7414,61,041 10683,64,612 - 4385,78,871 2277,23,324 3318,58,646

4. One97 Communications April to Singapore - 100%
Singapore Private Limited March Dollor SGD 33,56,100 (67,517) 22,76,229 7,51,008 17,63,363 10,69,581 7,12,995 7,12,995

5. One97 (U.S.A.) Inc. January to US Dollar 5,197 100%
December 5,32,000 (2,729) 5,86,166 56,894 - 2,03,557 19,440 14,243

7. One97 Communications April to Tanzanian - 100%
Tanzania Private Limited March Shilling TZS 10000,00,000 (4168,20,607 ) 21221,98,760 15390,19,368 - 12676,53,831 5839,70,409 5839,70,409

8. One97 Communications January to Rwandan - 100%
Rwanda Private Limited December Franc 600,00,000 (799,93,086 ) 711,70,351 911,63,437 - - 172,53,697 172,53,697

9. One97 Communications July to Bangladeshi - 100%
Bangladesh Private Limited June Taka BDT 38,76,000 1232,52,965 1609,83,698 338,54,733 - 346,90,232 153,94,626 153,94,626

10. | One97 Communications July to Ugandan (307,75,844 ) 100%
Uganda Limited June Shilling UGX 4920,00,000 (4453,09,872) 13987,83,961 13520,93,834 - 7173,75,008 580,23,395 887,99,240

11. One 97 Malaysia Sdn Bdn Jan to Malaysia - 100%
Dec Ringett 1,00,000 (31,921) 72,508 4,429 - - 21,592 21,592

12. | One 97 Benin SA Jan to West African - 100%
Dec CFA franc 100,00,000 (533,12,811) 2345,54,904 2778,67,714 - 268,55,601 1272,23,706 1272,23,706

XOF

13. [ One 97 Ivory Coast SA Jan to West African - 100%

Dec CFA franc 100,00,000 (219,44,260 ) 249,00,696 368,44,956 - - 41,37,295 41,37,295
XOF

14. | Paytm Labs Inc April to CAD - 100%
March 2,50,100 (57,24,977) 131,73,653 186,48,529 - - 69,54,650 69,54,650

15. | One97 Communications April to INR (43,31,253) 25,07,721 (46,09,177) 1,00,584 (47,09,761) 100%

India Limited March 40,15,00,000 39,96,76,468 39,90,10,000 5,95,000 -
16. | Paytm Entertainment April to INR 45,000 - - - 100%
Limited March 1,00,000 55,000 - -




17. | Acumen Game April to INR (140) 1,00,000 - (140) 100%
Entertainment Private March 1,00,000 - - (140) -
Limited

18. Paytm Financial Services April to INR 12,14,520 - 12,14,520 100%
Limited March 2,00,00,000 2,12,14,520 - - 12,14,520 -

19. | Paytm Money Limited April to INR (5,10,03,285) (5,10,03,285) 100%

March 10,00,00,000 6,56,74,140 1,66,77,425 - - (5,10,03,285) -

20. | Mobiquest Mobile April to INR 1,94,05,215 (1,40,85,714) 55%
Technologies Private March 27,45,830 99,70,147 8,33,03,340 - 8,44,80,299 (1,40,85,714)
Limited

21. Xceed IT Solutions Private April to INR (97,23,806) (17,403) 55%
Limited March 5,00,000 7,46,341 46,300 - - (17,403)

22. Wasteland Entertainment April to INR 13,15,68,482 11,387 (6,19,65,860) 70%
Private Limited March 3,29,960 9,00,72,178 8,70,97,080 - 9,40,83,106 (6,19,54,473)

23. | Urja Money Private Limited April to INR 29,94,318 - (4,25,32,558) 54%

March 2,18,60,800 35,34,699 56,71,661 2,01,75,484 29,49,597 (4,25,32,558)

24. Little Internet Private April to INR 3,25,36,15,145 - (9,60,82,812) 63%
Limited March 22,38,33,960 3,53,57,05,818 | 5,82,56,712 3,27,4431,359 | 3,70,46,572 (9,60,82,812)

25. Nearbuy India Private April to INR 38,13,729 - (15,88,21,797) 63%
Limited March 36,98,340 20,11,09,776 19,35,97,709 7,03,00,652 8,02,93,914 (15,88,21,797)

Name of the Subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year
No subsidiary have been liquidated or sold during the year 2017-18
Part B: Associates and Joint Venture

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint Ventures

Paytm Payment Bank Loginext Solutions Private Socomo Technologies QorQL Private Limited

Limited

Limited

Private Limited

1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date March 31, 2018 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2018
(Audited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
2. Date on which the Joint Venture was acquired NA NA NA NA
3. Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the company on the
year end
No. 19,59,04,900 2,79,443 28,800 2,000,000 Compulsorily

Convertible Debentures

Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint Venture

INR 1959.049Mn

INR 450.50 Mn

INR 427.89 Mn

INR 20 Mn




Extend of Holding% 49% 31% 11% 32%
4. Description of how there is significant influence The Company is holding The Company is holding The Company is holding The Company is holding
significant stake in the significant stake in the significant stake in the significant stake in the
Company. Company. Company. Company.
5. Reason why the Joint Venture is not consolidated Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable
6. Networth attributable to Shareholding as per latest audited INR 1759.39 Mn INR 66.5 Mn INR 331.61 Mn INR 16 Mn
Balance Sheet
7. Profit/Loss for the year (Share of Group)
(i). Considered in Consolidation INR 227.68 Mn INR 22.16 Mn INR 31.56 Mn 0
(ii). Not Considered in Consolidation Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable
The Company does not have any joint venture in terms of the Companies Act, 2013
For One97 Communications Limited
Sd/-
Vijay Shekhar Sharma
Chairman
DIN: 00466521
Sd/- Sd/-
Vimal Chawla Madhur Deora
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
M. No. 16746
Sd/-
Vikas Garg

Place: Noida
Date: May 18, 2018

Senior Vice President-Finance




Annexure-3
Form No. MGT-9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As on the financial year ended on March 31, 2017

[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules,

2014]

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS

CIN

U72200DL2000PLC108985

Registration Date

22.12.2000

Name of the Company

One 97 Communications Limited

Category/sub category

Company limited by shares/India-non Government Company

Address of registered office of the Company 1* Floor, Devika Tower, Nehru Place, New Delhi — 110019, India, In

Whether Listed Company - Yes/No

No

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITY OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the Company shall be stated:

S. No. | Name and description of the main NIC Codes of the % to total turnover of the Company
product/services Product/Services

1. Payments 63999 66.85

2. Commerce 63999 22.67

3. Cloud 63999 10.01

4. Others 63999 0.47

ITII. PARTICULAR OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE OF THE COMPANIES

Limited

Sr. | Name of Subsidiary | Address CIN Holding/ Percentage Applicable
No. | Company Subsidiary/ | of Holding | Section under
Associate the
Companies
Act, 2013
1. | One97 Ist  floor Devika | U67100DL2010P Subsidiary 100% 2(87)

Communications India

Towers Nehru place, | LC211612
New Delhi-110019,
India. India

Limited

2. | Paytm Entertainment

136, st Floor, | U74999DL2017P Subsidiary 100% 2(87)
Devika Tower, Nehru | LC321165
Place, New Delhi-
110019, India, India

3. | Paytm Money Limited

136, Ist Floor, | U72900DL2017P Subsidiary 100% 2(87)
Devika Tower, Nehru | LC323936
Place, New Delhi-
110019, India

4. | Paytm

Services Ltd.

136, Ist Floor, Devika | U65999D1L2017P Subsidiary 100% 2(87)
Tower, Nehru Place, | LC315115
New Delhi — 110019,
India




5. | Uja Money Private | Ground Floor, Khatau | U93000MH2012P | Subsidiary 54% 2(87)
Limited Building, 8, Alkesh | TC237284
Dinesh Mody Marg,
Fort Mumbai,
Maharashtra-400001
6. | Wasteland 242, Floor-G, New | U74120MH2015P | Subsidiary 70% 2(87)
Entertainment Private Mahalaxmi Silk Mill, | TC271160
Limited HLN Marg,
Mathurdas Mill
Compound, Delisle
Road. Lower Parel,
Mumbai. Mumbai
City.  Maharashtra-
400013
7. | Mobiquest Mobile | F-1/171, Lajpat | U22130DL2007P Subsidiary 55% 2(87)
Technologies Private | Nagar-1, Delhi- | TC158782
Limited 110024
8. | Little Internet Private | Nova Miller, | U72200KA2015P Subsidiary 63% 2(87)
Limited Thimmaiah Road, | TC080287
Vasanth Nagar,
Bangalore,
Karnataka-560052
9. | Xceed IT Solution | F-1/171, Lajpat | U72200DL2005P Subsidiary 55% 2(87)
Private Limited Nagar-1, Delhi- | TC139611
110024
10. | Nearbuy India Private | Building No. 22, | U74900DL2010P Subsidiary 63% 2(87)
Limited Mezzanine Floor, | TC259391
Pushp Vihar
Commercial
Complex, LSC
Madangir, New
Delhi-110062
11. | Acumen Game | 136, Ist Floor, | U74999DL2017P Subsidiary 55% 2(87)
Entertainment Private | Devika Tower, Nehru | TC325912
Limited Place, New Delhi-
110019, India
12. | One97 106, First Floor, | Foreign Company Subsidiary 100% 2(87)
Communications FZ- | Building No. 11,
LLC Dubai Internet City
Dubai, UAE.
13. | One97 Adol  House 15, | Foreign Company Subsidiary 100% 2(87)
Communications CIPM Avenue,
Nigeria Limited Alausa, Ikeja — Lagos
14. | One97 3 Raffles Place #06- | Foreign Company Subsidiary 100% 2(87)
Communications 01 Bharat Building
Singapore Private | Singapore 048617
Limited
15. | One97 (U.S.A.) Inc. 1700, Shattuck Ave, | Foreign Company Subsidiary 100% 2(87)
STE353, Berkeley,
CA 94709, US
16. | One97 Office No 17, 2nd | Foreign Company Subsidiary 100% 2(87)
Communications Floor, Maktaba
Tanzania Private | Square Business Park,
Limited * Dar Es Salaam,
Tanzania
17. | One97 Kigali City Tower, | Foreign Company Subsidiary 100% 2(87)




Communications Plot No. 6418, 14th
Rwanda Private | Floor, Avenue Du
Limited * Commerce, Kigali,
Rwanda
18. | One97 House No.-03, Road | Foreign Company Subsidiary 100% 2(87)
Communications No.20, Flat-B3,
Bangladesh Private | Gulshan-1, = Dhaka-
Limited* 1212
19. | One97 Plot 1B Kira Road, | Foreign Company Subsidiary 100% 2(87)
Communications P.O Box 24544
Uganda Limited* Kampala, Uganda
20. | One 97 Malaysia Sdn. | 230A, Jalan Bandar | Foreign Company Subsidiary 100% 2(87)
Bdn.* 13, Taman Malawati,
Kuala Lumpur
21. | One 97 Benin SA* Ilot 1108-P, Quartier | Foreign Company Subsidiary 100% 2(87)
Agontikon, 01 BP
144, Cotonou Benin,
Tel: 21 32 69 33
22. | One 97 Ivory Coast | Abidjan Cocody | Foreign Company Subsidiary 100% 2(87)
SA* Riviera 1II, Cabinet
NBA,04 BP 1502,
Abidjan 04, Ivory
Coast
23. | Paytm Labs Inc. * 220 Adelaide Street | Foreign Company Subsidiary 100% 2(87)
West Toronto,
Ontario,
MS5H 1W7

* Subsidiary of One97 Communications Singapore Private Limited




IV. Shareholding Pattern (Equity Share Capital Breakup as % to Total Equity)

(i) Category wise shareholding

Category No. of shares held at the beginning of the year No. of shares held at the end of the year %
Change
during
the year

Demat Physical Total % of total Demat Physical Total % of total
shares shares
A. Promoters
(1) Indian
a. 9,374,106 - 9,374,106 19.95% 9,051,624 - 9,051,624 16.36% (3.59%)
Individual/HUF

b. Central Govt. - - - - - - - - -

c. State Govt. - - - - - - - - -

d. Bodies - - - - - - - - -
Corporate

e. Bank/FI - - - - - - - - -

f. Any other - - - - - - - - -

Sub Total 9,374,106 - 9,374,106 19.95% 9,051,624 - 9,051,624 16.36% (3.59%)
AaQ) :-

(2) Foreign

a. NRIs - - - - - - - - -

b. Other - - - - - - - - -

c. Bodies - - - - - - - - -
Corporate

d. Banks/FI - - - - - - - - -

e. Any other - - - - - - - - -

Sub Total - - - - - - - - -
(A)Q2) :-

Total 9,374,106 - 9,374,106 19.95% 9,051,624 - 9,051,624 16.36% (3.59%)
shareholding
of Promoter
(A)=
AMHA)Q2)

(B) Public
Shareholding

1. Institutions

a. Mutual Funds - - - - - - - - -

b. Banks/FI - - - - - - - - -

c. Central Govt. - - - - - - - - -

d. State Govt. - - - - - - - - -

e. Venture - - - - - - - - -
Capital Fund

f. Insurance - - - - - - - - -
Companies

g. Flls - - - - - - - - -

h. Foreign - - - - - - - - -




Venture Capital
Fund

i. other
(specity)

Sub Total
B)) :-

2. Non
Institution

a. Body
Corporate

1. Indian

3,74,613

7,500

3,82,113

0.81%

3,34,944

7,500

3,42,444

0.62%

(0.19%)

ii. Overseas

3,63,17,920

6,31,432

3,69,49,352

78.63%

4,46,61,596

8,85,417

4,55,47,013

82.33

3.7%

b. Individuals

i. Individual
shareholders
holding
nominal share
capital upto Rs.
1 lakh

73,208

8,903

82,111

0.17%

81,719

1,236

82,955

0.15%

(0.02%)

ii. Individual
shareholders
holding
nominal share
capital in excess
of Rs. 1 lakh

2,02,971

2,02,971

0.43%

1,91,371

1,09,864

3,01,235

0.54%

0.11%

Other (specity)

Sub Total
B)(2) :-

3,69,68,712

6,47,835

3,76,16,547

80.05%

4,52,69,630

10,04,017

4,62,73,647

83.64%

3.59%

Total Public
Shareholding
B)=B)(1)+
B)(2)

3,69,68,712

6,47,835

3,76,16,547

80.05%

4,52,69,630

10,04,017

4,62,73,647

83.64%

3.59%

C. Shares held
by Custodian
for GDRs &
ADRs

Grand Total
(A+B+C)

4,63,42,818

6,47,835

4,69,90,653

100%

5,43,21,254

10,04,017

5,53,25,271

100%




)  Shareholding of Promoter
S. Shareholder’s Shareholding at the beginning of the year Shareholding at the end of the year % change
No. | Name in share
holding
during
the year
No. of % of total | % of share No. of % of % of share
Shares shares pledged/encumbered | Shares total pledged/encumbered
to total shares shares to total shares
1. Mr. Vijay 93,74,106 19.95% NIL 90,51,624 | 16.36% NIL (3.59%)
Shekhar
Sharma
Total 93,74,106 19.95% NIL 90,51,624 | 16.36% NIL (3.59%)
i) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (Please specify, if there is no change)
S.No. | Shareholder’s Name Shareholding at the beginning of the year Cumulative Shareholding at the end of
the year
1. Vijay Shekhar No. of Shares % of total shares No. of Shares % of total shares
Sharma
At the beginning of 93,74,106 19.95% 90,51,624 16.36%
the year
Date wise Increase / Decrease
in Promoters Shareholding
during the year specifying the
reasons for increase / decrease
(e.g. allotment / transfer /
bonus/ sweat equity etc):
Transfer of Shares — (3,22,482) 90,51,624 16.36%
06.10.2017
At the end of the year - - 90,51,624 16.36%




(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

S. For each of the top Reason of Shareholding at the beginning of the Cumulative Shareholding during
No. | 10 Shareholders increase/decrease year the Year
No. of Shares % of total shares | No. of Shares % of total
shares

1. Alipay Singapore E-Commerce Private Limited

At the beginning of the year 1,75,44,525 37.34% - -

Date wise No Change during the year

increase/decrease

At the end of the year - - 1,75,44,525 31.71%*
2. SVF India Holding (Cayman) Limited

At the beginning of the year Nil Nil 1,13,26,223 20.47%

At the end of the year 1,13,26,223 20.47%
3. M/s. SAIF III Mauritius Company Limited

At the beginning of the year 9,418,078 20.04% 74,91,061 13.54%

Date wise

increase/decrease

06.10.2017 Transfer of shares 19,27,017

At the end of the year 74,91,061 13.54%
4. Alibaba.com Singapore E-Commerce Private Limited

At the beginning of the year 44,28,214 9.42% - -

Date wise No Change during the year

increase/decrease

At the end of the year - - 44,28,214 8%
5. SAIF Partners India I'V Limited

At the beginning of the year 3,840,082 8.17% 30,54,370 5.52%

Date wise

increase/decrease

06.10.2017 Transfer of Shares 7,85,712




At the end of the year 30,54,370 5.52%
6. Mountain Capital Fund L.P.

At the beginning of the year 6,006,668 1.29% - -

Date wise No Change during the year

increase/decrease

At the end of the year - - 6,006,668 1.10%
7. SAIF India V FII Holdings Limited

At the beginning of the year 4,23,300 0.90% - -

Date wise No Change during the year

increase/decrease

At the end of the year - - 4,23,300 0.77%
8. SAIF Partners India V Limited

At the beginning of the year 558,344 1.19% 3,57,491 0.65%

Date wise

increase/decrease

06.10.2017 Transfer of Shares 2,00,853

At the end of the year - - 3,57,491 0.65%
9. One97 Employees Welfare Trust

At the beginning of the year 364,113 0.79%* 3,26,639 0.59%

Date wise

increase/decrease

18.12.2017 Transfer of Shares 37,474

At the end of the year - - 3,26,639 0.59%
10. | Bopu Global Private Equity Investment Portfolio PT LP

At the beginning of the year Nil Nil 1,53,985 0.28%

At the end of the year - - 1,53,985 0.28%

*During the year, the Company raised funds by issuance of equity shares through Private Placement cum preferential basis and under ESOP
scheme. Hence, there is a change in the percentage of holding of the shareholders, though there is no actual change in the no. of shares held by

them.

(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP):




S.No.

For each of the
Directors of the Co-
mpany and KMP

Shareholding at the beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding during the Year

No. of Shares

% of total shares

No. of Shares

% of total shares

Mr. Vijay Shekhar
Sharma

At the beginning of
the year

93,74,106

19.95%

90,51,624

16.36%

Date wise Increase /
Decrease in Promoters
Shareholding during
the year specifying the
reasons for increase /
decrease (e.g.
allotment / transfer /
bonus/ sweat equity
etc):

Transfer of Shares —
06.10.2017

(3,22,482)

90,51,624

16.36%

At the end of the year

90,51,624

16.36%

Mark Schwartz

At the beginning of
the year

Date wise Increase /
Decrease in Promoters
Shareholding  during
the year specifying the
reasons for increase /
decrease (e.g.
allotment / transfer /
bonus/ sweat equity
etc):

At the end of the year

83,597

0.15%

Mr. Neeraj Arora’'

At the beginning of
the year

! Ceased to be a Director with effect from 06.02.2018




Date wise Increase /
Decrease in Promoters
Shareholding during
the year specifying the
reasons for increase /
decrease (e.g.
allotment / transfer /
bonus/ sweat equity

etc):

At the end of the year - - 2500 0.0045%
V. Indebtedness
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

Secured Loans Unsecured Loans | Deposit Total Indebtedness
excluding deposits

Indebtedness at the
beginning of the financial
year
i. Principal Amount Rs. 905,880,712 NIL NIL Rs. 905,880,712
ii. Interest due but not paid - -
iii. Interest accrued but not due Rs (3,171,777) Rs (3,171,777)
Change in Indebtedness
during the financial year
i. Addition Rs 1,513,766,664 - - Rs 1,513,766,664
ii. Reduction
Net Change Rs 1,513,766,664 Rs 1,513,766,664
Indebtedness at the end of
the financial year
i. Principal Amount Rs 2,416,475,599 NIL NIL Rs 2,416,475,599
ii. Interest due but not paid - -
iii. Interest accrued but not due - -
Total (i+ii+iii) Rs 2,416,475,599 NIL NIL Rs 2,416,475,599

VI. Remuneration of Director and Key Managerial Personnel

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

S. No. | Particulars of Remuneration Name of Total Amount
MD/WTD/Manager
Vijay Shekhar Sharma
1. Gross salary 2,76,62,400 2,76,62,400
(a) Salary as per provisions
contained in section 17(1) of the
Income tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) 23,37,600 23,37,600




Income-tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under
section 17(3) Income tax Act,

1961
2. Stock Options
3. Sweat Equity
4. Commission - as % of profit - others,

specify...

Others, please specify

Total A

3,00,00,000

3,00,00,000

Ceiling as per Act

As per rule 7 of Companies
(Appointment & Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014
Managerial Personnel eligible to be
paid exceeding ceiling under
Schedule IV.

B. Remuneration to other directors

S. No. | Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total Amount

A: Independent Directors

1 Fee for attending board committee NIL NIL NIL
meetings

2. Commission NIL NIL NIL

3. Others (specify) NIL NIL NIL
Total (A) NIL NIL NIL

B: Other non-executive Directors

4. Fee for attending board committee NIL NIL NIL
meetings

5. Commission NIL NIL NIL

6. Others (specify) NIL NIL NIL
Total (B) NIL NIL NIL
Total (A+B) NIL NIL NIL
Overall ceiling as per Act - - -




C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD / Manager /Whole time Director

S. Nq Particulars of Remuneration Name of KMP
Vimal Chawla Amit Gupta Amit Sinha Madhur Total Amount
(Company (Company (CFO)* Deora
Secretary) Secretary) (CFO)**
1. Gross salary 9,82,143 54,51,997 24,75,765 1,61,84,130 2,50,94,035
(d) Salary as per provisions
contained in section 17(1) of
the Income tax Act, 1961
(e) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2)
Income-tax Act, 1961
(f) Profits in lieu of salary under
section 17(3) Income tax Act,
1961
2. Stock Options 66,73,786 113,454,310 | 12,01,28,096
3. Sweat Equity
4. Commission - as % of profit -
others, specify
Others, please specify
Total A 9,82,143 54,51,997 91,49,551 12,96,38,440 | 14,52,22,131
Ceiling as per Act Not Applicable
*from 01.04.2017 to 10.06.2017
**from 10.06.2017 to 31.03.2018
VII.Penalties / Punishment/ Compounding of Offences
Type Section of the | Brief Details of Authority Appeal made, if any (give
Companies Description Penalty / [RD/NCLT/ Details)
Act, 1956 Punishment/ COURT]
Compounding
fees imposed

A. Companies

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

NIL

B. Directors

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

NIL

C. Other Officers in default

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

NIL




AOC-2

Annexure 4

Details of Related Party Transactions-

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,

2014)-

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis.

SL. No. Particulars

Details

a) Name (s) of the related party & nature of
relationship
b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction

C) Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction

e) Justification for entering into such contracts or
arrangements or transactions’

f) Date of approval by the Board

9) Amount paid as advances, if any

h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in
General meeting as required under first proviso to
section 188

d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or | There were no transaction or arrangement which were not
transaction including the value, if any at arm’s length basis

Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis:

the Technical Support
Services, the Co-Sharing
Services and any other
Additional Services by
OCL to Acumen with
regard to various games,
including but not limited
to games of skill, games
of chance, mobile
games, lottery games,
quizzes, card games and
event guessing.

Acumen, it shall pay the
CAS Fees to One97.

PG Fees - One97 shall
provide the  Payment
Services to the Recipient in
consideration for the PG
Fees.

Name (s) of the Nature of Duration of the Salient terms of the Date of Amoun

related party & contracts/arrang | contracts/arrangements | contracts or approval t paid

nature of ements/transacti | /transaction arrangements or by the as

relationship on transaction including the | Board advanc
value, if any Amounts In es, if
INR any

AGtech Holdings | Business Providing of Customer | CAS Fees - In | 24.07.2017

Limited and Acumen | Cooperation Access Services, the | consideration of One97

Game Entertainment | Agreement Payment Services, the | providing the Customer

Private Limited (“BCA”) Consultancy  Services, | Access Services to




In order to assist with the
operation of the
Acumen’s business from
time to time to further
the objectives of the
Joint Venture
Agreement, One97 and
AGtech have agreed to
provide or procure the
provision of the Services
as defined in the BCA, to
Acumen on the terms
and conditions set out in
BCA.

BCA shall become
effective from the
Commencement  Date,
and shall be valid for an
initial period of 3 (three)
years thereafter.

Acumen Game
Entertainment Private
Limited

Business Transfer
Agreement
(“BTA”)

Business Transfer
Agreement for transfer
of online gaming
business being operated
through  the  One97
Gaming Platforms, as
carried on or powered by
One97 as on date and the
Completion Date
together with all Assets
and Assumed Liabilities
pertaining thereto, and
which are not solely
being charged through
the telecom network on a
slump sale basis.

The termination shall be
as per the agreed terms
& conditions of BTA.

The Consideration for the
transfer of the Transferred
Undertaking as a going
concern on a slump sale
basis shall be as per agreed
terms & conditions of BTA.

24.07.2017
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Annexure-5

FORM NO. MR -3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule no.9 of the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

One97 Communications Limited
(U72200DL2000PLC108985)

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by One97 Communications Limited (hereinafter called “the
Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company, books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers,
agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our
opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2018
complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-
processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent based on the management representation
letter/ confirmation, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2018, according to the provisions of:

(i)  The Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the rules made thereunder;
(i)  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder; (not
applicable)
(iii)  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;
(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the
extent of Foreign Direct Investment,
(v)  The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of
India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-
a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing Regulations, 2015°), (not applicable)
b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; (not applicable)
c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015; (not applicable)
d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009 (not applicable)
e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits)
Regulations, 2014 (not applicable)
f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008 (not applicable)

CORPORATE OFFICE
D — 28, South Extn. Part — I, New Delhi — 110049 India | T: +91 11 40622200 | F: + 91 11 40622201 | E : info@piassociates.co.in
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& Associates
Practising Company Secretaries
g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 (not applicable)
h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2009 (not applicable); and
i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;
(not applicable)

(vi) We, based upon the Management Representation, further report that there are adequate systems and
processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and
ensure compliance with the following pertinent laws, rules, regulations and guidelines:-

a) Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 and Provisions of
Employee State Insurance Act, 1948;

b) The Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934;

c) The Negotiable Instrument Act, 1881

d) Workmen Compensation Act, 1923, Equal Remuneration Act, 1976 and all other allied
labour laws, as informed / confirmed to us;

e) Income Tax Act 1961 and Direct Taxes (Service Tax, Central Sales Tax and Value Added
Tax);

f) Prevention of Money Laundering Act 2002;

g) Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act,
2013;

h) And other applicable Acts and Rules applicable to the Company.

However, our Report does not in any manner comment upon the compliance of the above mentioned laws
and also not being qualified thereto.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
(i)  Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and
(i)  The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with the Stock Exchange(s) (not applicable)

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above. However, the Company has been generally
regular in filing all the forms required to be filed with Registrar of Companies (“ROC”) under the
Companies Act..

We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors,
Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of
Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the
provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance except where shorter notice was given to call meeting of
the Board, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the
agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and recorded as
part of the minutes.
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We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the
size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period the Company has following events:

a)

b)

d)

That the Company has passed Special Resolution on May 24, 2017 to execute and perform its
obligations under the business transfer agreement, and to transfer its e-wallet operations to Paytm
Payments Bank Limited (“Transferee”) on a going concern basis by way of slump sale, for a
consideration of a sum of Rs. 650,000,000 (Rupees Six Hundred Fifty Million) to be paid by the
Transferee.
That the Company has passed Special Resolution on August 3, 2017 to issue and allot, on a
preferential basis, 1,618,032 (one million six hundred eighteen thousand thirty two) equity shares
of the face value of Rs. 10 (ten rupees) per share at a premium of Rs. 7848.01 (seven thousand
eight hundred rupees forty eight and one paise only) per share as fully paid-up to SB Investment
Holdings (UK) Limited in accordance with the Act.
That the Company has passed Special Resolution on November 03, 2017 to issue and allot, on a
preferential cum private placement basis, 6,472,127 (six million four hundred seventy two
thousand one hundred and twenty seven) equity shares having par value of Rs. 10 (ten rupees
only) per share and at a share premium of Rs. 7978.79 (Seven thousand nine hundred seventy
eight and seventy nine paise) per share, as fully paid-up, to SVF India Holdings (Cayman)
Limited in accordance with the Act.
That the Company has altered Memorandum and Articles of Association in accordance with the
Act.
For Pl & Associates,
Company Secretaries

Sd/-

Nitesh Latwal
(Partner)

ACS No.: A32109
C P No.: 16276

Date: 19" July, 2018
Place: New Delhi

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as “Annexure A” and forms an
integral part of this report.
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Practising Company Secretaries

“Annexure A”

The Members,
One97 Communications Limited

Our Secretarial Audit Report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.

2.

Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our
Responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was
done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that
the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the Company.

Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of
laws, rules and regulation and happening of events etc.

The Compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards are the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification
of procedures on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to future viability of the Company nor of
the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the
Company.

For Pl & Associates,
Company Secretaries

Sa/-

Nitesh Latwal
(Partner)

ACS No.: A32109
C P No.: 16276
Date: 19" July 2018
Place: New Delhi
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S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP Sector 42, Sector fosd

Chartered Accountants Gurgaon-122 002, Haryana, India

Tel :+91 124 454 4000
Fax : +91 124 464 4050

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of One97 Communications Limited
Report on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of One97
Communications Limited (“the Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018,
the Statement of Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash
Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) with respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including
other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) specified under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularitics; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial control that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone Ind AS financial statements based on
our audit. We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards
and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and
the Rules made thereunder. We conducted our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements in
accordance with the Standards on Auditing, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India,
as specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the standalone Ind AS financial statements.
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Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2018, its loss including other
comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies {Auditor’s report) Order, 2016 (“the Order™) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
Annexure | a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order,

2. Asrequired by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that;

{a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

(b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books;

{c) The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the books of account;

{d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended:

ie) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2018, and
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the dircctors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2018, from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164 (2) of the Act;

{f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements and the operating
clfectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 27 to this report;

(g} With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companics {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

1. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
standalone Ind AS financial statements — Refer Note 28 to the standalone Ind AS financial
statements;

1. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.
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iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For 8.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

Membership Number: 94524
Place of Signature: N o-\chow

Date: |52 p,l&_‘t,g Y BIR
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Annexure | referred to in paragraph (1) of report on the other legal & regulatory requiremen't of our
report of even date
Re: One97 Communications Limited (“the Company™)

Vi,

¥ii.

viii.

a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of fixed assets.

b) All fixed assets have not been physically verified by the management during the year but there is a
regular programme of verification which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification,

¢} According to the information and explanations given by the management, there are no immovable
properties, included in property, plant and equipment of the Company and accordingly, the requirements
under paragraph 3{i}c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company’s business does not involve inventories and, accordingly, the requirements under paragraph
3(ii) of the Owrder are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans, secured
or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iii)a),
(b} and {c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no loans,
investments, guarantees, and securities granted in respect of which provisions of Section 185 and 186 of
the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable and hence not commented upon.

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Companies {Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the
pravisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not specified the maintenance
of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, for the services provided by the
Company.

a) The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including
provident fund, employees” state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, goods and services tax, duty
of custom, value added tax, cess and other statutory dues applicable to it,

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of
provident fund, employees® state insurance, income-lax, service tax, goods and services tax, sales-tax, duty
of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other statutory dues were outstanding, at the vear end,
for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

¢) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of income tax, sales-lax,
service tax, goods and services tax, customs duty, excise duty, value added tax and cess which have not
been deposited on account of any dispute.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company
has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to a financial institution, bank or government or dues
1o debenture holders.,
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ix,

Xi.

%1

xiii.

Xiv,

XY,

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not raised any
money way of initial public offer / further public offer / debt instruments and term loans hence, reporting
under clause 3(ix) is not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the
financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by the management, we report
that no fraud on or by the officers and employees of the Company has been noticed or reported during the

year,

Based on our audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the financial
statements and according to the information and explanations given by the management, we report that the
managerial remuneration has been paid / provided in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by
the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013/ Rule 7(2) of Companies
{Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 since the remuneration has been
paid after fulfilling the conditions specified in the said Rule.

In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon,

According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with the related
parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the
details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has complied with
provisions of Section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the preferential allotment or private
placement of shares during the year. According to the information and explanations given by the
management, we report that the amounts raised, have been used for the purposes for which the funds were
raised.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not entered
into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him.

{this space is intentionally lefi blank)
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xvi.  According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of Section 43-1A of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

For 5.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
v ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

Partner
Membership

Place of Signature: Mﬂm
Date: | 2, Mewgy 20 P
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ONEYT COMMUNICATIONS LIMTED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of One97 Communications Limited (“the
Company™) as of March 31, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date,

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the
saleguarding ol its assels, the prevention and detection of lrawds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013,

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to these standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™)
and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143{10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
contrals over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal conirol based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis For our audit
opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these Financial
Statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial
statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these standalone
financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the com
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and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these
Standalone Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
standalone financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial conirol over financial reporting with
reference to these standalone financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adeguate internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2018,
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

AN
N

per Yogender Seth

Partner A

Membership Number: 94524
Place of Signature; N A

Date: ]?3 Hﬂﬂ“ lng




Ome¥T Communicaibens Limited
Eeslanice Shoet a5 af March 31, 218
(Amoums in INE Crores, unbess odberwise siaed)

Mo Asal As ol
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Ome¥T Communications Limited
Statement of Profit and Lose fer the year emded March 51, 2018

A in INKE Crores, unless otherwhe siated)

For the year ended For the year ended

Botgs  March 31 2018 Mirch L, 37

Continuing speratiens
Incame
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One®T Commumnicatbons Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2018

LAmounts in INR Crores, anless otherwise staled)

3} Equity Share Capital

H Mo, of Shares INR (in )
Eqquity shares of INR 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid {im eraores)
At April 1, 2016* 4.59 46.23
Shares issued dunng the year LULE 052
Shares issued during the year - ESOP a0l o4
At March 31, 2017 ALfit 46.95
Shares issed during tw year [ B8
Steres 1ssued during the year - ESOP 0.02 024
At Muorek 31, 2018 AT £5.32

* Wed of treasury shares 326,639 (March 31, 304 7: 364,113} at nal cost through employes welfare st

b} Instruments entirely equity in nature (refer nofe 11 (e))
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At March 31, 2017 -
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Share based payment expenses - - TG .26
Eeceip! of share application money 005 - - = 2 0o
Ampurt received on ssse of shares - 645545 - B A5 46
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Cther adj . - 1355 - - 355

As st March 31, 2018 s 11,524.23 (4 10LER 127.70 (3.54) 7344660
Tha: aceoipanying notes are an misgral part of the Francial Sttements,
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One?? Commeanications Lindied
Statemsent of Cash Flaw Tor the year ended March 31, 2015

{hmounts in INK Cranes, unless otherwise stated

March 51, 2018 March 31, 2017
Cash Mow Nross eperating aclivities:
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MNotes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
{Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

1. Corporate information

One?97 Communications Limited (“the Company ™) is a public company domiciled in India and is incorporated under
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™). The registered office of the Company is located at 1% Floor,
Devika Tower, Nehm Place, New Delhi - 110019, The principal place of business of the Company is in India,

The Company is in the business of providing payment services primarily as payment facilitator and providing voice
and messaging platforms to the telecom operators and enierprise customers.

Till May 22, 2017 the Company was in the business of issning and operating semi-closed wallet (e-wallet
operations) under Prepaid Payment Instruments (PPI) licence granted by REIL On May 23, 2017 the Company has
transferred ils e- wallel operations to Payum Payments Bank Limited on a going concern basis. With effect from
March 27, 2017, the Company transferred Physical Goods Marketplace Business to Paytm E-Commerce Limited.

The [linancial stalemenis were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the direciors on
May 18, 2018.

2, Significant accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

These standalone financial statements (“Financial Statements™) of the Company have been prepared in accordance
with Indian Accounting Standard (“Ind AS™) notified under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2013

as amended from time 1o time.

Effective April 1, 2016, the Company has adopted all the Ind AS standards and the adoption was carried out in
accordance with Ind AS 101 “First time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards”, with April 1, 2015 as the
transition date. The transition was carried out from Indian Accounting Principles generally accepted in India as
prescribed under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 ({Indian GAAP).

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for centain financial assets and
liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy on financial instruments) which have been measured at fair

value.

Accounting policies have been consistently applicd except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially
adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

All the amounts included in the financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (‘Rupees’ or ‘Rs.” or ‘INR’) and
are rounded to the nearest crores up 1o two decimal places, except per share data and unless stated otherwise.

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies

a. Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assels and liabilities in the balance shect based on current / non-current classification.
An assel is classified as current when it is expecied 1o be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal

operating cycle, held primarily for the purpose of trading, expected lo be realised within twelve months afier the
reporling period, or cash or cash equivalent unless resiricied from being exchanged or used to setile a liability for at
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least iwelve months afier the reporting period. All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is classified as current when it is expected to be settled in normal operating cyele, it is held primarily for the
purpose of trading, it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or there is no unconditional
right 1o defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months afier the reporting period. The Company
classifies all other liabililies as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities, are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalenis. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

b. Foreign currencies
Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which it operates ie. the “functional currency™. The Company s Financial Statements are presented in
INR, which is also the Company’s functional currency,

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company’s functional currency at exchange rates
prevailing at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of
exchange at the reporting date, Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in profit or loss,

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions,

MNon-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value
is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation
differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income (“OCI”) or statement
of profit and loss, are also recognised in OCI or statement of profit and loss, respectively),

¢. Fair value measurement

The Company measures cerlain financial instruments {e.g. investments) at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.

The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to scll the asset or transfer the liabilities
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or liability or in absence of principal market, in the most
advaniageous market for the asset or liability.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a markel parlicipant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would
use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques thal are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inpuis,
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All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within
the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1- Quoted (Unadjusted) marked prices in the active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable

Level 3- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are
required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting policies. For this analysis, the management
or its expert verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation
computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of
the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

d. Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the
revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value
of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding
taxes or duties. Where the Company acts as an agent for selling goods or services, only the commission income is
included within revenue. The specific revenue recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is
recognized,

Sale of mobile value added services

Revenue from services is recognized by reference to stage of completion as and when services are rendered as per the
terms of the agreement with customer. Revenues are disclosed net of the service tax charged on such services. In terms
of the contract, excess of revenue over the billed at the year-end is carried in the Financial Statement as unbilled
revenue,

Commission

The Company facilitates recharge of talk time, bill payments and availability of bus tickets and earns commission for
the respective services. Commission income is recognized when the services have been provided by the Company.

Service fees

The Company eams service fee from merchants and recognizes such revenue when the services have been provided by
the Company. Such service fee is generally determined as a percentage of transaction value executed by the merchants.
Amount received by the Company pending settlement are disclosed as Payable to the merchants under Current
Liabilities. Service fee also includes Royalty charged to customers for providing brand and technical support. Such fee
1s determined as a percentagé of transaction value executed by the customers.

%
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Interest income

For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, interest
income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
payments or receipls over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the
effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the
financial instrument but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in finance income in

the statement of profit and loss

e, Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
laxation authoritics, The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and gencrates taxable
income,

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside statement of profit and loss is recognised either in other
comprehensive income or in equity. Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction
either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect
o siluations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where
appropriate. Payments of tax as per Minimum Altemative Tax (MAT), if any is included as part of current tax in
statement of profit and loss,

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the lability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date,

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:
When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable

profit or loss.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits
and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised (o the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unosed tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that foture taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be

recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the vear when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacled or substantively enacted at

the reporiing date.



One?7 Communications Limited
MNotes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
(Amounts in INE Crores, unless othervwise stated)

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside statement of profit and loss is recognised either in other
comprehensive income or in equity. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction
either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exisis to set off current tax
assels against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation
authority.

Minimum aliernate tax

Credit of MAT is recognised as deferred tax asset only when it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the credit can be utilised. In the year in which the MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognised as an
asset, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the statement of profit and loss account. The Company reviews
the same at each balance sheet date and writes down the carrving amount of MAT credit entitlement to the extent it is
no longer probable that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period.

Taxes paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST/value added/ service taxes paid, except:

*  When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in
which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or disclosed separately in
statement of profit and loss, as applicable, or

s When receivables and payables are stated with the amoumt of tax included

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or
payables in the balance sheet.

f. Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations

The Company classifies non-current assets and disposal groups as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be
recovered principally through a sale rather than through continuing use. Actions required to complete the sale should
indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to the sale will be made or that the decision to sell will be
withdrawn, Management must be committed to the sale expected within one year from the date of classification.

For these purposes, sale transactions include exchanges of non-current assets for other non-current assets when the

exchange has commercial substance. The crileria for held for sale classification is regarded met only when the assets

or disposal Company is available for immediate sale in its present condition, subject only to terms that are usual and

customary for sales of such assets (or disposal groups), its sale is highly probable; and it will genuinely be sold, not

abandoned. The Company treats sale of the asset or disposal Company o be highly probable when:

e The appropriate level of management is committed 1o a plan to sell the asset (or disposal group),

® Anactive programme to locate a buyer and complete the plan has been initiated (if applicable),

®  The assel (or disposal Company) is being actively marketed for sale at a price that is reasonable in relation to ils
current fair value,

®  The sale is expected o qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification ,
and

®  Actions required to complete the plan indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to the plan will be made
or that the plan will be withdrawn.

“\
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Mon-current assets held for sale and disposal groups are measured at the lower of their camrying amount and the fair
value less cosls to sell, Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale are presented separately in the Balance Sheet.
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets once classified as held for sale are not depreciated or amortised.

A disposal group qualifies as discontinued operation if it is a component of an entity that either has been disposed of,
or is classified as held for sale, and;

s Represenis a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations or

e Is pari of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical area of
operations.

Discontinued operations are excluded from the results of continuing operations and are presented as a single amount
as profil or loss after tax from discontinued operations in the statement of profit and loss.

Additional disclosures are provided in Note 32. All other notes to the financial statements mainly include amounts for
continuing operations, unless otherwise mentioned.

g. Properiy, plant and equipment

On transition to Ind A5, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and
equipment and capital work-in-progress recognised as at April 1, 2015 measured as per the previous GAAP and use
that carrying value as the deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment and capital work-in-progress.

Property, Plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment.

Costs directly attributable to acquisition are capitalized until the property, plant and equipment are ready for use, as
intended by the management,

Subsequent costs are capitalized on the carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
future economic benefits associated with the item are probable to flow to the Company and cost of the ilem can be
measured reliably. All repair and maintenance are charged to statement of profit and loss during the reporling period in
which they are incurred.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of propery, plani and equipment ouistanding at each balance sheet date is
classified as capital advances under the non-current assets and the cost of assets not put to use before such date are
disclosed under ‘Capital work in progress’,

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the statement of profit
and loss on the date of disposal or retirement.

Depreciation is provided using the written down value method and charged to statement of profit and loss as per the
rates prescribed under schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013, given below:

S

Y,
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Rate of Depreciation

Assets

{per annum)
Servers and networking equipment {Computers) 39.30%
Laptops and desktops (Computers) 63.16%
Office equipment 45.07%
Furniture and fittings 25.89%
Vehicles 31.23%

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over lower of the period of the lease and useful life,

When significant parts of plant and equipment are required io be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them
separately based on their specific useful lives.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate,

h. Intangible assets

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its intangible assels
recognised as at April 1, 2015 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that camying value as the deemed cost of

the intangible assels.

Separately acquired intangible assets, such as software are measured initially at cost. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and expenditure is
reflecied in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which the expenditure is incurred. Intangible assets with finite
useful lives are carried al cost and are amortised on a written down value basis over their estimated useful lives and

charged to statement of profit and loss.

Other Software and licenses acquired are amortized at the rate of 40% per annum on written down value method.

The amortization period and the amortization method are reviewed at least at each financial year end. Changes in the
expecied useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are
considered to modify the amorisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting
estimates, The amortisation expense on intangible asseis is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such

expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the camying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the

assel is derecognized.

Research and development costs

Resecarch costs are expensed as incumred. Development expenditure incurred on an individual project is recognized as an
intangible asset when the Company can demonstrate all the following:

s The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale
O

LY
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Its intention to complete the assel

Its ability to use or sell the asset

How the assel will generate future economic benefils

The availability of adequate resources o complete the development and 1o use or sell the asset

The ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during development.

*® & & ® a

Following the initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the cost model is applied requiring the
assel (0 be carried at cost less any accumulated amonization and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization of the
asset beging when development is complete and the asset is available for use. It is amortized on a straight line basis over
the period of expected future benefit from the related project, i.e., the estimated wvseful life of one to five years,
Amonrtization is recognized in the statement of profit and loss. During the period of development, the asset is tesied for
impaimment anmually.

i. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly atiributable to the acquisition, constructlion or production of an asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as pari of the cost of the assei. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds,

j- Impairment of non-financial assets

For all non-financial assets, the Company assesses whether there are indicators of impairment. If such an indicator
exists, the recoverable amount of the assel is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any,
Where the asset does not generaie cash flows that are independent from other assets, the Company estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (CGU} to which the asset belongs.

The recoverable amount for an asset or CGU is the higher of ils value in use and fair value less costs of disposal. If the
recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is estimated (o be less than its carrying amount the asset is considered impaired
and the carrying amount of the asset or CGU is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

In assessing value in nse, the estimated future cash flows of the asset or CGU are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflecis current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the assel. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no
such transactions can be ideniified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by
valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly iraded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations. These budgets and
forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth mate is calculated
and applied to project future cash flows afier the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered
by the mosi recent budgetsTorecasis, the Company exirapolaies cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or
declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does
nol exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in which the entity
operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.

An assessment is made al each reporiing date 1o delermine whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the assel’s or

)\
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CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised mmpairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the
assumptions used to determine the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised.
The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the
assel in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

k. Provisions and contingencies

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision 1o
be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually
certain. The expense relating (o a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects,
when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as a finance cost

Contingencies

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past evenis whose existence will be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-pceurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present
obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required 1o setile the
obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannol be recognized
because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its
existence in the financial statements.

L. Retirement and other employee benefiis

For defined benefit plans {gratuity), obligations are measured at discounted present value (using the projected unit credit
method) whilst plan asscls are recorded at fair value. The operating and financing costs of such plans are recognised
separately in the statement of profit and loss; service costs are spread systematically over the expected service lives of
employees and financing costs are recognised in the periods in which they arise. Re-measurements, comprising actuarial
gains and losses and the return on the plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability (asset)), are recognised immediately in the statement of financial position with a corresponding debit or credit
1o retained earnings through other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Re-measuremenis are nol
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

The Company’s contributions to defined contribution plans (provident fund) are recognized in profit or loss when the
employee renders related service. The Company has no furiher obligations under these plans beyond its periodic
contributions,

The Company provides for liability al year end on account of un-availed earned leave as per actuarial valuation using
projecied unil credit method.
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m. Share-based payments

Employees (including senior executives) of the Company receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services as consideration for equity instruments {equity-settled transactions).

The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made using an
appropriate valuation model,

That cost is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP) reserves in
equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in employee benefits expense,
The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects
the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Company s best estimate of the number of equity instruments
that will ultimately vest. The statement of profii and loss expense or credit for a period represents the movement in
cumulative expense recognised as al the beginning and end of that period and is recognised in employee benefits
expense,

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining the grant date fair value of
awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the Company’s best estimate of the number
of equity instrumenis that will ultimately vest.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because non-markel performance andfor service
conditions have not been mel.

When the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum expense recognised is the expense had the terms
had not been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. An additional expense is recognised for any
modification that increases the total fair value of the share-based payment transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to the
employee as measured at the date of modification. Where an award is cancelled by the entity or by the counterparty, any
remaining element of the fair value of the award is expensed immediately through profit or loss.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted earnings
per share.

The Company has created an Employee Welfare Trust (EWT) for providing share-based payment to its employees. The
Company uses EWT as a vehicle for distribuling shares to employees under the ESOP schemes. The EWT holds shares
of the Company, for giving shares to employees. The Company treats EWT as its extension and shares of the Company
held by EWT are treated as treasury shares. Other assets held by EWT are consolidated on a line-by-line basis with
Company’s Financial Siatements. Shares of other companics held by EWT are separately disclosed under investments.

n. Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial assel of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial asseis are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the {inancial assel.
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Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
= Debt instruments at amortized cost
*  Debt instruments at fair value throngh other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
e Debt instrumenis, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
¢  Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT)

Debi instruments af amortised cost

A “debt instrument” is measured ai the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash
flows, and
b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely paymenis of principal
and interest {SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

Alller initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
rale (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or cosis that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The
losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other
receivables and is most relevant to the Company.

Debt instrument at FVTOCT

A “debt instrument” is classified as at the FVTOCT if both of the following criteria are met;

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting conitraciual cash flows and selling the
financial assets, and

b}  The assel’s contractual cash flows represent SPPL

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporling date ai fair
value, Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Company
recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On
derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to P&L,
Interest eamed whilst holding FVTOCT debi instrument is reporied as inlerest income using the EIR method.

Dbt instrument at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual calegory for debt instrumenis, Any debt instrument, which does not meet the crileria for
categorization as al amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL,

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI
criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or
recognition inconsistency (referred 1o as ‘accounting mismatch’).

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the
statement of profit and loss,

. \_\_-
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Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. The Company may make an irmevocable
election to preseni in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value, The Company makes such
election on an instrument-by -instrument basis, The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCL, then all fair value changes on the instrument,
excluding dividends. are recognized in the OCL There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to statement of profit or
loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the
statement of profit and loss,

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets) is
primarily detecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s consolidated balance sheet) when:

e The righis o receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

¢  The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay
the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a)
the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the assel, or (b) the Company has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the
Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that
case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured
on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Impairment af financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss on financial assets that are debi instruments, and are measured sl amortised cost e.g,,
loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance.

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables, The
application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises
impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether
there has been a significani increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. I credil risk has not increased
significantly, 12-month expected credit loss (ECL) is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has
increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such
that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising
impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

\\\'



One97 Communications Limited
Motes to the Financial Statements for the yvear ended March 31, 2018
(Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated) B

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible defaull events over the expecied life of a
financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which resulis from default events that are

possible within 12 months afier the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the entitv expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR.

The Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its trade receivables. The
provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is
adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and
changes in the forward-looking estimates are analyzed,

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in the
statement of profit and loss. This amount is reflected under the head other expenses in the statement of profit and loss.
For the financial assets measured as at amortised cost ECL is presented as an allowance, i.¢., as an integral part of the
measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount, Until the asset meeis
wrile-off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amouni.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, payables, or as denivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and bormowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, including bank overdrafis,

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as described below:

Loans and borrowings

This is the category mosi relevant to the Company. Afier initial recognition, inierest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR. method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derccognised as well as through the EIR. amorisation process.

Amorlised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance cosis in the statement of profit and loss.

Derecagnition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When
an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised
in the statement of profit or loss.
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Embedded derivatives

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid (combined) instrument that also includes a non-derivative host
contract — with the effect that some of the cash flows of the combined instrument vary in a way similar to a stand-alone
derivative. An embedded derivative causes some or all of the cash flows that otherwise would be required by the
contract to be modified according 1o a specified interest rate, financial instrumeni price, commodity price, foreign
exchange rate, index of prices or rates, credit rating or credit index, or other variable, provided in the case of a non-
financial variable that the variable is not specific to a party to the contract. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a
change in the terms of the coniract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a
reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss.

If the hybrid contract contains a host that is a financial asset within the scope of Ind AS 109, the Company does not
separate embedded derivatives. Rather, it applies the classification requiremenis contained in Ind AS 109 to the entire
hybrid contract. Derivatives embedded in all other host contracts are accoumted for as separate derivatives and recorded
al fair value if their economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the host
contracts are not held for trading or designated at fair value though profil or loss. These embedded derivatives are
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognized in profit or loss,

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offsel and the net amount is reponed in the consolidated balance sheet if
there is a currenily enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounis and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, to realise the assets and setile the liabilities simultaneously,

0. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and shori-term deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalenis consist of cash and short-term deposits, as
defined above, net of oulstanding bank overdrafis as they are considered an inmtegral part of the Company's cash
management.

p. Leases

The determination of whether an armangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the
inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use
of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not
explicitly specified in an arrangement

Company as a lessee

A lease that transfers subsiantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership 1o the Company is classified as a
finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged (o
statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease unless the payments are struclured to
increase in line with expected general inflation 1o compensate for the lessor’s expecied inflationary cost increases,

N
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q. Earnings/ (loss) per share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted
average number of Equity shares ontstanding during the vear.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number
of Equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on
conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares.

r. Treasury shares

Own equity instruments that are reacquired (treasury shares) are recognised at cost and deducted from equity. No gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity
instruments, Any difference between the carrying amount and the consideration, if reissued, is recognised in other

reserve.
5. Segment reporting

Ideniification of segments

Operating segments are reporled in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker (CODM). Only those business activities are identified as operating segment for which the operating
results are regularly reviewed by the CODM to make decisions about resource allocation and performance
measurement.

Segment accounting policies

The Company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for
preparing and presenting the financial siatements of the Company as a whole.

t. Standards issued but not yet effective

The standards issued, but not yet effective up the date of issuance of the Company's financial statements is disclosed
below,

IND AS 115 Revenue from contracts with customers

IND AS 115 was notified on 28 March 2018 and establishes a five-step model to account for revenue arising from
contracis with cusiomers. Under IND AS 115 revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which an entity expects 1o be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services 1o a customer,

The new revenue standard will supersede all current revenue recognition requirement under IND AS. In March 2016,
the Ministry of Corporate Affairs in India, issued amendments to IND AS 115, deferring the adoption of the standard to
accounting period commencing on or afier April 1, 2018, The Company has not vet selected a transition method and is
evaluating the impact of IND AS 115 on the financial statements,

\
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Ind AS 116 Lease

IND AS 116 was issued in July 2017 on Leases and will replace the existing leases Standard, IND AS 17 Leases, and
related Interpretations. The Standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of lease for both parties to a contract i.e. the lessee and the lessor. IND AS 116 introduces a single lessee
accounting model and requires a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12
months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. The Standard also contains enhanced disclosure requirements for
lessees. The effective date for adoption of IND AS 116 is annual periods beginning on or afier April 1, 2019 though
carly adoption is permitted for companies applying IND AS 115. The Company is currenily assessing the impact of
adopting IND AS 116 on the Company's financial statements,

Amendments to Ind 112 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities: Clarification of the scope of disclosure
requirements in Ind AS 112

The amendments clarify that the disclosure requirements in Ind AS 112, other than those in paragraphs B10-B16, apply
to an entity’s interest in a subsidiary, a joint venture or an associate (or a portion of its interest in a joint venture or an
associate) that is classified (or included in a disposal group that is classified) as held for sale.

The Appendix is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2018 However, since the Company has not
classified any associate or jeint venture as held for sale, the Company does not expect any effect on its standalone
financial statemenis

Ind AS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses

The amendments clarify that an entity needs to consider whether tax law restricts the sources of taxable profits against
which it may make deductions on the reversal of that deductible temporary difference. Furthermore, the amendments
provide guidance on how an entity should determine future taxable profits and explain the circumstances in which
taxable profit may include the recovery of some assets for more than their carrying amount,

Entities are required to apply the amendmenis retrospectively. However, on initial application of the amendmenis, the
change in the opening equity of the earliest comparative period may be recognised in opening retained earnings (or in
another component of equity, as appropriaie), without allocating the change between opening retained eamings and
other components of equity. Entities applying this relief must disclose that fact.

These amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2018, These amendments are not
expecied to have any impact on the Company as the Company has no deductible temporary differences or assets that are
in the scope of the amendments,

Appendix B to Ind AS 21 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

The Appendix clarifies that, in determining the spol exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset,
expense or income {or pari of it) on the derecognition of a non-monetary assel or non-monetary liability relating 1o
advance consideration, the date of the transaction is the date on which an entity initially recognises the non-mongetary
assel or non-monctary lisbility arising from the advance consideration. If there are multiple paymenis or receipts in
advance, then the entity must determine the transaction date for each payment or receipl of advance consideration,
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_(Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

Entities may apply the Appendix requirements on a fully retrospective basis. Alternatively, an entity may apply these
requirements prospectively to all assets, expenses and income in its scope that are initially recognised on or after;

i. The beginning of the reporting period in which the entity first applies the Appendix. or
ii. The beginning of a prior reporting period presented as comparative information in the financial statements of the
reporting period in which the entity first applies the Appendix,

The Appendix is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2018, However. since the Company’s current
practice is in line with the Interpretation, the Company does not expect any effect on its financial statements.

{This space is infentionally left blank)
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One?? Communications Linsdted
Tesdes 1o b Firancial Statement s fer the year ended March 31, 2008

5 Invesiment in sabsidiaries

EEE Azl
—Dlarch LR DMarch 3. 2007
Umquated squity shares
One?T Comerasacations Migeria Limited 030 030
1,000,000 (March 31, 2007; 1,000,000} equiry shares of NOM 10 wch
CnedT Communiestions FE LLC P ]
1,500 [Mazch 31, 2017 1500} equity sheres of AED 1000 each
Dwe?7 Communications kndis Limited 40.15 e
40,150,000 (March 31, 2017 22,230,000) equity sheres of INR1D cach
Cmed7 Comamandeation: Siagapons Private Limited JEN ] 14,14
3,356, 100 (March 30, 20017 : 3,356, 100) equity shares of SGD 1 each
One&T LEA Ino i i)
532,000 (March 31, 2017 - $32,000) equity shares of USD | each
Paytm Fimancial Services Limiied 100 -
2000,000 (March 31, 20017 : M) equaty shares of face value of INR 10 each
Paytm Enteriainment Limiled 0.
10,000 (March 31, 2007 : Mil} equity shares of fhce vatue of INE 10 gach
Paytm Money Linmied 11 1] -
10,000,000 (darch 31, 2017 : Mil) oquity shares af foce veloe of INE 10 sach
‘Waalilend Enlertainmant Private Limeted® 3500 !
12,956 (March 31, 2017 : Mil) equity shares of [NR 10 each
Lirjs Money Private Limsied” 600 -
1,173,583 (March 31, 3017 : Mil} equity shares of INR 1 ench
Mabiquest Mitale Technologies Privabe Limited® 504 .
115,035 (March 31, 2007 Mil) equity shares of INR 10 each
Ligtle Ingernet Private Limiieds 25704 .
13,477,263 (March 31, 2017 : Nill) equity shares of fzce value of INR 10 each
Unquoted Compeisorily Cenvertible Preferenee shares
Moblgasst Moldle Teshnoleghes Private Limited® 7 =
35,710 (Magch 31, 2017 Nil) compulsory convertible preference shares of INE 10 each
Létile Ieteenet Private Limibedd 15.16 -
50,0060 (March 31, 2017 ; Nil) Compalsonly Conwvertible Freference shares of face valoe of INR 10 sach
ST 4109
& Dvistinent In asvockates
Unigeted equity shares
PFaytm Paymenis Benk Limited | 56,00 500
158,003,900 (March 51, 2007 : B5,003,%00) equity shares of INK 10 cach
Unquoted Compulsarily Comvertible Pref shares
Loginext Scdutions Privite Limited*= 2255 45,105
279443 (March 31, 3017 : 279,48} Compulsceily Copveritle Preference share of Bice valss of INR 10 each
Secomo Technobogies Private Limited** - 2.7
28,800 (March 31, 2007 : 28,800) Coampulsenly Convertibie Profeensce shase of faca value of INR | ezch
[l Yiwwn Limited - Q.08
Wil (March 31, 2017 : 1,190,476) Coenpulsodily Convertible Prefepence share of fece value of USD 001 exch
Litile Imternet Singapors Ple, Limited = 33.29
il March 31, 2017 : 4,608,901 7) Compialsonly Comvertible Praference share of face value of LSD 0.01 each
Litde Intermt Private Limmitedil = 200
Bl (March 31, 2007 - 520,000) Compulsonily Convertible Prefe share of face value of INR [0 ench
Unigaoted Compidsrily Comvertible Debenture g
Ccat)L. Private Limited .00 00
000,000 (March 31, 2017 : 2000,000) Compulscrily Comvertible Dek of [ME 10 sach

* Mvesiments acquined daring e vear.
=* Mt of provision for Empairment amoarting te INR 22,50 (March 31, 2007 © Nil) and INR 42.7% (March 31, 1017 : Hil) respectively for Logimext Soluions Frivate Limitsd and Sceome
Technologies Private Limited respectively.

¥ Converted o Investment in sutsddiany during the year ended March 31, 2018,
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7. Financlal assets

a)  Investmenis

Imvestments st fale valise theaugh 001

127,489 (March 31, 3017 127,489 equaty shares of GEF 0.01 ench

Highoutit Carears Privale Limited
235 (March 31, 3017 - I35) equity shares of [NR. 10 sach

ZEPD Technobogses Private Limited
5458 (March 31, 2017 : 3,438) Equity shares of fece value INR [0 eech

Pilani Experts Techmology Labs Privale Limited
L2TY (March 31, 2017 1 1277} equity shases of TR 10 sach

Red Pixels Ventures Limited
1,093 (March 31, 2007 : |,043) Equity shares of fice value INR 10 each

Inve al Eadr value through Frodll and loss

Unguated Compulsorily Comvertible Preferencn shares

Ragmung Clouds Tech Private Limitedii
3,630 (March 31, 2017 : 35300 Red ibe Cormvertible Pref Shares of INR 10 each

Busy Hess Logisties Sodution Private Limated
18,121 (March 31, 2017 : 18121} Compulscrily Convertible Preference share of face value of [NR 10 sach

Avenues Puyments India Private Limited
11,379 (March 31, 3007 - Nil} Coampalscly Comertible Preferencs share of face value of INE 100 each

Pavim E-commerce Prvate Limsled
18,276 (Mareh 31, 2007 ; 17,537) Eeguity shanes of fico vilus INR 10 ach bald by Employoe Walfars Trust
Debentures (unguated)

Ciqual Limmsted#i
27,876,274 (March 31, 2017 : 27876.274) Convertible Loan Motes of GBP 001 each#

Purtual Fumsds (Quated)

Aditya Barla Sun Life Crsh Flus - Growih - Direst Plan
20 254,8110 uedts ( March 31, 2017 Nill uniss)

Adirya Bizla Sum Life Fleating Rate Fand - Long Term - Growth:-Direct
14,398,760 wnits [ March 31, 2017 :Mil units)

Adlitya Birla Sun Life Savings Pund - Growth - Dirsct Plan
TASTBIL units { March 31, 2007 -l wnits)

Bizln Sun Lifs Shor Term Fussd - Growth-Danect Plan
1l units | March 31, 2017 : 10,079,633 units)

DEF BlackRock Ligedity Fumd-Direct Plan-Crowih
146,000 wets { Murch 31, 2017 4,750 wits)

HIDFC Floaling Rate [ncome Fund Short -Direct Plan - Whalesale Growdth Option
33,530,370 wnits { Merch 31, 2017 :Mil units)

HOFC Ligquid Fund - Direet Plan-Gromth
2,306,075 units { March 31, 2017 il undts)

HOIFT Short Termn Ogpernisities Fund- Direct Flan - Growth
Pl wniks { Mareh 30, 2017 (56,931, 4% undts)

IC1C] Prudenial Flaxible [ncome - Direct Plan - Growih
1,570,459 wmits { Masch 31, 2007 : Nil units}

ICICT Prodential Ligud - Direct Flan - Growth
12,141,137 mnits { March 31, 2017 :Nil anils)

ICECT Prodential Liguid Regular Flan Growth
43,9332 usits { M 31, I0IT 45,932 umits)

FZIC| Prwdential Ulira Short Term - Dereot Plan - Growth
1l units { Mareh 31, 2007 :33_083,E14 units)

IDFC Cash Fund Growth Dawrect Flan
351191 wmits | Merch 31, 2017 :Nil enits)

Relsamoe Liguid Pund - Treasury Plan - Digect Growth Plan - Growth Opson
108,025 nits { March 21, 3017 :164,477 urts)

Aral s
March 31, 2HE March 31, 2017
0.36 036
2R TTE
049 4%
R 0.53
157 414
4B.58 5r34
100 .
4503 5
Sad.88 @
3004 -
25549 -
- 63,04
35.19 Lo
102 85 =
300 -
= 103,05
5594 -
SaE9Y .
1.1E (R[]
- 56.01
.3 -
BN 65.35
—5
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LAmounds in INB Creees, uphess othernie stated)

Reliance Medsum Term Ferd Darect Plan Growih a2 "
68,389,527 wrdis ¢ March 31, 30017 Mal units)

Relinnes Momey Mansger Fund Direct Plan Growth 256.43 -
1,051,455 wmits { Muegch 31, 2007 Nil units)

581 Magriim [zsta Cash Fund - Direct Plan - Growth 19.44 .
7,156 units { March 31, 2017 :Nil mits)

SB[ Premier Liguid Fund - Durect Plam - Growth 2.4 o
77,554 writs | March 31, 2007 -Nil wnitsy

UTI-Treasury Advantage Fund- Instrtutioal Plan-Diseet Flan-Jrowth 3630 .

1,061,833 ummits { March 31, 2017 : Nal unizs)
Investrse e al amortived cosl
Dl Instruments [umguoted)

Kiotak Mahindes Prims Lid 8.019% NCD 29 Jan 2019 1503
130 (March 30, 2017 Mil} Redeemsble Non Convertible Debentures of IMR 1,000,000 each

Kotak Mehindra Prime Ltd 8 70% NCD 10 Alg 2018 10,45 .
100 (March 31, 2007 - Bil} Redzemable Mon Converfible Debesunes of INR 1,000,000 each
Kolak Mabmdra Prime Lid B.03% NCD [ 4 Feb 3019 50 16 =
500 {March 31, 2007 : Mil) Redecinable Men Convertible Debenbaes of INR 1,000,000 sxch
Eotak Mahimdm Imﬁmpll-l.l.d B 10% CP 21 Feb 2009 18503 =
4000 {March 31, 2017 : Nil} Commercdal Papirs of INR 500,000 each
HDFC 7.40% NCD 22 Moy 2018 ITT.4% -
U735 (March 31, 7017 : Mil} Redesmstile Mo Converible Debentures of INR. 10,000,000 sach
HOFC 0% Z2CB 30 Oat 2018 15007 -
10040 (March 31, 2007 : kal) Zero Coupon Bonds of INK 1,000,000 each
LIC Henwing Fisaree Limmiled % 65% NCD 2% Mar 2019 2r.41 =
250 {March 31, 2017 : Mil) Redesrmible Nen Comvertible Debenturss of MR 1,000,000 each
LIC Housimg Finance Limited 9. Té24% MCD & Mar 2019 %1 -
T (March 31, 2017 : Mil} Redeemable Non Convertible Debentures of INR. 1,000,000 gach
LEC Housing Financa Limited 8.70% NCD 17 Dec 2018 53.61 -
300 {Muarch 31, 2007 : Mil) Redeemable Mon Convertible Debenbares of [NK, 1,000,000 each
Tata Capital Finaneid Services Lamited 8.20% NCD B Mar 2019 s -
500 {March 31, 2017 - Nil) Redeemable Mon Comvertible Debentures of IME 1,000,000 sach
LIC Homing Firanos Limited 7 025%% NCD 33 Apr 2019 10245 “
1000 {March 31, 2017 : Nil} Redeemahle Mon Comvertible Debenturas of INR. 1,000,000 sch

LEIETT ELIE
Taotal investments 4,14, 710 A54E2
Chrresd A a7 =017
Man-Curnent 106.73 64,05

4T 35432
Aggregate beok valee of angueied Imvesiments #E;amn .05
Aggregate book valwe of quoted bmvesteenis 3,652.9% 1017

Mate =
FCICT Prodestial Liquid Flan - Growih is marked under len by banks for gusrantes amousting to INR0.70 [ March 31, 2007 INR 0,77 ) issusd against veriom contracts,

Ievvestmants at fir vali through OCI (Fully paid) redlect investment in unquoted equity securities. Refer note 30 for delermiration of their fair values,
Firancaal instruments of fuis value throwgh peofit oo loss reflect the positive change of INE 33.23 (31 March 2017 20.67) i fair valoe of investments in equity sd peference shares

¥4 The Compary boldds these imvestments, however the fir value is Mil.

(Thir spase ir baserationally feft Waukl




Oned? Communbeations Linsited
Modes b ilbe Flmancizl Sintements fer the year ended March 31, 2018

b Securlty Deposiis
e T CrT I Current
Agal FLLE ]
— March 30 2008  Morch3T. 2097 _ March 31 2008 _ Alacch 302817
Securlty deposits
Linseeaared, conssdened pood ar.la 13.03 411 07o
Unsecured, considered doubiful 011 o1l - -
T 13.14 411 o
Provision for dowbtfid deposits 0.1 .11 . -
4 1303 411 aT
3206 g - 411 [%B
) Oiher financial nsseis Mom Current Carrent
Asal Aspl
—Mlarch LIS March LMY March 31 3008 0 March 31, 207
Ramk balanors
Bank balance in Escrow account {Refer pote 100a)a)) o A " BlE A6
Dieposits with origiaal eabanify for eare than 12 months a7 637 133 31 ER.57
Others
Inter Corporale Loans - = 120 -
Apcrusd Interest on Markeisble Securities .08 - - -
Imerest pearoed tut not dis on fxed dipesls 0.49 18 4.70 544
Unbilled revenue {met) - . 4474 K3 57
A 14 i 18165 LAk 04
Amaust récoverable fram Payment Gatiway hanks*
[med)
Ursseeured, considered good - = 405.73 IB0.946
Unseoured, considered doubifid - . 3.02 302
: - AETS TESFE
Less : Proviston for recoverable from Payment Gabeway . . (302 (303
bamilks
B = = M5II. B L
Amount recoverable from related partiesd 00 19587 0118 428.54
L 2500 19557 52118 428,54
Total [A+E+C] 4164 i 1, 1. 56 1,633.54
" Tha amcan| Tep able from pay B y banks om secoum of eredit cand'dabit card amd net bankisg iransscibons refated (o third pasty mecchant, wallel end market placs
mezchants.

" Amoun! tecoverable om relaled parties includes [N 5429 for Sale of Wallet Business during the year ended March 31, 2018 (March 31, 3017 : 8il) and INE, #9530 from Sale of
Fluystesl Markiiplace basiness during the year ended March 31, 2008 ( March 31, 2007 - 620.77).

Break wp of fimancial asseds carried ot amertlsed ool

Trade Receivables (Mote B) “ - HHLTG 92.71
Cash and cash squivalents (Hote 10(s}) . . 26199 534,50
Bank balances othr than cash amd cash equivalents Hote 1B - - 4.9 n4
Zecurity Deposits (Mote (b)) 3rl6 13.02 411 0.7
Others (Mote () 243.43 30232 L109.57 163354
Imvestments {NoteT(zl) 10245 o 74558 -
A4 S15.35 EELH P

Break up of Mnamselal sssets carried af ke valoe

Mem-currend Current
As at Axl
March 31, 200% March 31, 2017 March 31, 218 March 31, 2027
Ervestrneants at fuir valos throsgh OC) EE] 4.14 3 5
Tereestmeenis al fidr valwe Grough Prafit and loss 100.70 w=al 365198 290,17
18428 64015 ._]&E. .17
{Thiz gpace is mfentionally foff Bak)



Oned7 Comsnunbeations Limided
Medes to tbe Flmancial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2008
A msmnis |m INE Crores, unbess odherwise siafed)

& Trade recelvabibes A il Axal
March 31, X018 March 31, W17
Trede Recsivables 1699 B360
Receivables from related paries (Refer Note () below) &7 a0s
LT b |
Hriak-up
Trade recelvables
Secured, considered good
Unsecured, copsadered gond 504.76 2.
Duousbt fisd 59.38 .02
S 14 121.73
Impalrneent allowance on trade recefvables
Unsecured, considerad good e 5
Caoubsiful (5238} (29.02)
(5935 29.2)
Tatal Trade recelvables 4.7 92.71

(i) Wa tmade or othar recevable aro doe Fom doeciens or other officers of the Company cither severally or jointly with any cther persan. Mes ey trede or otear
ricevabie are due ftom finms or private compsanies respectively inwhich any direclor is a parimer, a director or 2 member, except as disclosed abowe,

(i) For related party receivables, refer note 15
(3ii) Trada raceivililes are non-mieos! hawming and carry » credit peniod of uplo $0 days

%, (iher assts
HNen-turpenl Current
S | | E— Asal
Caphial advances
Usmecitred, considered good [Her) aTe - -
Dhosbit fial 0.OF 008 = -
L1g 084 - =
Less Provision for doubtil ad {0.08) D16} : -
A L0z .76 - .
Advances to vemdora
Unsistred, considened pood 13559 . W18 20024
Exoutiful - f.d] 508 175
36.5% 4l 1373 02,99
Less Provision for dewbtfid advances - oA {5.06) (2.75)
E 35,58 - 3235 20024
rthers
Eervice tax input eredis - = : T5.43
GET inpast credit - = 6B -
Advances 1o relaled parties® - - 1B%. 3% .01
Valoe Added Tax (VAT) credil receivable = & oe 021
C = - 22642 T5.65
Tosd (A+B4C) EN 5 GIX L

"M advances are recoverable from directors or other officers of the Company either severally of joinly with aey other pesson. Mor any advance are necinverable Fom fms or private
compandes respestively in which eny director is & partner, & drecton of o member, exeepl &8 disclosed alove.

(This space is wfearionaliy faf Moky



o7 Commundeations Llssled
Motes bo the Financlal Sintements for the vear ended Mareh 31, 2018
LAmeounts fn INE Crores, snless othersse dafed)

10a). Cnsle and cash equivalonts

Casshi an hamd
Eslance with bank=
= Jn cumend accounis
O cash eredkl scconnl
- Deposits with oniginal matunty for less then 3 montks
- Escrow Aczount (Refer note (a])
- Madal Accoum (Refer nole (B1)

Mades @

As ol Asat
—March JL. 2008 March 31, 2007
ol Ll

ol 12 40.62

] =

- 565

= 55.17

261.9% 534.50

(B} The Comgany meintained alano m Escrow Accotmnl in sccordance wilh REI guidelines relating to sem closed walles (Frepaid Paymeni Instramesnd; till May 22,
2017, As al March 31, 2017, sncants deposited by the Compamy over and above the wallet lishdlity are disclosed mader cash mod cish equivebasts and asnomi

perianing to wallel ability are disolesed ender “other fimancial assets™ (refer note We)) On May 33, 2017 the Company has

firrizd ils e-wallel op

L]

Payim Paymenis Bank Limuled and accordingly, the Escrow Acommt has been closed and balance ransfemed to current aceoust
by The menrmuw:dumw reeeive money Broagh debit'credit card and net banking transactions towards all temsctions happening on its ponal, as

well s to setihe the pespective m . The l

3 bl et fo b

it moddal accound balance. The excess balance (if any) evailable in Nodal Accoumi is availabde for nse by the Compeny and 5 diselosed as cash and cash

quivalents.

(g} Fied deposits are masked under lien by banks for guarsmiess amounting % INE 24193 (March 31, 2017 : INR 81,54} issued agains! vanous commots,

| to merchants of INR 348 0% [March 31, 2017 INR T 50) are petied ofT

(d)  Fired diposiis with a carrying amount of MR 62.11 (March 31, 2017 : INR 18 %3) are subject 1o first charge 8o secure the Company's Working Cagrital Bueiline

For the parpese of e stalement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:

Tl i b
Balance with banlks
- U curment aezounts
- Dupasits with onginal maturity of less than 3 months
« Bsoromw Acoosm
- Modal Account
Diheer bank balances
Le=s Bank overdrafl

Cash and cash equvalents for ik purpose of cish Now statensent

1. Bamk balsnees other than seh and cash equivabents

Depasits with original mamty of mone ten 3 mcnths bt bess than 12 months

(This space is infentiommily fef Mok

Asal Asal

oan

__March3i, 2018 __March 31, 2017

.06

34112 2067
076 .

. 438.65

- AT
261,99 SH
4165 A3

ST e

2493 2247
1483 2247




Do Cosmmumlcatbeas Limited
Motes io the Finameial Stateme s for ke year ended March 31, 2018
LAmounts in (8B Crores, unbess siherwise stated)

Asal Axa
—Muren 51, MI3E  Merch L BT
11. Share Caplial
Auihorlsed share eaplrsl
346,100,000 (March 31, 2017 . 56,100.000) equity shares of INR 10 each 56,10 5600
2,759,004 (Mesch 31, 2007 : 3,759,000) 0.001 % series B cammalative convensble prafeninss shanes of INR 174 4801 4801
rach
18401 1411

Terms rights atiached io equity shares
All the equity shages issusd 1o el wther shargholders shall mnk pari pessu and bave 2 pas walue of Rs. 10 per share. Each shareholder is cligible for one

wobe per share held ondy,

lasmid, sulsicr ilbed and Nully pakd up shares

55,325,271 (March 31, 7007 © 46,990,653} equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid up 5531 a5
Tetal bssued, smbscribed and felly paid-up share caplésl 5532 1]
a. Reconcllistsn of the shares oulstanding al the beginning and ai the end of the reparting year
Egaity shares Mirch 3. 2018 Parch 51, 2017
Mumler Anssund Mumber Anssant
Shares ounstanding o the begimming of 1he vear® 468 46,99 4.5 46.23
Skares issued during the year D.HL B0 0.06 061
Srares issued during the wear - S0P 0,02 0.2 001 014
Ehares ontsimnding af the end of the yes™ 549 5532 EX L5
* Wet of reasury shares 336,659 (March 31, 2007 344,113} at nil cos through employves willae trust
t. Details of sharebolders belding more than 5% shares in the Compamy
Mome of sharcholder March 51, 2018 March 31, 2M7
Number of Shares held o Belding Wumaber of Shares % bolding
hald
Alipay Singapore E-Commenze Privabe Limited 175 3 T1% 1.73% 7%
SWF Imdia Heldng (Cayman) Lomted 113 AT . -
Mr Vijuy Shekhar Shanma LEd] 16, 36% e 19.05%
SAIF Ol Mawritius Company Limited TS 13.54% 94 20.048%
Adibaba.com Singapors E-Comanerce Privale Limbed ¥ B00% a4 P41
EAIF Partners India 1V Limited 031 5.52% 0.38 B 1T
& Shares reserved fer lsaie under options
Far details of shares reserved for ssue under tha esnpboyen stock apticas plan (ES0P) of the Company, plezse refer note 34
Sharz applicstion money pending allotment amcunting o [NR (.05 (March 31, 2017 : [NR 0.22) represents amount roeived fom enployess for exencising the
employes siock oplions,
A Apgregate mamber of bomas shares ismed and share lssoed for consbderation oiber than eash during ibe perlod of Mve years immediaiely preceding the
raparing daie:
The Company has nedther issusd bonus shares, shares for considessnon other han cash, mor bought back sbapes during the pericd of Gve years immediately
preceding the reporting dale.
& Imstrement= enirely equity I nature
Consegeant 1o Faumework agreement emtered on November 30, 2017 between the Compary, Litthe imemet Privede Limiied (*L17. Sharehalders of LI, Mearbuy
India Private Limited ("MBI'), and Shareholders of NEI. The shareholders of MBI swapped their ghares in MB1 with shirs in LI, resulfing in their becoming 17%
sharzholders of LI and MBI becommg whally owmed ssbeidiany of L1, The Company through further restructuring of its existing smeestments in L1 15%%) and Lisde
Sirgapore Ple Limited ['LE7) (2T%), as well as deeogh its obligation 10 issue furlhey shares amownting 1o IR 173,63 to ofher sharsholders of LI, became 6%
thareholder in 11, The ing of edsting in LEand L5, o5 discussed above, resatied in LS buying lack 27% stake of the Company in LS for [NR.
77.40 and the Company farther infusing INR B3.53 in LI The buyback resulted [n the Company recondng gain of INE 44.1 1. Compamy’s obligation o issue further
shares amounting 1o INR. 173,62 to other shareholders of L1 has been disclosed &5 * Instrumenis entirely equity in nabare” under Equty.
1% Provisions
Mon-current Currend
Asal Asal Agmi Asal
March 31, 2013 Mareh 31, 1017 March 3, 2018 March 31, 2017
Frevislon for emphsyoe henolits
Frovision Tor gransty (refer note 36 ) B30 563 - .
Provision for loave benefits TLA5 TR 1.58 2.8

45 13.9% 7.58 .52
— iz == —




One¥T Commuanications Limited
Motes lo the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2008

15, Fimancial liabifties

ah Borrowimgs
Asat Asal
March 31, 2008 March 31, 2017

Bank evardrall (Rafer Mole below) 24165 &5 6]
Ehort term borrowings from bank (Refer Note below) . T

H1.65 LT
Muke
Eorowings (in [ME) are repayable o demand and carry inberest & 1-MCLR and “speead” per annum. As on the repomngdue. EMCLE is B.13% and spread is
L.45%. Borrowings from bank are secored sgaimst Fimed Deposit, Curnint Assets and alse backed by i bl end | puamaniee of Mr. Yijay Shekdhar
Sharma, Direcior

Asal Asat
March 31, X018 March 31, 2007

) Trade Payahles
Trade payalilesd 6T 21340
Trude paynbles 10 related panties s P ¥

416,35 121,62
Frefer note 39 for MSMED dsclosure
[c) Oilsers
Payabils to marchants 14591 4 51
Wallet Hahility= - B52.0%
Faywble om purchige of Bxed assets 12.37 308
Employes binufits payable 61,45 M50
Crthers: BlD 191 8%

1T.E4 1,147.58

"The Company mesaived sothnmztion fom RB] to st up and operate semi closed wallet (BCW) on Asgess 06, 2013, Conssquently, amounts received from
submeribes o the SCW are deposited in Escrow Bank sccount and are recopded as walled liability. Also refer noge | 0(R)E)L

Terms and conditions of the above Gmamcial lakdities:

(3 Temdbe and ether payables me non-interest beaning and camy credit peried of upto 60 days
{8} For related parties, pafer (o Mobe 25

4. Dibser carremt labilltles

Azl Axat

Marchk 31, Z018 March 31, 2007
Adhvance from cusiomers w0 1423
Uinearmed commission 0.0 L35

Stahstory dizes payable:

Tax deducted at soarce payable 1498 .16
ZBervice fax payshle - 058

GET Payable 508 .
Provident fnd paysble L.57 1.53
Other statutery dues .08 016
47.85 B0

{This space i intentiovally left Wassk)



Ome¥T Commumicaibens LEmibed
Molex to the Finamclal Statemsems for the year ended March 31, 2018
Lamouste in INB Croves, unbess otheradse siated)

Mareh 31, 2018 Aareh 3, 2007
15. Revenue from opreationy
Sabe of prvices 1,987.41 59833
299741 CTHTN
16, Oither inceme
Fair value Juin on fimancial insfruments st FVTPL let03 5053
Frofil on sale of property, plant and equipment {ne) a7 .63
Exchange differences (nit) 160 .
Miscellanous Income 1.7 .20
Interest income:
- o bank deposits .27 .23
« odhers 63,70 1.87
Chler mom axperating income 13 470
H16 16636
17. Emplovee beneflis expense
Salaries, bonus and incentives 440 36 %941
Caontribution o provident snd aiher funds 255 621
Emgploves sioek aplion {refir Note 24) 72.47 FIE ]
Grabaity expenmes (refer Mote 26) 4.65 e ]
Eradf welfare expenses 13.03 (LA}
ETIT 31391
Adarch 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
IE. Flmanct coets
Hedast
- an hommowimgs -] an
- o others &10 Bds
Bank charnges 535 0.74
1T M 4.42
14 Depreciation and amoriistion expomse
Depreciation af wngible assers 110 il
Amarization of intangibile assees 5R2 7
5. 92 19.18

(Thir gpace i riertiomally left Mak)



One¥T Commumicatioms Limined
Mobes to the Financlal $tatements for the year ended March 31, 2018
Lamoumts in INR Crores, unless otheretse stated)

Mlarch 51, X018 Mdarch 51, 2017
. Other expenses
Paymen galews’ cxpenses 1192 5] LI v
Connectivity and conient fees 148 24 18
Customer and merchant cntcapding expenses T3l 138
Conbist expenses 14.25 1063
‘Communication costs nim 12.98
Latgal ard grofessaonal fees 4.7 12.68
Marketing and business proenoticn expenses 1,899 6 0708
Advertisement experses FE T 260,70
Suheoperact expinsis 2159 12089
Corporate Social Resporehility (CSR) expendinze 228 0.42
Fixed amets written off an 0.22
Iruranes 64l 606
Logistie, packing & colbsction cost e o
Payment 1o auditor (Refer details below) b9 143
Postage and Courier 13 491
P i fuel pA A
Printing and stalicnery 177 153
Trade ecaivablesAdvance writlen off 1.3% 4.9%
Less: amslization from provision for isgaimmant of irada R (459
Prenision for doubful advances F b 062
Prosimion dor Impairment of trade receivables 0 R ]
Ropair and maintance - Buldings [1E] a1l
Repair and maintance - Cithers 308 1.78
Repadr and maintance - Flant and machinery 1537 LR
Ralos amd lanes 47 138
Rent L1.74 11.60
Service tax expense‘revessal under nae 603VGET inpet concit reversal 2403 20,12
Travelling wnd comveyance 2.7 18.94
Exchange differences (net) - 030
Miascdllamsous expensas 248
1.579.75
Paynsend to Awditor
As audidors
=Audi fee LiR 075
~Tax audit fee oo .04
-limited Review 0.a0 .45
In edbeer capacity
(i Services (Certification fees) anz (L]
«Reimbarsement of expenses 008 -
1.55 1.43

{This space i imtenticeaily fofl Blank)




D7 Commesnicatismy Limibed
Nates to the Finamecial Sentements for the year ended March 31, 2018
LAmsunts In INK Crares, unless otherwise sated

21. Excoptional liemy Mlarch 31, 200% March 31, 1817
T on sabe of walle! business (refer nole 33 62,99 -
Juin on sale of makeiplace busimess (refar note 32) . 32
Provision for impairment of snveshments i assicils (5. 29) =

2.3m EIER

&) During the eumen yess, Company tarsfemed ils Wellel business on a going concern basis, by way of shuwg sabe, 10 Faytm Payeooms Bask Limited. Told sale
considerasion of INR 65, the fanr valus of which is INR 6310 (discounted at 9. 75%) and net assets transfenred is IME 0.1 ) resulting a total gain of INR 62 99

b The Compesry basis ils assessment of future business projectons of jis asscefais, Socomo Technologies Privale Limsted and Loginesd Sclmicns Privete
Lirnited, bas recognised provisson of [ME 08,39 for impairment in the errrying value of ils investmant

¢} During the previcus vear, C ferred its Marketplace segment on @ poing congern basis, by way of dump sale, to Paytm E-Commeres Private Limined
Total gale consideraion of [NE ]'Jl} the fer vaboe of which is MR 2077 {dscounsed a1 9 7595) and nel assels ransferned is [N 20 45 resulling o total gein of
INR 53132

22. Earsdngs per shares (EFS)

Basic EPS amounts are caleulmed by dividing the profit for the year atirslutable to equity holders of the company by the weighted sverage mmbes of Equiry shanes
cutsanding dwing the year,

Dilisted EPS menoeis are calculated by dovidimg the pro§it stribusble o equity holders of the company by the weighted avemge mesnber of Equity shares
cutstanding donng B year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued o conversion of all the dlutive potential Eguty shares imo
Equity shares

The filbowing reflecis the inecen: and share data usad in

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Frofi atiributable 1o equity belders:

Continuing operations {1.485122) (554 BE)

Lagzontismed operation (5.25) {254.T5)
Predif atiribeinbde fo equity halders for basic sarnings (1490.47) ET9.63)
Weighted average number of’ Equaty shange for tase EPE= 04 4.62
Earnings per share for contimulng eperations
Basle s Diluted sarmings per equity share® (194,79} [128.749)
Earnings per share for discomtinued operations
Hasic and Diluied esmings per equety shan:™ {1.04) (61.65)

Earnings per shore ler conlinuing and discentinued operations
Bicsic and Dilused earmings por equity share® [FR5.E3) (190.44)

® In view of losses during the current and previos period, the cptioss which are ansi-dilutive have been ignored in the caleulation of dluled sarmings per sare.
Aceerdingly, thene {5 no varigtion between basic and diluled samings per share.

(This spaee is inentionally faf Nank




One?T Communications Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2008
(Amounts in INR. Crores, unless otherwise stated)

23. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company's Financial Statemenis requires managemeni to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, asseis and liabilities, and the accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty aboul these assumptions and estimates could result
in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

There were no significant judgements made by the Company during the current vear.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that
have a significant risk of cansing a material adjustment to the carrving amounis of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, are described below.

Deferred taxes

Deferred tax assets can be recognised for deductible temporary differences (including unused tax losses) only to the
exient that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary difference can be
utilised. Management based on future projections has concluded that as at March 31, 2018 it is not probable that such
deferred tax assets can be realised in excess of available taxable temporary differences. Such projections include
estimates and assumptions such as revenue growth rate, inflation impact etc Management re-assesses unrecognised
deferred tax assets at each reporting date and recognises to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable
profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. For details about deferred tax assets, please refer note 27,

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefiis)

The cost of the defined benefil gratuity plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of the gratuity
obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that
may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary
increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined
benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting
date.

In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of
government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation, The mortality
rale is based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific countries. Those mortality tables tend to change only
at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected
future inflation rates for the respective countries, Further details about gratuity obligations, please refer Note 26.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the consolidated balance sheet cannot be
measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the
DCF model, Price of Recent Investment (PORI) method and Comparable Company Multiples (CCM) method. The
inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of

Judgement is required in establishing fair values.



Oned7 Communications Limited
Muotes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2008
{Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

24. Employee Stock Option Plans

During the year ended March 31, 2009, the Company introduced One 97 Employee Stock Option Plan — 1 for the benefit
of employees as approved by the Board of Directors in the meeting held on September 08, 2008 and by the members in
the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on October 22, 2008 for a total of 951,355 options. The Company has
appropriated 795,056 options of INR10 each to be granted to eligible employees which were granted on December 31,
2008, These options were granted to all eligible, permanent employees who were on rolls of Company as at December
31, 2008 and to be settled in equity. These options have a vesting period of 4 vears and were vested at one year interval
in the following proportion:

Date of vesting "o of total options vesting
December 31, 2009 10%%
December 31, 2010 20%
December 31, 2011 30%
December 31, 2012 40%

Out of 795,056 options granted, exercise price of 233.602 options granted to employees who joined the Company till
March 31, 2007 is INR10 per option and for 561,454 options granted to employees joining between April 01, 2007 and
December 31, 2008 the exercise price is Bs 49 per option.

On September 03, 2010, the Company has appropriated 252,101 options of INR 10 each to be granted to eligible
employees (including grant of 30,000 options to independent non-executive directors) at an exercise price of INR 180
each. Options granted to independent non-executive direciors were approved in Extra-Ordinary General meeting of
members held on November 22, 2010. These options have a vesting period of 4 years at one year interval in following

proporiion:

Date of vesting % of total options vesting
September 03, 2011 10%
Seplember 03, 2012 20%
September 03, 2013 30%
September 03, 2014 40%

On September 01, 2011, the Company increased the ESOP pool by adding 107,407 options taking tolal ESOP pool to
1,058,762 as approved by the Board of Directors in the mecting held on August 02, 2011 and by the members in the
Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on August 19, 2011.

On January 30, 2012, the Company has appropriated 4,330 options of INR 10 each to be granted 1o one eligible
employee al an exercise price of INR 232 each. These options have a vesting period of 4 years at one year interval in
following proportion;

Date of vesting % of total options vesting
January 30, 2012 - 10%

January 30, 2013 20%
January 30, 2014 30
January 30, 2015 0%

.-k\"



One%7 Communications Limited
Notes o the Fimancial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
(Amounty ir: INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

On December 29, 2012, the Company has appropriated 196,163 options of INR 10 each to be granted to eligible
emplovee al an exercise price of INR 180 each as approved by the Board of Directors in the meeting held on November
29, 2012 and by the members in the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on December 29, 2012.

These options have a vesting period of 4 years at one year interval in following proportion:

Date of vesting % of lotal upliurg';esﬁng
December 29, 2012 10%
December 29, 2013 20%

| December 29, 2014 30%
December 29, 2015 40%,

On August 01, 2013, the Company has appropriated 166,668 options of INR 10 each to be granted to eligible employvees
al an exercise price of INR 180 each as approved by the Board of Directors in the meeting held on January 31, 2014,
30% of these options have a vesting period of 4 years at one year izterval in following proportion:

{ Date of vesting %o of total options vesting
Angust 1, 2014 10%
Aungust 1, 2015 20%
Angust 1, 2016 30%
August 1, 2017 40%

Remaining 70% of the options will be vested upon achievement of ceriain performance largels.

On March 31. 2014, (he Company ircreased the ESOP pool by adding 260,000 options taking total ESOP pool to
1,318.762 as approved by the Board of Directors in the meeting held on January 31, 2014 and by the members in the
Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on August 31, 2014,

On April 01, 2014 the Company has appropriated 313,446 options of INR 10 each 1o be granted to eligible employees at
an exercise price of INR 90 each as ratified by the Board of Dircctors in the meeting held on  June 10, 2015,

Date of vesting %o of total options vesting
April 1, 2015 10%

Apnl 1,2016 20%

April 1,2617 0%

April 1. 2018 40%

On April 01, 2015, the Company has appropriated 491,722 options of INR 10 each to be granted to eligible employees
at an exercise price of INR 20 each. These cptions have a vesting period of 4 years at one year interval in following
proportion:

Date of vesiing % of total options vesting |
April 1,2016 10%%

Apnl 12017 20%

April 1,2018 % 3%

April 1.2019 40% _._

On September 30, 2015, the Company increased the ESOP pool by adding 604,858 options taking total ESOF pool to
1,923,620 as approved by the Board of Directors in the meeting held on July 24, 2015 and by the members in the
Annual General Meeting held on Sepiember 30, 2015,



One?7 Communications Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
{Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

On October 01, 2015 the Company has appropriated 104.864 options of INR 10 each to be granted to eligible
employees at an exercise price of INR 90 each. These options have a vesling period of 4 years at one year interval in
following proportion:

Date of vesting % of lotal options vesting
October 1.2016 10%
October 1.2017 20%
October 1.2018 3%
October 1,2019 40%

On April 01, 2016 the Company has appropriated 391,018 options of INR 10 each to be granted to eligible employees at
an excrcise price of INR 90 each. These options have a vesting period of 4 years al one year interval in following
proportion;

Date of vesting % of total options vesting
April 12017 10%
April 12018 20%
April 1,2019 30%
April 1,2020 40%

On October 01, 2016 the Company has appropriated 101,970 options of INR 10 each to be granted to eligible
employees at an exercise price of INR 90 each. These options have a vesting period of 4 years at one year interval in
following proportion:

Date of vesting % of total options vesting
October 1,2017 10%
October 1,2018 20%
October 1,2019 30%
October 1,2020 i 40%,

On April 01, 2017 the Company has appropriated 361,128 options of INR 10 each to be granted to eligible employees at
an exercise price of INR 90 each. These options have a vesting period of 4 years at onc year interval in following
proportion:

Date of vesting | % of total options vesting |
| April 1.2018 . 10%%

April 1,2019 s 20%

April 1,2020 B 30%

April 1.2021 H0%%

On October 01, 2017 the Company has appropriated 29,044 options of INR 10 each to be granted 1o eligible employees
al an exercise price of INR 90 each. These options have a vesling period of 4 years at one year interval in following
proportion:

N
\
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Motes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
{Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

Date of vesting % of total options vesting
October 1,2018 10%
October 1,2019 20%
October 1,2020 30%
October 1,2021 40%

The total options outstanding as at March 31, 2018 are 988,521 (March 31, 2017: 1.139.073) out of which 19,785
(March 31, 2017: 56,053) options have an exercise price of INR 10 each, 5,016 (March 31, 2017: 68,616) options have
an exercise price of INR 49 each, 137,813 (March 31, 2017: 161,008) options have an exercise price of INR 180 each
and 825,907 (March 31, 2017: 853,398) options have an exercise price of INR 90 each,

Movements during the year
The following table illustrates the number and weighted average exercise prices (WAEP) of, and movements in, share

options during the year

Weighted Weighted
et | e[St
. Exercise Price Exercise Price
Particulars
INR INR
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 1,139,075 96,31 1,035434 98.51
Options granied during the year 390,172 90.00 505,715 90.00
Options exercised during the year (226,034) 77.18 (166,412) 99 86
Options forfeited during the year (314,692) §8.37 (235,662) 90.52
Options outstanding at the end of the year 988,521 100,74 1,139,075 96.31
Vested options outstanding at the end of the
year (exercisable) 385,779 117.51 433,294 106.60

The weighted average remaining contractual life for the share options outstanding as at March 31, 2018 was 1.82 years
(March 31, 2017: 1.90 years).

The weighted average fair value of options granted during the year was INR 4,894.71 (March 31, 2017 was INR
2,622.92),

The expense recognised for employee services received during the year is shown in the following table:

March 31,2018 March 31,2017

Expense arising from equity-settled share-based payment

transactions 7247 44.83
Investment (ESOP issued to employees ol subsidiary company) 479 ”
Taotal expense arising from share-based payment transactions 77.26 44,83

Ny



Ome%7 Communications Limited
Motes to the Financial Statements for the yvear ended March 31, 2018
{Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

The weighied average fair value of options granted under the One 97 ESOP Scheme during the yvear ended on March 31,
2018 {computed vsing Black-Scholes model) was INR 4,894 71 for grant date April 1, 2017 and October 1, 2017. The
estimation of fair value on date of grant was made using the Black-Scholes model with the following assumplions:

Grant Date:- April 1, 2017

Share price INR
4.959.04
Weighted average exercise price INR 90
Dividend yield %o ¥
Expected life (years) 4
Risk free interest mate 6.63%
Annualized Volatility 50.46%
Grant Date:- October 1, 2017
Share price INR
4,959.04
Weighted average exercise price INR 90
Dividend yield %o 0%
Expected life (years) 4
Risk free interest mle 6.48%
Annualized Volatility 54.87%

The weighted average fair value of options granied under the One 97 ESOF Scheme during the vear ended on March 31,
2017 {(computed using Black-Scholes model) was INR 2,204.97 for grant date April 1, 2016 and INR. 4,277.81 for grant
date October 1, 2016. The estimation of fair value on date of grant was made using the Black-Scholes model with the

following assumptions:

Grant Date:- April 1, 2016

Share price INR
2,265.89
Woeighted average exercise price INR 90
Dividend yield % 0%
Expected life (years) 4
Risk free interest mate 7.43%
Annualized Volatility 53.73%
Grant Date:- October 1, 2016
Share price TNR
434156
Weighted average exercise price INR 90
Dividend vield % 0%
Expected life (years) 4
Risk free interest rate 6.82%
52.82%

Annualized Volatility
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Motes to the Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2018

{(Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

MNotes:

1. Weighted average share price is based on the value of Common Equity Shares arrived at by using Back-solve

method
2. Dividend yield is considered zero, as no dividend payout is expected in the foreseeable future.
3. Risk free return is based on the yield to maturity of Indian treasury securities, with a maturity corresponding to the

expected term of ESOP,
4. Annualized volatility is based on the median weekly volatility of selected comparables companies for a time period

commensurate with the expected term.

{This space is intentionally left blank)
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15, Related party iramactioss

A, Entilies over which company excrcise conirol

Wamie Country of incorgoralion
[eiligin Subsidiaries
(Cme#? Conmunications India Limited adia
Finanesal Serviees Limited .
Payim Entertninmant Limitod (w o.f fuly 35, 3017} India
Money Lamiiad (welS 20, 2017 India
‘Wastelind Estertiinment Private Limited (w e [ July §2017) R Indin
Mobiguest Mobile T ses Privale Limited {w.e.f August 10.20] India
in Money Private Limsted (oo MOstober 16,2017) Indin

Latile Inbemit Prvaic Umm{w:.fnmuhﬁgulﬂ [ndia
Higena
Dhihas
{Singapans
URA

b blinrie of Subsidiarie

Cne?T Communacutions Rwanda Private Limiled Rwenda

|One¥T Commumicutions Toanzomia Privede Limited Tzinea

OnieST Communsoutions Hanglodesh Private Limsted il

Omu®T Ugands Limated

OmesT bvory Const 54 Coast

(Cnc7 Heran 50, Beren

Payim Labs Inc Caradn

Cme47 Communicatoss Molaysie S4n Bdn Malaysia

|Nemrhstiy India Privae Limsted (w,e.l December 6,2017) Indin

oeed IT Solution Private Limiled (w.e.f August 10, 2017} Indin

Acumen Game Extertunsient Private Limsted (w.efNovember 13, 2017) Indin

Comirolied Trusi

(Cet7 Ernclotes weifis Tivse Incky

B. Entilies over which company exercive sigaificant infleence

Name

Coundry of incorparaiion

Sozomo Techaologies Private Limited

Listle Eaternet Siapspoee Pie. Limiled (il Hovember 30, 301 71

QRG] Private Lanitel

indi Ywen Linmited (118 November 30, 2017)

erits Bank Limibed fwoe 3 017y

Mukiguen Mebile Technologies Provaie Limited E.I_:I Augest 05, 2007y

Litele Internet Private Limited (till Docmber 03, 201 7)

. Key Managemenl Persomuel

[Vijay Shekhas Shama Mansging Darector and Chairman
Madiur Deorn Chief Finamcial Oficer (.o [Jass 10, 3017 )
Asaed Sanla Chief Financial Ofcer (from Apeil 0], 3017 te Juse 10, 2017)

T Esdities baviag significani [afluence ever the Company

SAIF I Meusines Company Limited

SAIF Parters India V Limited

SAIF Partaers nda IV Lisited

SAIF India ¥ FTI Holdings Limited

Alipay Singapose E-Commerce Private Limited
Alibaba.com Singapore E-Commerce Private Limited
Alipay Labs (3ingapore) Phe Linmited

EVF Iadia Holdings {Cayman) Limited

E. Relatives of Individuals owning interest in the veding power of the Company bt glves the conteol or significand Inllseace

Ajay Shekher Sharma
F. Related partics as per Cospanies Act, 2003

Paytm E-commerce Private Limited

Biroaber of Mr. Vigny Shekbar Sharma
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Naotes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
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Details of transactions with related partics during the year ended March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017:-

Particulars March 31,2018 March 31, 2017)
|CineS7 Communications Migeria Lid 0.45 11.26
Cine97 Communications FE-LLC 0.34 0.1%
Mobiquest Mobile Technologies Private Limited 487 =
Paytm E-comsmerce Private Limited 1.603.11 2,36 |
Paytm Paymenis Bank Limited A00.86 -
‘Wasteland Ententainment Private Limited 0.83 =
Mearbiuy India Private Limited L6d -
Socamo Technologies Private Limited 015 24
Litile Internet Private Limited 150 1.08
Oned7 Benin 54 001 .00
COme97 Communications Ewanda Private Limited x 0.10
Payim Labs Inc. 033 0.24
Cne?7 Communications Tanzania Private Limited 0.21 0.07
Cne?7 Uganda Limited 0.33 0.44
Cned7 Communicalions Hangladesh Private Limited 0.08 0.1%
Ome %7 USA Inc. - 0.05
\Reimbursement of Expenzes

FPaytm Paymenis Bank Limited 117.75 -
Paytm E-commerce Private Limited 121.21 4.58
hfobiquest Mobile Technologies Private Limited 0.26 -
Paytm Maney Limited 0.39 -
Paytm Labs Inc. 16,70 =
shsgetz glueg gn Finnpee Leasy

Paytm Payments Bank Limited 23.24

ErEuI'hehl Tor Assels piven on !!g'n“ H“E

Payim Payments Bank Limited 2166 =
Interest income

Payim Payments Bank Limited 5.78 -
Payim E-commerce Private Limited 43.95 =
Urja Money Private Limited 011 -
ﬁlin an EI.E n; Wallel business

Payim Paymenis Bank Limdted 62,99 -
Receiving of Services (Legal & Professional Services)

One87 USA Inc. 1.32 10
Paytm Labs e, 31.15 45.55
Purchase of Fixed Assets

Paytm Labs Inc. 003 003 |
Alipay Labs (Singapore) Pre Limifed




One?7 Communications Limited
Modes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
{Amounts in INR crores, unless otherwise stated)

Paytm Payments Bank Limited

Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
i
One®? Communications Migeria Lid 082
| Ome 57 Communication Kenya Lisd L34
0 5 Communications FLC - .08
Paytm E-commerce Private Limited 1.14 -
Paytm Paymenis Bank Limited 173.06 -
Paylm Labs Inc. 0.07 iz
Alipay Labs (Singapors) Pie Limited 24.11 1.52
e of Egquity Shar

SVF India Holdings (Cayman) Limited £.09 -
Security Premium received
SVF India Holdings (Cayman) Limited 643381 -
Inyestmend in ﬁh'm EI ﬁn beidiaries
Wasteland Entertainment Private Limited 15.00 -
Mobiguest Mobile Technalbogics Private Limited 10.21 £
|OneT Co scations India Limited 17.90 =

Enterlzinment Limited 0,11 -
Paytm Financial Services Limited 2.00 -
Paytm Money Limited 10.00 -
Lirja Money Private Limited 6,00 -
Little Intemet Private Limited 272.31 =
Inter corporate lnan given
Urja Money Private Limited 2.20 -

i ramled io il iy
Ome®7 Communications Singapore Private Limited 4,75 -
le of Investment i dmles

Little Internct Singapore Pre. Limited 127 -
|Indds ¥uva Limited 0.78 -
Sale of Investment In Associates
Little Internct Singapare Pre. Limited 33.29 -
Indi Yuva Limited 0,08 -
Invgstment in Asenciales
|Paytm Payments Bank Limited TL00 -
Advances Given during the vear
|Cne&T ications FZ-LLC - 16.19
Paytm Labs Inc. 4628 16,40
Wasleland Entertainment Private Limited 6,22 -
| iy AR T e T - 62.69
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{Amounts in INR crores, unless otherwise stated)

Dietails of balances outstanding with related partics as at March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017:-

Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Other Receivable for expenditure incurred
{One7 Benin SA .43 .45
Oned7 Communications FL-LLC 0.18 01l
COned? Communications Migeria Limited 126 1.28
Omed7 Communications Rwanda Private Limited 0.56 0. 56
Cned7 Communications Singapore Private Limited 0.0 QT
Cned7 Communications Tanzania Private Limited 0.12 002
Cned7 Ivary Coast SA 0.34 .33
Cned7 Uganda Limited 1.48 1.1%
Cned7 Communications Bangladesh Private Limited 1.75 L7
Chne 97 USA Inc. - 0.04
Payim Labs Inc. 16,98 0.43
Payien Money Limited 0,57 -
hdohiguest Mobile Technobogics Private Limited 0.28 =
Alibaba.com Singapore E-Commerce Private Limited 0,08 -
Paytm E-commerce Private Limited 157.87 4,62
|Paytm Payments Bank Limited 6.97 -
[Advance Recoverable in Cash
Paytm Labs Inc. 3430 12.63
Pavtm Payments Bank Limited 125.44 62,69
Payim E-commerce Private Limited 23.55 -
Wasteland Entertainment Private Limited 6.22
B Wil
Urja boney Private Limited 2.20 =
|Amount Receivalble for sale of business
Payim E-commence Private Limited 495,20 621.25
Payim Payments Bank Limited 54.29 =
Amount Receivable from Pavment Gateway
Payim Payments Bank Limited 115,57 0.72
Trade Receivables
Cmed7 Commumications Migeria Limitcd 16.35 12. R}
Fayim E-commercs Private Limited 7323 2.94
Payim Payments Hank Limited 7338 -
Mobiquest Mobile Technologics Private Limited 217 =
| Mearbuy Bndia Private Limited 0,08 -
Criher Financlal Assels
Oned7 Communications Migeria Limited .26 10.33
OneS7 Communications Bangladesh Private Limited 0.08 -
Cne97 Benin 54 0.01 2
Cine97 Communications FZ-LLC 1638 16,19
Cned7 Communications Tanzania Private Limited 011 =
Ome97 Uganda Limited 0.04 -
Cine87 Come ications Eowanda Frivate Limited 001 001
4,95 -

Faytmn Payments Bank Limited

Ny
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Particalurs March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Trade payal including acerued

CnedT Communicaticns Singapore Private Limited .03 0.03
COnedT Communications FE-LLEC - n.o7
Ome 37 USA Inc. 2.53 1.20
| Alipay Labs {Singapore) Ple Limited 11.47 1.52
Payim E-commerce Private Limited 0,80 -
Payim Payments Bank Limited 45,26
CHher pavalbles
Socomo Technologies Private Limited 0.02 g
Lattle Internet Private Limited [N E] 0.14
Paytm E-cor ¢ Private Limited 32.04 203.29
Faytm Pavenenis Bank Limited 148 =
Mearbuy India Private Limited 0.21 -
Wasteland Entertainment Private Limited o3 -
|Advance (rom customer,
|Spcoma Technologies Private Limited .02 0.03
| Wasteland Entertainment Private Limised 0,01 -

|Little Internet Private Limited 011 0.11
Compensation of key management personnel and their relatives for the year ended on:

[Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Salarizs, bonus and incentives 583 586
ESOF Expenses 12.40 92.17
Todal compensstion paid 18.23 15.03

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

(i) The services provided and received from related panties are made on ferms equivalent to these that prevail in arm's length transactions,
Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and inferest free and setllement occurs in cash. These have been no guarantees provided or

received for any related party recelvables or payables.

(i1} The remuneration to the key managesial personnel (*KMP') doss not include the provisions made for gratuity, leave benefits as they ars

determined on an actuarial basis for the Company as a whole,

W
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Modes fo the Finoncial Stodemenis For the year smded Mareh 31, 2018
(Amoends im INE crores, unless atherwise staled)

27. Incomse Tax

‘The major components of inoome tax axpense for the years ended March 31, 2018 and March 31, 200 7 are:

Comschdated statement of profit and kss
Frofit or boss section

March 31, 218 March 31, 2007
|Cument income tac R e P
Cusrent income lam:h_u’a! . -
Adjustinents in respect of curem moame tax of previous year (101} 365
Deferred tax:
Fealitirye 1o origmation and reversal of emparary dafferences - =
Income lax i in the st i of profi or Joss {1010} 565

Teecomuilition of i expense and the nocounting profit mudtiplisd by [ds®s domestic to e for March 31, 2008 and March 31, 2007

Morch 31, 2017 |
Accounting profit before incans fax including discontinued operations [{RETE] _(B759)
At Truds g1 meoim e 1ax rabe of 30.90% (3] March 201 7: 30.90% ) [460.B5) L270.68)
ME ;muhmEM:mm imccmn tax of previous years {1.00) 63
Ciher non-deductible expenses (0.71) (20
Losses on whicn deferred iaxes nol necopnised* 414 57 265.88
| Dther tempoeury differences on which dafrrod tanes ned fetepnised® 43 ) 498
Income tax experse reporled in the satement of prefit and loss [N 165

* Dreferred tax ol recopnised since il is ot probable that taxable profits will be available against which the vratilsed tax losses and temporry

differencas can be wilised, as assessed at Monch 31,2018,

Explry dates ol d tax losses

Unlimited paricd for unatscrbed Depreciabion

S

As ol
Year ending March 31, March 31,2018
Hiad 3BL61
024 T.494.25
025 717,87
2026 1,788.15
o 383102
Unlimited pericd for imabsarbed Deprecation 163.00
Expiry dates of unused tax losses
As of
Year emding Mareh 51, Mareh 51,2007
2073 33161
2004 149425
25 BO1.78
1627.68
10842



One?7 Communications Limited
MNaotes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
(Amounts in INR crores, unless otherwise stated)

28. Commitments and contingencies

a. Leases

Operating lease: Company as Lessee

The Company has taken certain office space on operating lease, Rental expense towards leases charged to statement of profit
and loss for the vear ended March 31, 2018 amount o INR 11.74 (March 31, 2017 INE 11.80).

Future minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Mol later than cne year 10.41 5.54
Later than ane year but not later than five vears 18.71 0.11
Later than five years 1.32 =

b, Capital commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be exccuted on capital account and not provided for is INR 3.59 (MNet of capital
advance of INR 0.29) (March 31 2017: INR 39.95 (Net of capital advances of INR 0.37).

¢, Contingent liabilities

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Claims against the Company not acknowledged 2.7 1.59
a5 debts
Total .70 1.59

Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts represents certain claims which the company considers to be fivolous.
The Company has contingent Liability towards Bank Guarantees provided of INR 24193 (March 31, 2017 INR 92.92).

{Thiz space 15 intentionally left blank)
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Notes to the Financial Statenents for the year ended March 31, 2018
{Amounts in INR crores, unless otherwise stated)

2%, Detuils af dues to Micro and Small Enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006

March 31 2018 Mareh 51 2017

The principal amount and the nterest due therzon remaining wnpaid 1o any
supplier a5 at the end of each accounting year

Pringipal amount due 1o micro and small enterprises 074
Interest due an above 014 _
0.88 -

The amount of interzst paid by the buyer in terms of scction 16 of the
MSMED Act 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to the
supplier beyond the appointed day during cach accounting year "

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay m making
payment (which have been paid but beyead the appointed day during the
year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act 2006,

The amount of interest acerued and remuining unpuid ot the end of each
accounting year 014

The amount of forther imterest remaining due and payeble even in the
suceeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as sbove are actually
paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a dedustible
expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006 -

0.14 -

N
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0, Foir value

The managsment has sssesaed that fair value of all fnancial assels and labilities mchdimg ensh and cash equivalents, trade receivahbes, secuarity deposits, other
financial assets. investments, trade payables, borrowings and other financial liskilitics, approximate their carrying amounls.

Fuir vahse hierarchy

The folkowing wable provades the fair value measurement herarchy of the Company's assets and liabilitics:

Level | - Quoded prices (unadjusted) in active markeis for identical assets or Habilities.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level | that are observable for the asset or habality, either directly {i & a5 prices) or indirectly
(i.e. derived from prices)

Level 3 - Inpats for the azsets ar liabilizes that ase not based on chservable market datn (unobservable inputs),

The follewing table presents fair value hierarchy of assets and labilnies measured at fair valee on o recurring basis a5 of March 31, 2018

Fair value measurement af end of the reporiing year Using

Laevel 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assels
Irvestments at fair valwe through OC] - - 338
Invesiments at fair value through Prodit and koss 3,652.98 - 100 70

The following table presenta fair valwe hierarchy of asse1s and liabilsies measured at fair value on o recuming hasis as of March 31, 2017

Foir volue measurement at end of the reporting year Using

Level 1 Level 1 Level 3
Asseis
Invesiments at fair value through OC1 = 414
Irvesiments al fair value through Profit and bass 20017 . 50.9]
(This space is intensionally lef! blank}
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(Amounts in INR Crores, unbess otherwise stated)

31. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s activilies expose il to a varety of financial risks, including market risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Company continues to focus on a system-based approach to business risk managemeni. The Company’s
financial nsk management process seeks to enable the early identification, evaluation and effective management of
key risks facing the business. Backed by strong internal control systems, the current Risk Management Framework
rests on policies and procedures issued by appropriate authorities; process of regular reviews/audits to set
appropriate risk limits and controls; monitoring of such risks and compliance confirmation for the same.

a. Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair valve of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices. Market prices comprise three types of risk: interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and
price risk. The Company has in place appropriaie risk managemeni policies to limit the impaci of these risks on iis
financial performance. The Company ensures optimization of cash through fund planning and robust cash
management practices.

(i) Interest Rate Risk

Interest rale risk refers to the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates.

The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in marketl inieresi rates relates primanly to the Company’s
borrowings with floating interest rates.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in inlerest rales, being a 0.5%
increase or decrease in interest rate, with all other variables held constant, of the Company’s loss before tax due to

the impact on floating rate borrowings.

As at March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Effect on loss before tax:

I-Base*- decrease by 50 bps (1.21) (0.45)
I-Base*- increase by 50 bps 1.21 0.45
*[CICI Bank Basc Rate

Other financial asscis and liabilitics of the Company are either non-interest bearing or fixed inlerest bearing
instrumenis, the Company's net exposure fo interest risk on such instruments is negligible.

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a reasonably possible change in the under-lying interest rate of the
Company's borrowings while assuming all other variables to be constant,

Based on the movements in the interest rates historically and the prevailing market conditions as at the reporting
date, the Company 's management has concluded that the above mentioned rates used for sensitivity are reasonable

benchmarks.

X

kY
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2018
(Amounts in INR Crores, unless othervwise stated)

(ii) Price risk

The Company invesis its surplus funds in various debt instruments and debt mutual funds. These comprise of
mainly liquid schemes of mutual funds (liguid investments) and fixed deposits. All debt mutual fund investmenis
are in AAA rated government bonds and treasury bills.

Mutual fund invesimenis are susceptible to market price risk, mainly arising from changes in the inleresi rales or
market yields which may impact the return and value of such investments.
Set out below is the impact of a 0.25% movement in the NAV of mutual funds on the Company 's loss before tax:

Changc in NAY Effect on loss before tax
March 31, 2018 0.25% (9.13)
0.25% 9.13
March 31, 2017 0.25% (0.73)
£.25% 0.73

(iii) Foreign currency risk

The Indian Rupee is the Company’s most significant currency. As a consequence, the Company's resulis are
presented in Indian Rupee and exposures are managed against Indian Rupee accordingly. Foreign currency risk is
the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign
exchange rates. The Company’s exposure 1o the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates pnimarily to the
Company's operaling aclivities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign currency).

The carrying amounis of the Company s financial assets and liabilities denominated in United States Dellar (USD)
and Canadian Dollar (CAD) are as follows;

March 31,2018 March 31,2017

Financial assets  Financial liabilities  Financial assets  Financial liabilities

Amount in USD Crores 0.70 027 0.73 078
Amount in CAD Crores 1.12 - 0.26 -

The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity 1o a reasonably possible change in USD and exchange rates, with
all other vanables held constant. The Company s exposure to foreign currency changes for all other cumrencies is

not material.

Changc in USD ratc Effect on loss before tax
March 31, 2018 10%s strengthening of USD against INR (3.14)
10" weakening of USD against INR 257
March 31, 2017 10% strengthening of USD against INR 0.40
10% weakening of USD against INR (0.33)
':HJ\ I

i

%
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The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in CAD and exchange rates. with
all other variables held consiani. The Company’s exposure to foreign currency changes for all other currencies is
not material.

Change in CAD rate Effect on loss before tax
March 31, 2018 10% strengthening of CAD against INR (5.23)
10% weakening of CAD against [INR 622
March 31, 2017 10% strengthening of CAD against INR (1.42)
10% weakening of CAD against INR 1.13

The above sensilivily analysis is based on a reasonably possible change in the under-lying foreign currency against
the functional currency while assuming all other variables to be constant,

Based on the movemenis in the foreign exchange rates historically and the prevailing market conditions as at the
reporting date, the Company s management has concluded that the above mentioned rates used for sensitivity are

reasonable benchmarks.

b. Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk thai counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or contract,
leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade
receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks. Management has a credit policy in
place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis.

(i} Trade receivables

The Company is exposed to credit risk in the event of non-payment by customers, Customer credit risk is managed
subject to the Company s established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management.
An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date by grouping the receivables in homogencous group.
The calculation is based on lifetime expecied credit losses. Trade receivables disclosed above include amounts (see
below for aged analysis) which are past due at the reporting date but against which the Company has not
recognised an allowance for doubtful receivables because the amounts are still considered recoverable.

Apeing of past due but not impaired receivables is as follows:

As at March 31,2018 March 31,2017
up to 90 days 18422 3519
91 to 130 days 55.70 14.70
181 to 270 days 5.91 6,18
271 to 365 days 12.66 2.04
Total 158.49 58.11
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Motes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 20018
(Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets,

The Company does not hold collateral as security.
At March 31, 2018 the Company had 5 customers (March 31, 2017; 5 customers) that owed the Company more
than INR 414 23 (March 31,2017: INR. 61.30) and accounted for approximately 73% (March 31, 2017 : 63%) of all

the receivables outstanding.
(ii) Other financial assets

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by (he Company’s treasury department
in accordance with the Company ‘s policy. Investmeni of surplus funds is made only with banks of high repute.

The Company’s maximum exposure lo credil risk for the componenis of the balance sheet at March 31, 2018 and
March 31, 2017 is the carrying amounis as illustrated in Note 7.

¢. Liguidity Risk

The Company's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
bank overdrafls, working capital loans etc. Company monitor their risk of shoriage of funds using cash flow
forecasting models. These models consider the maturity of their financial invesimenis, commitied funding and

projected cash flows from operations.

The Company’s objective is to provide financial resources to meet its business objectives in a timely, cost effective
and reliable manner. A balance between continuity of funding and Nexibility is maintained through the use of bank
borrowings. The Company also monitors compliance with its debt covenants. The maturity profile of the
Company s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments is given in the table below:

Particulars Less than 180 days

As at March 31, 2018

Borrowings 241.65
Trade payables 426,35
Other financial liabilities 227 84
Total #95.84

Ag at March 31, 2017

Borrowings 90.27
Trade payables 221.62
Other financial liabilities 1,147.50
Total 1,459.39

There are no financial liabilities with contraciual payments beyond 180 days.
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32. Discontinued Operations

{(a) On July 29, 2016, the Board of Directors approved the transfer of wallet business on a going concern basis by
way of slump sale, to a newly incorporated entity i.e. Payim Payments Bank Limited subject to ceriain approvals.
On January 3, 2017, RBI has granted banking licence to Paytm Payments Bank Limited to carry on payments bank
business in India subject to certain terms and conditions. In the month of May 2017, Payim Payments Bank
Limited has received the requisite approvals in respect of certain terms as mentioned in RBI letter dated January 3.
2017, Accordingly, the Company has transferred its wallet business on May 23, 2017 to Paytm Pavments Bank
Limited on a going concern basis for a consideration of INR 65.00 (present value of which is INR 63.10). The
Company has recognised a gain of INR 62.99 which has been shown as exceptional gain in the statement of Profit
& loss.

The results of Wallet business for the year are presenied below:

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Revenue 30.39 48.00

~ Expenses 35.64 98.98
Loss for the year from a discontinued operations (5.25) (50.98)

The net cash flows incurred by Wallet business are as follows:-

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Operating (5.25) (50.98)
Investing i 2
Financing ’ L
Net cash inflow/{outflow) (5.25) (50.98)

(b) During previous year, the Company had discontinued its Marketplace business. Revenue, cost, and loss of the
Marketplace business for the year ended March 31, 2017 are INR 34593, INRE 57971 and INR 23378
respectively. The business of Marketplace represented Company 's operating segment until March 27, 2017, being
the date on which transfer of Marketplace segment was consummated. Being a discontinued operation, this
segment is no longer presented in segment reporting note,

33. Capital Management

The Company s objectives while managing capital are to safeguard its ability to conlinue as a going concern and Lo
provide adequate returns for its sharcholders and benefits for other stakeholders. The key objective of the
Company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a stable capital structure with the focus on total
equity, uphold investor; creditor and customer confidence, and ensure fulure development of its business activities.
The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments 1o it, in light of changes in economic conditions
or its business requirements.

P
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2018
{Amounts in INR Croves, unless otherwise stated) -

"The Company’s capital management objective is to remain a debt-free company till the time it achieves break-even.
In order to meet this objective, Company meets anticipated funding requirements for developing new businesses,
expanding its geographical base, entering in to strategic mergers and acquisitions and other strategic investments,
by issuance of equity capital together with cash generated from Company’s operating and investing activities. The
company utilizes certain short term overdraft and working capital facilities to meet anticipated interim working
capital requirements.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the vears ended
March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017

34. Segment Reporting

The Board of Directors (chief operating decision maker or CODM) monitor the operating results of the business
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment.
Segment’s performance is evaluated based on segment revenue and segment result viz. profit or loss before tax
from continuing operations.

During the current year, the Company had changed the structure of its internal organization in a manner that causes
the composition of its reportable segment to change, the corresponding items of segment information for previous
year has been accordingly restated.

For management purposes, the Company is organized into business segments based on its services and has four
reportable segments, as follows:

- Payments: Includes the services provided by acting as a payment facilitator to third party merchants and money
transfer facilitator to consumers.

- Commerce: Includes acting as an aggregator for digital product like movie, deal, online travel aggregator and
provision of services like advertisement, brand promotion and technical support.

- Cloud: Includes provision of services to client for their various business needs like hosting services, marketing
SCIVICES.

- Others: Includes other businesses of the Company like wealth management services.

No operating segments have been aggregated to form the above reportable segments.

The business of Wallet is included in the ‘Payments’ segment in Company’s operating segments until May 23,
2017, being the date on which transfer of Wallet business was consummated. Being a discontinued operation, this
business is no longer presented within the Payments segment.

The business of Marketplace represents Company’s operating segment until March 31, 2017, being the date on
which transfer of Marketplace was consummated. Being a discontinued operation, this segment is no longer
presented in segment reporting note.

Segment assets comprise assets directly managed by each segment, and primarily include receivables, property,
plant and equipment, Capital work-in-progress, intangibles assets, intangible assets under development. Segment
liabilities primarily include operating liabilities. Segment capital expenditure comprises additions to property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets.

\\
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The Company has revenues primarily from customers inside India. Substantially all of the Company’s non-current
operating assets are inside India.

Revenue from two customers amounted to INR 578.35 (March 31, 2017: Nil), arising from sale of services in the
Payments segment.

Revenue from two customers amounted to INR 1.516.03 (March 31, 2017: Nil), arising from sale of services in the
Commerce segment.

Revenue from three customers amounted to INR 168.84 (March 31, 2017: Four customer amounting to INR
203.74), arising from sale of services in the Mobile Value Added Services segment.

Adjustments and eliminations

(i) Other income including fair value gains and losses on financial assets and finance costs are not allocated to
ndividual segments as the underlying instruments are managed on the Company level.

(ii) Current taxes, deferred taxes and certain financial assets and liabilities are not allocated to those segments as
they are also managed on the Company level.

(ii1) Capital expenditure consists of additions of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets but excluding
capital work-in-progress and intangible assets under development.

(This space is intentionally lefi blank)
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2008
(Amounts in INR Crores, unbess otherwise stated)

35. Events after the reporting period

The Company, subsequent to March 31, 2018, entered into an agreement to sell its online gaming/contests business
to Acumen Game Enterfainment Private Limited on slump sale basis, as a going concern, for an agreed
consideration of USD 5 million. Acumen Game Entertainment Private Limited is an Indian Company with 55%
shares held by Paytm Entertainment Limited (wholly owned subsidiary of the Company) and 45% shares held by
AGTech Media Holdings Limited. The transaction of transfer of business was vet to be consummated till the date of
adoption of these financial statements by the Board of Directors.

As per our report of even date

For 5.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
ICAI Firm registration number: 101049W/E300004 One97 Communications Limited

By

per Yogender £
Paniner ?
Membership No: 94524
Place: N 40\

Date: | R Moy 20\P

b
‘\AEJW

Chief Financial Officer

Senior Vice President - Finance



S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP Sactor 42, Secaor Hont
Charteréd Accountants Gurgaon-122 002, Haryana, India
Tel : +91 1244564 4000

Fax: +B1 124 464 4050

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of One97 Communications Limited
Report on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind AS financial statements of One97
Communications Limited (hereinafier referred to as “the Holding Company™), its subsidiaries (the
Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group™) and its associates.
comprising of the consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018, the consolidated Statement of Profit
and Loss including other comprehensive income, the consolidated Cash Flow Statement, the
consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
aceounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafler referred to as “the consolidated Ind
AS financial statements™).

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of these consolidated Ind
AS financial statements in terms of the requirement of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) that give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position. consolidated financial performance including
other comprehensive income, consolidated cash Tows and consolidated statement of changes in equity
ol the Group including its associates in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with the
Companies {Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015, as amended. The respective Board of Directors
ol the companies included in the Group and of its associates are responsible for maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Group and of'its associates and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent: and the design. implementation and maintenance of adequate internal linancial controls,
that were operating elTectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used lor the purpose
of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements by the Directors of the Holding
Company, as aforesaid,

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated Ind AS financial statements based on
our audit, While conducting the audit, we have laken into account the provisions of the Act, the
accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Standards on Auditing, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, as specified
under Section 143{10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures Lo obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
Judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the Holding Company’s preparation of the consolidated

5.0 Hliban & Associates LLECa Limiled Lisbilily Fartnershin with LLP klesdity Mo, aa-4295 2o
Reqd. tilke © 22, Camae Steeel. Wack 0. D Floor, Kolkiath TO0 01L& e
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Ind A5 financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audil procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Holding Company’s
Board of Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements, We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by the
other auditor in terms of their report referred to in sub-paragraph (a) of the Other Matters paragraph
below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements,

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according 1o the explanations given o us and
based on the consideration of report of other auditor on separate special purpose financial statements
and on the other financial information of one associate, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS linancial
statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and Fair
view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India of the consolidated state
of affairs of the Group and its associates as at March 31, 2018, their consolidated loss including other
comprehensive income, their consolidated cash Tows and consolidated statement of changes in equity
for the year ended on that date.

Other Matters

The consolidated financial statements also include the Company’s share of net loss ol INR 22.77 Tor
the year ended March 31, 2018, in respect of one associate, whose financial statements, other financial
information have been audited by other auditors and whose reports have been furnished to us by the
Management. Our opinion on the consolidated Nnancial statements, in so Tar as it relates to the amounts
and disclosures included in respect of the associate, and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) of Section
143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid associates, is based solely on the reports of such
olher auditors.

Cur opinion above on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements below. is not modified in respect of the above matter with respect (o our
reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act based on our audit and on the consideration ol report of the
other auditor on separate special purpose linancial statements and the other financial information of one
associate, as noted in sub-paragraph (a) of the Other Matters paragraph, we report, to the extent
applicable, that:

(a) We! the other auditor have sought and oblained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and beliel were necessary Tor the purpose of our audit of the aforesaid
consolidated Ind AS financial statements;

(b} In our opinion proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated Ind AS financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination
ol those books,

(¢} The consolidated Balance Sheet, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including the
statement of other comprehensive income, the consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the
consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity deall with by this Report are in agreement with the
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(d)

(¢}

(1)

(2)

For

books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements:

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standard) Rules. 2015, as amended;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company and
subsidiary companies incorporated in India as on March 31, 2018, taken on record by the Board of
Directors of the Holding Company and subsidiary companics and on the basis of the report ol other
auditor as noted in sub-paragraph (a) ol the Other Matters paragraph for one associate, none of the
directors of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and associates incorporated in India
are disqualified as on March 31, 2018 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164
{2} of the Act:

With respect to the adequacy and the operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and ils associates,
mecorporated in India, refer to our separate report in “Annexure 17 to this report;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended by the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Amendment Rules, 2017, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration ol the report of other auditor on
separate special purpose financial statements of one associate as noted in sub-paragraph (a) of the
Other Matters paragraph:

i.  The consolidated Ind AS linancial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on
consolidated financial position of the Group and its associates - Refer Note 29 (o the
consolidated Ind AS financial statements;

i, The Group and its associates did not have any material foreseeable losses in long-term
contracts including derivative contracts;

i, There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and

Protection Fund by the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and associates
incorporated in India;

S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants
\ {\M Firm Registration Number: 10 1049W /E300004
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S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accountants

Annexure 1 to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Consolidated Financial
Statements of One97 Communications Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated Mnancial statements of One97 Communications
Limited as of and for the year ended March 31, 2018, we have audited the internal financial contrals
over financial reporting of One97 Communications Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Holding
Company™) and its subsidiary companies and its associate companies. which are companies
incorporated in India, as of that date. 1o the extent applicable,

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and its associate
companies, which are companies incorporated in India. are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by
the Holding Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Mote on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance ol adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence (o the respective company's policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records. and the timely preparation of reliable financial information. as
required under the Act,

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on
Auditing, both, issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, and deemed to be prescribed
under section 4310} of the Act, to the extent applicable 1o an audit of internal financial controls, Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and il such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit invelves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
linancial controls system over linancial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding ol internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the Mnancial statements, whether due to fraud or error,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over
financial reporting.




S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accountants

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed Lo provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail. accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company: (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company: and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use.
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal linancial controls over linancial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due 1o
error or [raud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and its associale companies, which are
companies incorporated in India, to the extent applicable, have maintained in all material respects, an
adequate internal financial contrals system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls
over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2018, based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Other Matter

Our report under Section 143(3)(1) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting of the Holding Company, insofar as it relates to one associate
company, which is a company incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding report of the auditor
of such associate incorporated in India.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAL Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004
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Oned7 Commonications Limited
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for the vesr ended March 31, 2018

(Amounts bn INKE Crores, unless olherwise stated)

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

Cash flow from operating activities:
Loss before tnx from continuing operations
Loss before tax from discontinned operaUons
Adjustments o reconcile profit before tx 1o net cash fows
Drepreciation and amortization expeme
Intesest income
Interest cost
Trade receivables! Advance written off
Provigion for doubiful advances
Provision for Impaimment of trads reesivables
Giain on sale of wallst business (refer note 33)
Gain o gale of markeiplace business {refer nodo 33)
Provision for impairment of investments in associ stes
Fixed assels written ofT
Hent equalisation reserve
Share based pavment cupenses
Provisien for employee incentive
Share of result of associates
Fair value goin on financial instruments ot FYTPL.
Grain on sale of property, plant and equi prment
Operating loss befure working capltal changes
Working capital adjustments:
Increasei{decrense) in trade payables
Increase in other cument liatilities
Inereasef{decrease) in other non-current linbilitics
Increase/(decreasc) in other financial abilitios
(Increase)'decrease in trade reccivables
(Tnerease)decreass in other financial zssets
{Increaseydecrease in Deferred tax assats
{Inerease)in odler currcat assets
{Incroasa) in prepayments
(Inorenae) in security deposils
Cash wsed in operutions
Incaorme ta paid

Cash flow used in operating nctivities (4)

Cash Now fromfused in) investing activitivs

Purchase of property, plast and equipment including infangible assets, work in progress and capial advances
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment

Acquisition of subsidiarics {net of cash acquired)

Investiment in bank deposits (having eriginal maturity of mors than 12 months)

Investment in bank deposits (having eriginal matusity of more than three manths but less than 12 months)
Maturity of bank deposits (having origina maturity of maore than 12 manths)

Maturity of bank deposits Chaving original maturity of more than three maonths but less than 12 months)
Investments in non corresd investments

Sale of Mon curment Investment

Investments in curvent investments

Prozesds from sale of current invesimends

Interest received

Cash fow from! (used in) investing activities (1)

Cush Mow fromiused in) financing activities
Procoeds from issue of share capital

Share Tremium received on issoe of share capital
Share issue expenses

Share application money received during the year
Share application money utilised during the year
Interest paid

Proceodsi{repayments) from secured loans

Cash flow from financing sctivities (C 5

(1.5397.56) (617.25)
(525 (279.490)
TR.ER 40,00

[15.27) (31.02)
1888 an
3.12 =
182 .62
3591 9.89
(6254 -
- {591.32)
59,59 2
.11 .24
0,14 {0, 10y
8364 44,83
31T 264
3081 2747
(177.44) {129.83)
(025 {063}
{1,56R.08) (1,520.6:6)
22134 (112,83
1434 1213
(2.83) .
{990.72) BRO.26
{441.23) 17,90
6220 (934,18}
172 -
(298,40 {113.60)
{30.649) (13.54)
{29.25) {6.95)
{2,450.46) (1,761.47)
{164.91) (4271}
{2,615.37) (1,B24.18)
(59.51) {112.18)
042 063
(17.95) -
{119.64) (B9.68)
(BR.82) {1589
74,49 23,39
T3.08 20,04
(182.52) (195.24)
§1.06 -
(10,3508 5%), (1,177.00)

6,317.69 3,203.93
T4.97 28,93

(4,197,58) 1,686.93

.33 403.73
643515 3
{6.89) (3.93)
(1445 0.21
{0223 =
{18.88) {3.71)
(23.65) 23.65
639180 419.95



OneST Communications Limited
Consolidnied Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2008

iAmounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise staded)

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Effect of exthange differences on restatement of foreign currency cash and cash cquivalenta (0.95) {1 50)
Mot decrease in cash ond eash equivalents (A+B+C) (420L01) IH1.20
Cash and cash cquivalent at the beginning of the year 509.73 228.53
Cash and cash equivalent al the end of the year {refer nole 9(a)) ﬂ?.'.?I_ 509,73

The accompanying notes are an infegral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements,

Az per our report of even date,
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Onet7 Communications Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
(Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

1.  Corporate information

These Consolidated Financial Statements comprise financial statements of One97 Communications Limited (“the
Company™ or “the Holding Company™) together with its subsidiaries, controlled trusts and associates, herein after
referred 1o as the "Group” for the year ended March 31, 2018,

One97 Communications Limited is a public company domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™), The registered office of the Company is located at 1% Floor, Devika Tower,
Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110019, The principal place of business of the Group is in India,

The Group is in the business of providing payment services primarily as payment facilitator and providing voice and
messaging platforms to the telecom operators and enterprise customers.

Till May 22, 2017 tlic Holding Company was in the business of issuing and operaling semi-closed wallet (e-wallet
operations) under Prepaid Payment Instruments (PPI) licence granted by RBL On May 23, 2017 the Holding
Company has transferred its ¢- wallet operations to Paytm Payments Bank Limited on a poing concern basis. With
effect from March 27, 2017, the Holding Company transferred Physical Goods Marketplace Business to Paytm E-
commerce Private Limited,

The Consolidated Financial Statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on

May 18, 2018.

2, Significant accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

The Consolidated Financial Statements (“Financial Statements™) of the Group have been prepared in accordance with
Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS™) notified under the Companics’ (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015, as
amended From time to time.

Effective April 1, 2016, the Group has adopted all the Ind AS standards and the adoption was carried out in
accordance with Ind AS 101 “First time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards”, with April 1, 2015 as the
transition date. The transition was carried oul from Indian Accounting Principles generally accepted in India as
prescribed under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAF).

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value (refer accounting policy on financial instruments) which have been measured at fair value

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially
adopted or a revision 1o an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting pelicy hitherto in nse.

All the amounts included in the financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees ("Rupees” or ‘Rs.” or *INR") and
arc rounded to the nearest crores up to two decimal places, excepl per share data and unless stated otherwise.



One?? Communications Limited
Notes to the Consalidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
{(Amountsin INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

2.2 Business Combination and Goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition 1s measured
as the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair value. Acquisition-related
costs are expensed as incurred.

At the acguisition date, the identifiable assets acguired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their
acquisition date fair values. However, the following assets and liabilities acquired in a business combination are
measured al the basis indicated below;

# The assets or liabilitics related to employee benefit amangements are recognised and measured in accordance
with Ind AS 19 Employee Benefits.

o Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 Income Taxcs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for approprate
classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as al the acquisition date,

The consideration transferred by the acquirer is recognized at fair value at the acquisition date. Deferred
consideration is classified as a liability under Ind AS 109 and is measured at amortized cost.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred over the
net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. Afler initial recognition, goodwill is measured al cost
less any accumulated impairment losses, Goodwill is tested for impairment annually.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition
date, allocated to cach of the Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.

A cash penerating unil 1o which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any poodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other asscts of the unit pro rata based on the
carrving amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in statement of profit
or loss, An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

2.3 Basis of consolidation

The Consolidated Financial Statements comprise the Financial Statements of the Group as at March 31, 2018,
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable retumns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee,
Specifically, the Group conirols an investee if and only iff the Group has:

a) Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activitics of

the invesiee)
by Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and
¢} The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns



One?7 Communications Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
{Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

Generally, there is a presumption that 8 majority of voting rights result in control. To support this presumplion and
when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an invesiee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an inveslee, including:

a) The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee

by  Righis arising from other coniractual arrangements

c) The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights

d) The size of the group’s holding of voting rights relative 1o the size and dispersion of the holdings of the other
voting rights holders

The Group re-assesses whether or not il controls an investec if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes 10 one or more of the three elements of conirol, Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, labilities,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the vear are included in the Consolidated
Financial Statements from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other
events in similar circumstances. If a member of the group uses accounting policies other than those adopted in the
Consolidated Financial Statements for like transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments
are made to that group member’s Financial Statements in preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements to ensurc
conformity with the group’s accounting policies,

The Financial Statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to same reporling date as
that of the parent Group, i.e. year ended on March 31. When the end of the reporting period of the parent is different
from that of a subsidiary, the subsidiary prepares, for consolidation purposes, additional financial information as of
the same date as the financial statements of the parent to enable the parent to consolidate the financial information of
the subsidiary, unless il is impracticable lo do so.

Consolidation procedures:

(a)  Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with those of
its subsidiaries, For this purpose, income and expenses of the subsidiary are based on the amounts of the
assets and liabilitics recognised in the Consolidated Financial Statements at the acquisition date.

(b)  Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the parent’s portion
of equily of cach subsidiary.

(c)  Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenscs and cash flows relating to
transactions between entities of the group (profits or losses resulting from intragroup transactions that are
recognised in Fixed assets, such as inventory and fixed assets, are climinated in full). Intragroup losses may
indicate an impairment that requires recognition in the Consolidated Financial Statements, Ind AS12 Income
Taxes applies to temporary differences that arise from the ¢limination of profits and losses resulting from
intragroup transactions.

Profit or loss and cach component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are atiribuled to the equity holders of the
parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance. When necessary, adjustmenis are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries (o bring their
accounting policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies. All intra-group assets and liabilitics, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consclidation,
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2.4 Investment in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control over those policies.

The considerations made in determining whether significant influence is similar to those necessary to determine
control over the subsidiaries

The Group's investments in 1ts associate are accounted for using the equity method. Under the equity method, the
investment in an associate is initially recopnised al cost, The carrying amount of the investment is adjusied to
recognise changes in the Group's share of net assels of the associate since the acquisition date. Goodwill relating to
the associate is included in the carrying amount of the investment and is not tested for impairment individually.

The consolidated statement of profit and loss reflects the Group's share of the results of operations of the associate.
Any change in OCI of the associates is presenied as part of the Group's OCI In addition, when there has been a
change recognised directly in the equity of the associate or joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any
changes, when applicable, in the statcment of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and the associate or joint venture are climinated to the extent of the interest in the
associate or joint venture,

If an entity’s share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interest in (he associate {which includes any long
term interest that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate), the entity discontinues
recognising its share of further losses, Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or Joint venture, If the associate or joint
venture subsequently reports profits, the entity resumes recognising its share of those profits only afier its share of
the profits equals the share of losses not recognised,

The aggregate of the Group's share of profit or loss of an associate is shown on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit and loss. The financial statements of the associate are prepared for the same reporting period as
the Group. When necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Group.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise an impairment loss
on its investment in its associate, Al each reporting date, the Group determines whether there is objective evidence
that the investment in the associate is impaired. If there is such evidence, the Group calculates the amount of
impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value, and then
recognises the loss as ‘Share of profit of an associate’ in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the Group measures and recognises any retained investment at
its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate upon loss of significant influence and the
fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

2.5 Summary of significant accounting policies

#. Current versus non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilitics in the consolidated balance sheet bascd on current / non-current
classification,

An asset is classified as current when it is expected to be realised or intended 1o be sold or consumed in normal
operating cycle, held primarily for the purpose of trading, expected to be realised within twelve months after the
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reporling period, or cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to setile a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period. All other assets are classified as non-current,

A liability 1s classified as current when it is expected 1o be settled in normal operating cycle, it is held primarily for
the purpose of trading, it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or there is no
unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. The
Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities, are classified as non-curreni assets and liabilities,

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents. The Group has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

b. Foreign currencies
Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the Financial Statements of the Group are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which it operates i.e, the “functional currency”. The Group’s Financial Statements are presented in
INR, which is also the parent Group's functional currency. The Group uses the direct method of consolidation and on
disposal of a foreign operation the gain or loss that is reclassified to profit or loss reflects the amount that arises from
using this method,

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group's entities al their respective functional
Currency at exchange rates prevailing at the date the transaction first qualilies for recognition,

Monetary assets and labilities denominated in foreign correncies are translated at the functional currency spot rates
of exchange at the reporting date. Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange mates at the dates of the initial transactions,

Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss ansing on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair
value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.c., translation
differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income OCI™) or
consolidated statement of profit and loss, are also recognised in OCI or consolidated statement of profit and loss,
respectively),

Group companics

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of forcign operations are translated into INR at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the reporting date and their consolidated statements of profit and loss are translated al exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the (mnsactions, The exchange differences arising on translation for consolidation are
recognised in OCIL. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of OCI relating (o that particular foreign
operation is recognised in profit or loss,
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¢. Fair value measurement

The Group measures certain financial instruments (¢.g. investments) al fair value al each balance sheet date,

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.

The fair value measurement is based on the presumption thal the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the labilities
takes place either in the principal markel for the asset or liability or in absence of principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a markel parlicipant’s abilily 1o generale
economic benefils by using the asset in its highest and best use or by sclling it to another market panticipant that
would use the assel in ils highest and bes use.

‘The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Financial Stalements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole:

Lewvel 1- Quoted (Unadjusted) marked prices in the active markets for identical assets or liabilitics

Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable

Level 3- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable.

For assels and liabilities that are recognised in the Financial Statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value imeasurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are
required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Group’s accounting policies, For this analysis, the management
or its expert verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation
computation to contracts and other relevant documents,

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the
nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

d. Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made, Revenue is measured at the fair
value of the consideration received or receivable, taking inlo account contractually defined terms of payment and
excluding taxes or duties. Where the Group acts as an agent for selling goods or services, only the commission
income is included within revenue. The specific revenue recognition criteria described below must also hc met
before revenue is recognized.

Sale of mobile value added services

Revenue from services is recognized by reference to stage of completion as and when services are rendered as per
the terms of the agreement with customer. Revenues are disclosed net of the service tax charged on such services. In

“
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terms of the contract, excess of revenue over the billed at the vear-end is carried in the Financial Statement as
unbilled revenue.

Commission

The Group facilitates recharge of talk time, bill payments and availability of bus tickets. ete. and camns commission
for the respective services. Commission income is recognized when the services have been provided by the Group.

Service fees

The Group earns service fee from merchants and recognizes such revenue when the services have been provided by
the merchants. Such service fee is generally determined as a percentage of transaction value executed by the
merchants, Amount received by the Group pending settlement are disclosed as Payable to the merchants under
Current Liabilities. Service fee also includes Royalty charged to customers for providing brand and technical
support. Such fee is determined as a pereentage of transaction value exccuted by the customers.

Interest income

For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income,
interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where
appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of 2 financial liability, When
calculating the cffective interest rate, the Group estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual
terms of the financial instrument but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in
finance income in the consolidated statement of profit and loss

e. Taxes
Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilitics are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the Group operates and generates taxable income,
Current income tax relating to items recognised outside consolidated statement of profit and loss is recognised either
in other comprehensive income or in equity. Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions
wherc appropriate. Payments of tax as per Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT). if any is included as part of current tax
in consolidated statement of profit and loss.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the hability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of asscts and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date, Deferred tax liabilities are
recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss,

In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in
joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the foresceable future.
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Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits
and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised (o the extent that it 1s probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be utilised, Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax assel to be
recovered,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected Lo apply in the year when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on lax rates (and tax laws) thal have becn enacted or substantively enacted at
the reponting date,

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside consolidated statement of profit and loss is recognised either in
other comprehensive income or in equity. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity,

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exisis to set off current tax
assels against current tax liabilitics and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation
authority,

Minimum alternate tax

Credit of MAT is recognised as deferred tax asset only when it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the credit can be utilised. In the year in which the MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognised as an
asscl, the said assel is created by way of a credit to the consolidated statement of profit and loss account. The Group
reviews the same at each balance sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of MAT credit entitlement to the
exlent it is no longer probable that the Group will pay normal income tax during the specified period.

Taxes paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of value added/goods and services/ service taxes paid, except:

* When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is nol recoverable from the taxation authority, in
which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the assct or disclosed separately in
consolidated statement of profit and loss as part of the expense item, as applicable, or

¢ When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or
payables in the consolidated balance sheet, -

f. Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations

The Group classifies non-current assets and disposal groups as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be
recovered principally through a sale rather than through continuing use, Actions required to complete the sale should
indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes 1o the sale will be made or that the decision 1o sell will be
withdrawn. Management must be committed to the sale expected within one vear from the date of classification,
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For these purposes, sale transactions include exchanges of non-current assets for other non-current assets when the

exchange has commercial substance. The criteria for held for sale classification is regarded met only when the asseis

or disposal group is available for immediate sale in its present condition, subject only to terms that are usual and

customary for sales of such assets (or disposal groups), its sale is highly probable; and it will genuinely be sold, not

abandoned, The group treats sale of the asset or disposal group to be highly probable when:

¢ The appropriate level of management is commitied 1o a plan to sell the asset (or disposal group),

* An active programme to locate a buyer and complete the plan has been initiated (if applicable),

¢ The asset (or disposal group) is being actively marketed for sale at a price that is reasonable in relation to ils
current fair value,

* The sale is expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification ,
and

*  Actions required to complete the plan indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to the plan will be made
or that the plan will be withdrawn.

Non-current assets held for sale and disposal groups are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and the fair
value less costs to sell. Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale are presented separately in the Consolidated
Balance Sheet,

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets once classified as held for sale are not depreciated or amortised,

A disposal group qualifies as discontinued operation if it is a component of an entity that either has been disposed of,
or is classified as held for sale, and:
* Represents a separate major ling of business or geographical area of operations or

¢ Is part of a single co-ordinated plan to disposc of a separate major line of business or geographical area of
operalions.

Discontinued operations are excluded from the results of continuing operations and are presented as a single amount
as profil or loss after tax from discontinued operations in the consolidated statement of profit and loss,

Additional disclosures are provided in Note 33. All other notes (o the Financial Statements mainly include amounis
for continuing operations, unless otherwise mentioned.

g. Property, plant and equipment

On transition to Ind AS, the Group elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and
equipment and capital work-in-progress recognised as at April 1, 2015 measured as per the previous GAAP and
used thai carrying value as the deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment and capital work-in-progress.

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment.

Cost directly attributable to acquisition arc capitalised until the property, plani and equipment are ready for use, as
intended by the management,

Subsequent costs are capitalised on the carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
future cconomic benefits associated with the item are probable to flow to the Group and cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All repair and maintenance are charged to consolidated statement of profit and loss during the
reporting period in which they are incurred.
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Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and cquipment outstanding al each balance sheet daic is
classified as capital advances under the non-current assels and the cost of assets not put to use before such date are
disclosed under *Capital work in progress’.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit and loss on the date of disposal or retirement

Depreciation is provided using the written down value method and charged to consolidated statement of profil and
loss as per the rates prescribed under schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013, given below:

Assets i Rate of Depreciation
(per annum)

Servers and networking equipment (Computers) 39.30%

Laptops and desktops (Computers) 63.16%

Office equipment 45.07%

Furniture and fittings 25.89%

Vehicles 31.23%

Leaschold improvements are depreciated over lower of the period of the lease and useful life.

When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group depreciates them
scparately based on their specific useful lives.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at
cach linancial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate,

h. Intangible assets

Separately acquired intangible assets, such as software are measured initially at cost. Following initial recognition,
intangible assels are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Intemally generated intangible asseis, excluding capitalized development costs. are not capitalized and expenditure
is reflected in the consolidated statement of profit and loss in the year in which the expenditure is incurred.
Intangible assets with finite useful lives arc carried at cost and are amortised on a written down value basis over
their estimated useful lives and charged to consolidated stalement of profit and loss.

Other Software and licenses acquired are amortized at the rate of 40% per annum on written down value method, Other
intangibles i.e Customer relationship, right to use brand and non- compete right acquired in business combination are
amortised over their useful life on straight line basis, which is taken to be 5 years,

The amortization period and the amortization method are reviewed at least al each financial year end, Changes in the
expected vseful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in (he assel are
considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting
estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assels is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss
unless such expenditure forms part of carmying value of another asset, :

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net

disposal proceeds and the carrying amouni of the asset and are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit and
loss when the asset is derccopnized.
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Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditure incurred on an individual project is recognized as
an intangible asset when the Group can demonstrate all the following;

®  The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale
Its intention to complete the asset

» lis ability 1o use or sell the assel
How the asset will generate future economic benefits
The availability of adequate resources to complete the development and to use or scll the asset

*  The ability to measure reliably the cxpenditure attributable (o (he intangible asset during development.

Following the initial recognition of the development expenditure as an assel, the cost model is applied requiring the
assct 1o be carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization of the
assct begins when development is complete and the asset is available for use. It is amortized on a straight line basis
over the period of expected future benefit from the related project, i.c., the estimated useful life of one to five years.
Amortization is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit and loss. During the period of development, the assel
is tested for impairment annually,

i. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs dircctly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur, Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

i~ Impairment of non-financial assets

For all non-financial assets, the Group assesses whether there are indicators of impairment. If such an indicator exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any, Where
the asset does not gencrate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

The recoverable amount for an asset or CGU is the higher of its value in use and fair value less costs of disposal. If the
recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is estimated to be less than its carrying amount the asset is considered impaired
and the carrying amount of the asset or CGU is reduced 1o its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in the consolidated statement of profit and loss.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows of the asset or CGU are discounted 1o their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the assel. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no
such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by
valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators,

The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations. These budgeis and forecast
calculations generally cover a period of five years, For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and
applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by
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the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Group exirapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or
declining growth raie for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be Justified. In any case, this growth rate docs
not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in which the entity
operales, or for the market in which the asset is used.

An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication thal previously recognised
impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. IT such indication exists, the Group estimates the asset’s or
CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the
assumptions nsed to determine the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised.
The reversal is limited so thal the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined. net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recopnised for the
assel m prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the consolidated staterment of profit or loss,

k. Provisions and contingencies

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, il
is probable that an outflow of resources embodying cconomic benefits will be required to setile the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation, When the Group expecis some or all of a provision (o be
reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate assel, bul only when the reimbursement is virually centain.
The expense relating to a provision is presented in the consolidated statement of profit and loss net of any
reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of moncy is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects,
when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingencies

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the
Occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Group or a presen|
obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to setile the
obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recopnized
because it cannol be measured reliably. The Group does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence
in the Financial Statemenis.

I Retirement and other employee benefits

For defined benefit plans (gratuity), obligations are measured at discounted present value (using the projected unit
credit method) whilst plan assets are recorded at fair value. The employees of subsidiaries are not covered under
defined benefit plan. The operating and financing costs of such plans are recognised separately in the consolidated
statement of profit and loss: service costs are spread systematically over the expected service lives of employees and
financing costs are recognised in the periods in which they arise. Re-measurements, comprising actuarial gains and
losses and the return on the plan asseis (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability
(asset)), are recognised immediately in the statement of financial position with a corresponding debit or credit 1o
retained earnings through other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent perods,
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The Group’s contributions to defined contribution plans (provident fund) are recognized in profit or loss when the
cmployee renders related service. The Group has no further obligations under these plans beyond its periodic
contributions, The employees of subsidiaries are not covered under defined contribution plan.

The Group provides for liability at year end on account of un-availed earned leave as per acluarial valuation using
projected unit credit method,

m. Share-bascd payments

Employees (including senior executives) of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employecs render services as consideration for equity instruments (equity-settled (ransactions).

The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made using an
appropriale valuation model.

That cost is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP) reserves in
equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in employee benefils
expense, The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting
date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The consolidated statement of profit and loss expense or credit for a period
represents the movement in cumulative cxpense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period and is
recognised in employee benefits expense.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group's best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance and/or service
conditions have not been mei.

When the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum expense recognised is the expense had the
terms had not been modified, if the original terms of the award are met, An additional expense is recognised Tor any
modification that increases the total fair value of the share-based payment transaction. or is otherwise beneficial (o
the employee as measured at the date of modification. Where an award is cancelled by the entity or by the
counterparty, any remaining clement of the fair value of the award is expensed immediately through profit or loss.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted
earnings per share,

The Group has created an Employee Welfare Trust (EWT) for providing share-based payment 1o its employees. The
Group uses EWT as a vehicle for distributing shares to employees under the ESOP schemes. The EWT holds shares
of the Group, for giving shares to employees. The Group treats EWT as its extension and shares of the Group held
by EWT are treated as treasury shares. Other assets held by EWT are consolidated on a line-by-line basis with
Group’s Financial Statements.
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n. Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a linancial assel of one entity and a financial liability or
equily instrument of another entity,

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurenent

All financial assets arc recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial asseis not recorded al fair value
through profit or loss. transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial assel.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
e Deblinstruments at amortized cost
s Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
s Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
e Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT)

Dhebt instruments al amoriised cosi

A “debt instrument’ 15 measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is (o hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows,

ancl

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding,

Afier initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs thal are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance income
in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally
applies to trade and other receivables and is most relevant to the Group,

Dbt instrument at FITOCT

A “debt instrument’ is classified as al the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a4)  The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the

financial assets, and

b)  The asset’s contractual cash fTows represent SPPL
Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair
value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Group
recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and forcign exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On
derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to
P&L. Interest camned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.
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Debt instrument at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for
categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Group may clect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI
criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or
recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’).

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the
consolidated statement of profit and loss.

Fquity invesiments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 arc measured at fair value. The Group may make an irrevocable
clection to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Group makes such
election on an instrument-by -instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irmevocable,

If the Group decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument,
excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCIL There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to consolidated
statement of profil or loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss
within equity,

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL calegory are measurcd at fair value with all changes recopnized in
the consolidated statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition

A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial assci or part of a Group of similar [inancial assets) is
primarily derccognised (i.c. removed from the Group’s consolidated balance sheet) when:

*  The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

*  The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay
the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-throngh’ arangement; and either
(a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the assel,

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards ol ownership. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the assel, the
Group continues to recognise the transferred asset 1o the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case,
the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.
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Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss on financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost g,
loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance,

The Group follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables. The
application of simplified approach does not require the Group to track changes in credit risk, Rather, it recogniscs
impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at cach reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assels and risk exposure, the Group determines that whether
there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased
significantly, 12-month expected credit loss (ECL) is used to provide for impairment loss, However, if credit risk has
increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves
such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts (o
recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a
linancial instrament, The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifelime ECL which results from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR.

The Group uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its trade receivables. The
provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and
is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting daie, the historical observed default mtes are updated
and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed,

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognired as income/ expense in the
consolidated statement of profit and loss. This amount is reflected under the head other expenses in the consolidated
statement of profit and loss. For the financial assets measured as at amortised cost ECL is presented as an allowance,
i.¢., as an integral part of the measurement of those assefs in the consolidated balance sheet. The allowance reduces
the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Group does not reduce impairment allowance
from the gross carrying amount,

Financial liabilities

tnitial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate.

All financial liabilitics are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilitics include irade and other payables, including bank overdrafis,

Y
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Subseguent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as described below:
Loans and borrowings

This is the calegory mosl relevant (o the Group. After initial recognition, inlerest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subscquently measured al amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the consolidated statement of profit
and loss.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires,
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new lability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounis is recopnised in the consolidated statement of profit or Ioss.

Fmbedded derivatives

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid (combined) instrument that also includes a non-derivative host
contract — with the effect that some of the cash flows of the combined instrument vary in a way similar o a stand-
alone derivative. An embedded derivative causes some or all of the cash flows that otherwise would be required by
the contract to be modified according lo a specified interest rate, financial instrument price, commodity price,
Toreign exchange rate, index of prices or rates, credit rating or credit index, or other variable, provided in the case of
a non-financial variable that the variable is not specific to a party to the contract. Reassessment only occurs if’ there
is either a change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be
required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss.

I the hybrid coniract containg a host that is a financial asset within the scope of Ind AS 109, the Group does not
separate embedded derivatives. Rather, it applies the classification requirements contained in Ind AS 109 o the
entire hybrid contract. Derivatives embedded in all other host contracts are accounted for as separate derivatives and
recorded at fair value if their economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host coniracts
and the host contracts are not held for trading or designated at fair value though profit or loss. These embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognized in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated balance sheet if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, to realise the asseis and setile the liabilitics simultanzously.

0. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the consolidated balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and shori-term deposits
with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
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For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and shori-term
deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafis as they are considered an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

p. Leases

The determination of whether an amrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the armngement at the
inception of the lease. The amangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use
of a specific asset or assets and the amangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not
explicitly specified in an arrangement

Ciroup as a lessee

A lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental Lo ownership to the Group is classified as a
finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged o
consolidated statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease unless the pavments are

structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost
INCIeases.

q. Earnings/ (loss) per share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are caleulated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted
average number of Equity shares outstanding during the vear.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number
of Equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on
conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares.

r. Treasury shares

Own equity instruments that are reacquired (treasury shares) are recognised at cost and deducted from equity. No gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Group’s own equily instruments.
Any difference between the carrying amount and the consideration, if reissued, is recognised in other reserve.

% Segment reporting

Identification of seements

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chiel operating
decision maker (CODM). Only those business activities are identified as operating segment for which the operating
results are regularly reviewed by the CODM to make decisions about resource allocation and performance measurement,

Segment accounting policies

The Group prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and
presenting the Financial Statements of the Group as a whole,

N
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t.  Standards issued but not yet effective

The standards issued, but not yet effective up the date of issuance of the Group's financial staiements is disclosed below,
IND AS 115 Revenue from contracts with customers

IND AS 115 was notified on 28 March 2018 and establishes a five-step model to account for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. Under IND AS 115 revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which
an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer.

The new revenue standard will supersede all current revenue recognition requirement under IND AS. In March 2016, the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs in India, issued amendments to IND AS 115, deferning the adoption of the standard to
accounting period commencing on or after April 1, 2018. The Group has not yet selected a transition method and is
evaluating the impact of IND AS 115 on the financial statements.

Ind AS 116 Lease

IND AS 116 was issued in July 2017 on Leases and will replace the existing leases Standard, IND AS 17 Leases, and
related Interpretations, The Standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of lease for both parties to a contract i.e. the lessee and the lessor. IND AS 116 introduces a single lessee
accounting model and requires a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12
months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. The Standard also contains enhanced disclosure requirements for
lessees. The effective date for adoption of TND AS 116 is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2019 though
carly adoption is permitted for companies applying IND AS 115, The Group is currently assessing the impact of
adopting IND AS 116 on the Group's financial statements.

Amendments to Ind 112 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities: Clarification of the scope of disclosure
requirements in Ind AS 112

The amendments clarify that the disclosure requirements in Ind AS 112, other than those in paragraphs B10-B16, apply
to an entity’s interest in a subsidiary, a joint venture or an associate (or a portion of its interest in a joint venture or an
associate) that is classified (or included in a disposal group that is classified) as held for sale.

The Appendix is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2018, However, since the Group has not
classified any associatc or joint venture as held for sale, the Group docs nol expect any effect on its consolidated
financial statements

Ind AS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses

The amendments clarify that an entity needs to consider whether tax law restricts (he sources of taxable profits against
which it may make deductions on the reversal of that deductible iemporary difference. Furthermore, the amendments
provide guidance on how an entity should determine future taxable profits and explain the circumstances in which
taxable profit may include the recovery of some assets for more than their carrving amount.

Entities are required 1o apply the amendments retrospectively, However, on initial application of the amendments, the
change in the opening equity of the carliest comparative period may be recognised in opening retained carnings (or in
another component of equity, as appropriate), without allocating the change between opening refained camings and
other components of equity. Entities applying this relief must disclose that fact.

AR
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These amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2018. These amendments are nol

cxpected to have any impact on the Group as the Group has no deductible temporary differences or assets that are in the
scope of the amendments.

Appendix B to Ind AS 21 Forcign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

The Appendix clarifies that, in determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset,
expense or income (or parl of it) on the detccognition of a non-monetary assct or non-monetary liability relating to
advance consideration, the date of the transaction is the daie on which an entity imtially recognises the non-rnonetary
dassel or non-monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipls in
advance, then the entity must determine the transaction date for each payment or receipt of advance consideration.

Entities may apply the Appendix requirements on a fully retrospective basis, Alternatively, an entity may apply these
requirements prospectively to all assels, expenses and income in its scope that are initially recognised on or afier:

i. The beginning of the reporting period in which the entity first applies the Appendix, or
ii, The beginning of a prior reporting period presented as comparative information in the financial statements of the
reporting period in which the entity first applies the Appendix.

The Appendix is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2018, However, since the Group’s current
practice is in line with the Interpretation, the Group does not expect any effect on its financial statements.

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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LA Howsing Finance Limibed 9, 7624% O & Mar 2009 1533 -
50 {March 31, 3017 : Nil) Redeemalde Nem Canvrtible Debestuces of [NE 1,000,000 each
LA H:D-i.ng Finance Limited 5,70 MO 17 Dee 2018 BEXA =
S0 (Marci 31, 3017 0 Hil) Redeomable Nom Convertible Trobentures of INR 1000000 each
Tatn Capilal Financial Services Lamiied B.20% NOD & Mar 2019 L3 =
SO0 {Murch X1, 1017 Hil) Redeemuble Nos Convertible Thebentures of INR 100,000 each
LI Houming, Finarce Limibed 7 G85% NOCD 23 Apr 2019 102,45 =
1060 {Murch 51, 2017 : Wal) Redesmalide Nom Convertible Debemtures of [N 1 000,000 eech
== LRRETE IFIHT
Tolal Imvestneents A5466.68 23078
Current A 455,08 0013
Han-Current .59 49.63
156668 A3LTE.
Agpregate book value of snquoted investments L 1] &0l
Agpregaic ook value of quoted Invesiments 3, TR0 1ML1%

Maite 1
111 Prudun sl Ligoid Plan - Growth is macked usdis ben by banks for granmnbees mmountng to IR 870 ¢ March 51, 2017 IME 0,77 ) jsned against varioss contracts,

Tnwetinents i fr valoe through O (fally paid) reflect mvestment in ssquoted equity recurities. Refir mote 31 for determination af thelr fir vilues
Firancial netruments o fair value ducesgh profi o bors teflect the postee change of TRE 3323 (31 March 2007; 2047) in fair saloe of isvestments in equaty und profecence shares

A% The Comgimy bolds these investnvests, hosweser the dilr valug is Mil,

(This fpace in tatentiznaliy kit blank



e T Commmmications Limbbed
Nates b the ConsoRdated Financlal Slatements For the year endad March 31, 2018

by Hecurlty Doponlis

—_—  Nop-Curreni Curremt
As it Aa
o Mprch 32008 MerchdE 20T 0 MerchJLI0IE  MarchdL 20T
Security depasia
Unsecuzed, conmie good prE 1503 7o (.50
Unpecuged. consdeed doubtfil Q11 0.1 : =
3 3158 1314 e 50
Fravimon for doutalal depomt {0l o1 E T
3146 1303 1070 50
TR 134 10710 [
cf  Other financlal assels S Mos-curryit el
A1 wl s at
e Mlarch 3, 3008 March 31,2007 March ), 2018 March 31,2017
Bank balances
Bask balance m Ercrow necvest | (efer o 9] . - E RAG £
Dupuswite with originad mabsity fi more than 17 monthe HOT G637 13217 =Rl
Dihers
Loan to employees - - a2H -
Loan b0 Conpomtes = = 206 =
Acomued Interest on Maskelnble Sorunties .0 . . =
Interest nocrned hut et dise om lixed deposits 4% o0E 533 54
Unbilled revesse (net) & - AR0% TEET
A 1464 .45 1ERH Lo 738
Amount recoverahls frem Payment Gatewny
Eanks® {met)
Uineeerired, comuidered good . . 410,44 FR0.97
Uinmscured, comsidered doubdfisl - - 3-%_ 3
- - EIEY [FAK
L - Provision for recosershle from Payment - - {302) oy
Gateway banks ——
B - - 410,44 180,97
Amoun! regoverable from: related pastiesd! 220,00 255 07 S04 24 33T
C 11900 IERT =024 393,73
Fedal [A-HRHT] 1464 302.32 1,108.71 1,592.28

* The smount represent recoversble from paysenl gateway banks an sccount of oredit cardidebit card and net banking transactions relwted tothisd party meeschant, wallet and market
ploce merchsnie

“K Ameunt recovemble from relaied parties includes 1IN 34,29 i Sabe of Wallrl Dosizess during the year emded March 31, 2018 (Macch 31, 2007 © Mill) und IR 49520 from Sale
ol Phyrscal Muketplace hustness diising the yonr ended March 31, 2018 { March 38, 2007 - 620.77)

Break wp of finauclal asiels carriod sl amortised cosl

Tende recuivables (Hate 1) = - 404, TH 10038
Coh il cash equivalents (Male 903 - - IALE 576,34
Fink balanees ather than sl and el squivalemes . . £ 1247
(Mote b))

Security Deponits (Hede ) LLATH 13.03 170 50
Others {Node B 243,63 302.32 1LIOR.7L 159298
Tnvestmente (Hotef{a]) 102,43 - 4058 .

it LI AL5AE, LAl Fivi 2

Break up of finnncial nsseds carrbed at Tale valas

Kegn-curreni Carrent
As al A ad
Mdarch 31, 2018 March31, 2017 March 31 2018 are 17
Iivosimvenis o fir value Baough 001 £.45 9.7 - -
I ens nt fuir vl Berough Profl and loss 100,70 5991 3,708.10 290.15
A £2.43 LA 215

(T e i iratearionally lef tlandy




Ome¥7 Communications Limbed
Mates b the Cansabidsied Finnneis! Statoments for the sear ended March 31, WK

T, Trae recelvabiles As ol As i
Aldarch 31, 2008 Alarch 31, 2007
Tende Receivabies 13361 744
Revoivables from relmed partios (Refer Motz [1) below) 69,17 .04
504,70 10038
Al sl As &t

— March 31,2018 Mareh 31,207

Break-un

Trade recelvahles

Secured, considered vood

Unsecured, conssdered good 5,78 1038

Dicibrifind 62,00 417
500,19 134.55

Tmnakrment allawamce on frade veerivables

Fimzoared, commidered eond - -

Baubtil e (62,00 (2417
(62.01) (24.07)

Todal Trade receivabiles . T 1ML 38

(i) Mo trude or athes receivalile niv due from direclors or ather offfeers af the Compery priler severally o gy with nny cher persca N any tmude or other receivabile ara dus from s

o private compames respectively in which any direciee 53 partne, & director or & mensber, except &5 dschsed above
{5} For related party recervables, refor note 36
{ie} Tracks receivalbies mre non-ameren) bearing and cary & credi pesiod of upeo 90 deys

B, (bt nssets
Nam-rurrent Current
Asal As ai
— Dol LIS Mamch3L 00T March 3l 2008 o Parch 312017
Capital advances
Unsecured, considered gocd 1.0 LT
Draibiiful 008 (1A I
104 1.7%
Les= Provision for doubitful advances 10081 =
A 1.0 1.71 -
Advamces o vendors
, coesitdered good 49 - A1048 23608
Daubudul - k4] 4 235
o.sa 4y 415,456 FIR.AD
Lews Provinion for doubtfiy] advances . - (HENN] (408 3Ty
B 559 - 41048 Lha,05
Chibiers
Service tax input credit . . 75,46
GET sput credit - 4152 .
Achances wa relmied panties® 131,63 (L]
Walue Added Tax (WAT) eredit roceivabie & - «1? e
c = E 17342 7610
Totsl (A1 B+C) T 1.71 5390 3215

'NOMmmumeohmdummuMnﬁmdduwﬂﬂmmuﬁw% wy other persces. Nog ny advince are recoversbila from firms o private

companies respectively in wiich any diracior i B pariner, & direcios or & membes, exceps as dischsad abevs

(RiT rpace is iy fefi bask)




7 Communkcatens Limlted
Metes ta the Conselidaied Finenclal S4ai ts for the year ended March 31, 2018
Whmoupt in INE Crores, noless olberwise sialed)

Bak Cash and cash equivalents As al As al
Muarch 30, 1B Mareh 31, 2007
Cash in hand a1l 0.0
Balance with banks
- O ourrenl acooniis 320028 Hi4®
On casl credit accaumt
- Dreposits with onigisal maturity foe less than 3 monthe 145 =
- Escrow Accoust (Refer nole {a)) - AH.ES
- Modul Accoant { Hefer note (ki) - EEA L]
KT 576,35
Nobes |
{n)  The Group mountmined halence m Escrow Account m scconlance with REI guidelmes relating to semi closed wallat {Prepasd Paymeen| Instnessent) #11 May 23, 2007, which was wsed
ko wetflo ull mevchant linhlities o the extenl money used from wallob A @ March 31, 2007, depsrifed ty the Company oves and shove the wallet liakality are disclosed mndor

cesh mnd mwh equivelants and amoont perasing to wallet linbility are disclosed urder *other finmncinl mvets® (refir nole 7(ek) On May 23, 2007 the Compasy hor s ferred its e
wallel nperstinns i Paytmi Paymemir Bank Lamiied anil p.::mﬂmgly, ihie Facnow Aceosii bkas beei closed asd lalenes trasafered 10 curre secoms

(b} ‘The Gromp uees 0 Hodsl Acconnt b peceive money throngh debitieredit card and net banking mansctions townerds nll ranmetions hapgemang on die portal, ae well o bo aoitle the
respeclive merchinty. The amounts collected bul yo lo be irandomed o inenchanis of THRE 34 032 (Margh 31, 2007 THR 29 50) are metted off with nodal acoount belance. The ix et
balanoe (if eny) nvailabbe m Modal Accown is evailable for wse by the Company and is disolosed o cesh nnd cosh oquavalosis

(e} Fixed deposits we mnikeal wnder Bon by laaka for guaranbeey aiomntang 0 IR 741,53 (March 31, 2007 ; INR 91.54) dssued agamst srious contrasis

{d) Fixed deposits with o caryng anvount of INK 62,11 (March 31, 2017 : INE LH95) ure subject bo firet dearge to seoure She Company’s Wirkang Capital facilsty,

Fua B pirpors of the stdement ol cork laws, cash md cash equivabmts comprive the Following

As al As ol
March 31, 118 March 31, 2007
Cash in hand il .06
Balunce with banks
= L3N cusren ool 520,28 5248
- Deposts with original matarity of less than 3 msonthe 114% =
- Ercrow Acoount - 4865
- Mundal Agconnt 5517
JLE AT6M
Mber baek balances
Eoes: Bank averdmfl (242 12) {i5h. 63}
{24211y [E663)
Cand and crih equivalents for the purpose of cash Now waloment 50,73 509,73
b, Nank balances ather than cavh amil cavh eqelvalenls
Deposits with enigisal pebinity of meore than 3 months bl les than 12 maosths 3BT 147
]l I 134T

(Thei dpare b deatisaniovsaily def bk



Q7 Communkeatlon Limiind
Modes 4o the O lldnced Fi Inl Seais s for the yeir ended March 31, 2018
1

Asal Ak ool
March 31, 2OIH March 31, 2T

10 Share Capilal
Aumtherised share capidal

36,106,000 (March 31, 3017 ; 46, 100,000] equity shares of 141 10 cach 610 410
758000 (March 31, 2007 ; 2,759,000) 0001 % series 11 cumulative gonvertible prefermes shares off Azl 4H.01
INH 174 each

Terma! rights attachad to equity shares
All the equaty ehares sl t [svestans and ottver shascholdess shall rank pari passu wnd hove s par valise of Ke 10 per share. Esch shareholdur iv eligible for one wie pes dee held

anly,
Asat Avel

March 31,2018 March 31,7017
Issmed, subscribed mmd Tully pald up shares

55,325,270 (March 31, 2017 - 46,550 653 equity shame of THE 10 sch Nally padd up 5531 At5H

Todad lssued, sulscritsad sl Tubly pabd-up share capdial 2531 46,20

&, Hecaiitillation of the sharm out Himp il the beginiing and s the end of the reporting year
Equity shares March 31, 2008 March 31, 2007

Numbar Amanini Namiber Amoanl

Alares cutstandimg al the bogmmng of the year® A4 46,98 458 4621
Shrares isvued during tee year agl B0 oo nal
Skores povued during the year - BEOP 002 (¥ L] (XA} (AL
Shmres catsinding at the ¢nd of the year* 549 5551 £ & 46,98
* Mol of tensury shares 326,639 (March 31, 200T: 364,113) ol nid eant fhrough eniployes wiel fare st

b, Drelaib ol sharoholders kolibimg mere than 5% shares bn the Conipany

Magse of tharchobder March 31, 2018 Minrch 2

Kumber of Shares held &5 bulding Mumber of Shares %% holding
ekl

Alipay Singepare B-Commence Private Limited 175 1% 173 AT A%

A% Indin Holdmg (Cayman) Limital 113 04T -

SALF I Mauntios Campany Limied 0,75 13.34% 094 T004%
Me.¥ijay Shekbar Sharmn 0.8l 16, 36% 094 19.95%
Alraton sxom Sinpgapor E-Commerce Privale Lisated 0.4 B 00 Q.44 DA%

SAIF Farmen ndin IV Limdbal 431 137% LU BT

« Shares reserved for lssse usder opdions
Far doinils of shores revesved for ism under lbe employee elock ogtions plan (EF0F) of the Company, phease rofor note 15
Shire application meney pendimg allotner amounting 1o TNR 0,05 (March 31, 2007 ; [NR 0.22) represents nmeant received from emjpiovees for exerciving the employes siock

d, Apgregate number of bonus shares bsswed and shars sl for conslderation other than cash durlng the poriod of five years imscdialely precedlug the reporting duio;

The Company has neitser Bnted bomes shares, shares for consideration other than esth, nor bought back shares during the period of five wars immedistely preceding the reposting

& Insirument: entlrely equity n ssture
Consequent by Banewodk spreement entered om Movember 230, H17 between e Company, Latile Inbernet Private Lamited (L"), Sharehobders of LI, Nearbuy ledin Privale Lissited

{'WEEY, and Sharehoddoms of MBI The sharehalders of NBE swapped their ssarvs im NWBI with sharee i 1, resllisg in their becoming 37% ssardhielders of LI and NBI becoming
whiolly owned esbeidisry of L. The Company hreugh further restructaring of #s cxisting investments in LI (5%} md Litte Singepore Pe Lisited ('LS") (27%], av well as through sty
ahligation 1o jssse farthes shares smounting 1o INE 173,63 o other sharcholdere of LE becanu 63% shareholder in LI The restuchiing of @ushiag investment in L1 sad L5, as
discursed abowe, resubted in [5 biding back 27% stake of the Company in L5 For [N 7740 and the Company fusther infusirg, INR 83,53 an L1 The buyback resulted in the
Crespuny secordang, gain af [ME-A4.11, Companye oblagation 1o sne fether shares ameunting to INE 173,63 %0 ofher sharefeolders of L hos been disclosed s "Instemenls entrely
ouily im nature® under Equity,

(This space b bnferitionatly B blad)



Oned? Commumications Limited

Mates in the Cansnlidaied Finaacial Statemens for the vear ended March 31, 5018
Il
L. Frovisions
Mom-cwrrent Current
_Asai As at
Murch 31, 2018 March 31, 2007 Mareh 31, 2018 — March 31, 2017
Pravizien for employee benefits
Prenvesion for gratuiry (eefer mote 27} L b L] 36 .
Praneaon for ket benefits 20.13 - 17 060
Chbser provisbens
Fronasion for imcome 1ax 1.4% LN E]
aned 563 [TH 875
L2, Flmsocinl libilkbes
{8} Borruwings
As il Ak
March 31, 1018 Marchk 31, 2067
Bank overdrall (Refor Mote bebw) M1z G561
Shart tein bormawings from bask (Refer Nate below) . 21 6%
I4L.12 038

Mate:

Barrowings (in INR) aco repayable o demand mod carry isersit ol 1-MELE and "sprend” per annum. As cn the roporig date, I-MOLR is #.1%% and mpresd ix | 45% Bamowings from
btk e secured agmimst Fixed Deposits, Cuarent Assets and also backed by irrevocable and personal gusrantee of Mr Vijuy Shekhar Sharma, Direcior

() Trade Payahies
Trade pyahles
Trmle payables so relnied pariies

(e Oihern

Payable 10 meichants

Wallg) liakakey®

Payabde o prarchase of fixed nasets
Employee benefits prynhle

Oihery

*The Group receved autharszancn from RBEa sel up and operats soms closed wallet (SCW) o Auges 06, 2013 €

Aswl Asal
March 31, 2014 Mareh 31, 2017

#0519 228,34

57.43 .32

AGLER I79.78

007 4351

i #8204

1339 1532

63,72 ME

.2 19185

deposited in Escrow Bank stcour and ane recorded as walled lisbility, Also refer nots 9(){s)

Terms gad conditions of the abave financial Eabilities:

() Trade and athes payables nre nan-interest bearieg and cury credit perind of s 60 days

(i) For telated partio, refer o Mote 26

15, ©dher current liabililies

Advance From eustoeners
Unearmed commission
Sezhatory dues paynble:
Tooe deductsd ot sorarce payalile
Servicn te puyalids
GST Pryabile
Provvidens fund payable
Oriher pemtutery diies

A oai Ag al
Mnrch 31, 2018 Maieh 31, 7017
210 1420
[H1 ] 135
15,22 Wi
0.23 L.5%
a0 5
163 1,44
AL 0.31
5151 a1z

[This s Iy imdentionally Lo Blenk)

A the SCW are




OnedT Commmnicatons Limiled
Motes do ke O lidated Financkal Siad

I for ibe year endeil March 31, 2018
b

T4, Revemrue from operailons
Sale al services

15 Ober income

Faie value Qain on financial imsroman s at 14791,

Prafit om wale of property, plant asd cquipment {nel)

Miseellanimm Income

Interest income
- on bask deposita
= athers

Cithes o oparating mcome

16 Employes benefits expanie
Halaries, bonue and incemtives
Comtribation 4 provident and cther finds
Fmployee vock option (refir Mose 25)
Chrabuily expenses (refer Note 7T
Stadff welfus vxpenses

17, Finance costs
Intereat
< on borawiings
- o others
isamk charges

18 Peprecintion and amerikution expense
Diepreciation of mngible maseis
Amormzaton ol intmmgible assois

March 31, 218 March 31, HAT

A 050 fald 62

HS&B@ 21 L4471

7T 44 141 %3

025 5]

04l 035

1102 b2

64,75 12

3.7+ 5B

156,71 16587
e

300 267 58

1156 6,70

1 AH 4483

407 346

|14 6 1007

iS5 6 AT A

1228 xrn

160 Daw
o 955 039

I8 A3 4,50

65 14 1

13.64 .28

TH.EE 0.0

(s gpece i5 fareatiosally Gt band)

4



UraeST Comninications Limiied
Pntes te the Comsnlidated Finanrial Siat is for the vear emided March 31, 2008
il 1

March 31, 2008 Mareh 30, 2017
19, Dther expemses
Paymem gsteway expenses 1.204.13 241 4%
Connectrty and consen! Fres 165 80 7642
Castomer and marchese ceboai ding cxponses TI a5 3390
Conteil expemnes 1428 (5]
Cemmmunicanon costs 70 23K
Legal sl profeasionsl fous 1188 TR
Muketing s business promaticn experses 1,500 63 ELED
Advenisemens expense: kRIB T 2185
Subwoniract expenses 21260 1X.89
Corpariie Social Resgoneibility (CHR) expesd 238 042
Fizend awsens weritton off il a4
Insuresce T 6 20
Logistic, packing & collection cost 032 .
Poymaent i auding ricks 1 &9
Poitage and Courier 136 491
Power and fued 116 4 6
Primting anid saonery 141 ()
Trade pecervables/Advance written off 102 515
Less: utibiaataon froen prowision for impairment of made secenaliey sivances . 5.1%
Provvipon For desdalid ibvnnces &2 062
Proision For Impairment of tride rocoivables 3591 R
Bepest and muimance - Buildings 1433 617
Peepas and maimtsnce - (Others 415 1
Repar and ice - Plent and neackeserny 17 56 Q40
Romies ad paes .30 144
Rt 1612 1281
Servico tx expermssieversal under rule 603 GST inpiat crodit reversal .13 2002
Temvelling and conveyancs J46% iaas
Exchange differences {net) Q57 712
Miscellenoous expenses [ 216
ENETE.S I.a: 15
20, Exceptional liems Mareh 31, H1K March 3, 2017
it on sale o walles business (refer nots 33} 299 7
Cisars o sale o rrearketplacs business (refer mote 33) - 591.32
Provision far impaimeent of svestments m associstes (59 59) =
340 CTEN
4] During the current year, Conp fermed its Wallet busingss on » gomg concemn basis, by way of sbump gale, 40 Payim Paymenss Bank Limmisd. Toris! sale consideraton of TMR 65,
the fuar value of which is INK 6310 {discoumsed ut 9, 74%) sed ot assets Terred in ENR 011 resuleng & notal jgain of TNR, 62,99
1§ The Compuany basis its of fture busimess projections of ity . Socoma Technalogies Private Laniied s Logme Scbutions Privaie Linwied, has recognised

pawveimen of INR 59.59 for impairment in the camying vibee of ils isvestment

©) During; the: previcnus year, Campeesy s ferred its Micketplace sepmen on & gosg concem basis, by way of shunp sale, o Payim E-Commeree Private Limited. Tool aske considerssen

OF IR 330, the fair value af which is [NJL 20,77 (discounted 32 9 75%) and el sssels transferred is INR 29,49 resuliing a tosal gain of INR, 591,32

1. Earnings per' shnres (EFS)

Basic EPS smaunts are caleulstod by dividing the profit for the yese aitribusahle i equity holdees of the pesent by the worghted average number af Eguity shares autassding dusing the

wear

Driluted EFS amaunts are caleulsted by dividing e prodic attributable w equity holders of the parnt by the wesghted average number af Equity shistes susstanding during the year plus the

weighted aversge senber of Equty shares that would be issued on canversion of 8l she diive patential Equity shares inlo Equity shares
The fallowing reflects the income sed share data nsed in the bass: and diluted EPS computations:

Rmrch 31, 2003 March 31, 2017

Prafif sttributable o eomlty holders:

Continuing operations ! {1.599.0% [a1%Ta)

Discontinued ogeration —— [5.25) (279,51}
Prafit atiributable i equity holders for busic rarnings [LEC LB )] (599,64}
Wisrhied aveinen namber nf Fouiee deares for hasic RS (X 442
Esrwines ver share for contimulng operstbsns
Hasic el [iliied snmings per ety dare® (517401 {30
Earuings ner share for discontinued operatisns
Hasi and Died esmings per equity ghare® (1.4 {00, G0
Enrnines ner share far continaing and discondsued anerstiom
Birsic and Diluted sarmings per equily share® {1B44) (194,77

* In view of lpsses duing the eurrent snd previous period, dhe opticns whech nre sti-ditive bave heen Ignored i the eabeulation of diluted ezrmings per share. Accordingly, thens i no

vanation betwoen basic and diliiged earmings per share,
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Onet7 Communications Limited
MNotes to the Consolidaled Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2018
(Amounis in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

22. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Group’s Financial Statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reporied amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilitics, and the accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncentainty about these assumptions and estimates could resull
in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods

Impairment reviews

Goodwill is tested for impairment at-least on an annual basis and when events that occur / changes in circumstances -
indicate that the recoverable amount of the CGU 1s less than its carrying value, In calculating the value in use, the Group
is required to make significant judgements, estimates and assumptions inter-alia concerning the growth in EBITDA,
long-term growth rates; discount rates to reflect the risks involved. Also, judgement is involved in determining the CGU
for allocation of the goodwill.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncernainty at the reporting date, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the camrying amounis of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, are described below.,

Deferred taxes

Deferred tax assets can be recognised for deductible temporary differences (including unused tax losses) only to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary difference can be
utilised. Management based on future projections has concluded that as at March 31, 2018 it is not probable that such
deferred tax assets can be realised in excess of available taxable temporary differences. Such projections include
estimates and assumplions such as revenue growth rate, inflation impact etc Managemenl re-assesses unrecognised
deferred tax assels at cach reporting date and recognises to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable
profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. For details about deferred 1ax assets, please refer note 28,

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefitl gratuity plan and other post-cmployment medical benefits and the present value of the
gratuily obligation are determined using actuarial valuations, An actuanal wvaluation involves making various
assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount
rate, future salary increases and morality rates, Due to the complexitics mvolved in the valuation and its long-term
nature, a defined benefil obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumplions are reviewed atl
cach reporting date.

In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India, the management considers the interest rales of
governmeni bonds in currencics consistent with the currencies of the post-employ ment benefit obligation. The mortality
rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific countries. Those mortality tables tend to change only
at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected
future inflation rates for the respective countries. Further details about gratuity obligations, please refer Note 27.

A



One97 Communications Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
{(Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the consolidated balance sheet cammol be
measured bascd on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the
DCF model, Price of Recemt Investment (PORT) method and Comparable Company Multiples (CCM) method. The

inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of
Jundgement is required in establishing Cair values,

{This space is intenfionally lefi blank)
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Ones7 Communlcations Limlted
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EX Croup Informathon

A. Entltlex over which company exercim control

The consolidated Gnancis) slatomens of the Group includes mibaidieries listed in e tabie below:

kX Imteres
Namie .:::'::::l:, Akat Axat
March 31, 2013 March 31, 2017
Inding Subadiaries —
ST Comamunications [ndia Limitod ndin [T [T
Paytm Financals Services Linnled tnilia on on
el ? Farployee willare Trust [nidsn 1] |
Wastelund Erdertuinenent Privale Limiled (w.e.f July 6,201 7} Idin i) -
Mabiguest Mohile Tochnologses Trivaty Linsled {w.e. | Augus 10,3017 i 35
Litjn Mosiey Private Limited (w o Oolober 162017) Indin il
|Lattl Irstemes Private Linsled {w.e.] December 16,2017 Enchin 63
Taytm Eperl Limited {w.e.fluly 35 2017) [ndin 2]
Il‘lﬁln Maney Limited {w e.f Sephemiber 20, 2007) [rufen 106
|Farelzn Subsdiaries
ChietT Comminoations Migarin Linsted Higetia an 100
7 Commmnications EA-LLL Chshai o o
Cmed T %mﬁwsﬂ@ papore Privade Limed c =] {[1]
DNEAT UEA T, EE 100 I
|Subsddiscies of Subsidiaries
Dt Commuminations Rwands Private Limited Rwands 100 100 |
ST Coon ians Tanzania Private Linited AR 1od (el
Cned T Communications Bangladesh rivale Lamited nclesh 100 104
Ooe T Ugnndi Lizited Ugands 100 160
D17 Ivery Coast SA oy Coaal 100 100
Ome5? Beran 54 Bentn [ 190
|Pastn Labs Inc ch fan ian
Imel? Commurdesfions Maloysin Sdi Ddn Malaymn [ 104 |
Meted IT Salitlon Provate Limited (w e T Angust 10, 3017 ndia a5 -
{Heastny Indus Private Limeled (w e.f December 6, 100 7) klia ]
Actzmen Garme Entetainment Private Limited (we f Movemler L3, 2017 Inelin 35
B. Entitkes over which company exercise significant tnMuence
Yo nterea ]
Mame Cauniry of Asal Asat
Incarporation March 31, 201% March 31, 2017
|Loggned Scluticew Privats Limited Innides 3140 il da
Bodomo Tﬂ_c_]‘u“mlngiu Private Linited Indlia 11.32 11.32
Qo 0L Privale Lirnited lidia 00 200
Pyt Poyinents Bk Linited (w.e.f May 23.2007) Ericin A% 0 49,00
Indi ¥wen L4, {1l Noversbe 30, 2017) Mauritiug 2704 3704
Little lutemet Sinpapare Pie. Limited () Hovember 30, 2017) Sngapore 21.19 2605 |
Lifik= [nhﬂl_l&l. Pravate Limited (till Decenyher 0%, 2007y Imfia 14,87 3200
%, Entiies having slgnificant infacoce over the Group :-
SALF L Muuritive Company 13mited
SAIF Pariners Indin V' Limited =
BAIF Partners tidin 1V Liniited R
EATF India ¥ FIT Holdings Limited L e K B S
Alipay Sigapese E-Commeesce Privazs Limlied \' "

Alibaba.com Singapare E-Commeres Private Limited
Alipay Labs (Singapose) M Limnited
EVF Indin Holdngs {Cayman) Linited
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OneY7? Communications Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
{Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

25, Employee Stock Option Plans

During the year ended March 31, 2009, the Holding Company introduced One 97 Employee Stock Option Plan — [ for
the benefit of employees as approved by the Board of Directors in the mecting held on Seplember 08, 2008 and by the
members in the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on October 22, 2008 for a total of 951,355 options. The Holding
Company has appropriaied 795,056 options of INR10 each to be granied to eligible employees which were granted on
December 31, 2008, These oplions were granted to all eligible, permanent cmployees who were on rolis of Holding
Company as at December 31, 2008 and to be settled in equity. These oplions have a vesting period of 4 years and were
vested at one year interval in the lollowing proportion:

Date of vesting %o of total options vesting
December 31, 2009 104
December 31, 2010 20%

| December 31, 2011 30%%
December 31, 2012 40%

Out of 795,056 options granted, exercise price of 233,602 options granted to employees who joined the Holding
Company till March 31, 2007 is INR10 per option and for 561.454 options granted o employees joining between April
(1, 2007 and December 31, 2008 the exercise price is Rs 49 per option.

On September 03, 2010, the Holding Company has appropriated 252,101 options of INR 10 each to be granted to
cligible employees (including grant of 30,000 options to independent non-cxecutive directors) al an exercise price of
INR 180 cach. Options granted to independent non-executive directors were approved in Extra-Ordinary General
meeting of members held on November 22, 2010, These options have a vesting period of 4 years al one year interval in
following proportion;

Date of vesting % of total options vesting
| September 03, 2011 10%
September 03, 2012 20%
September 03, 2013 - 30%
Seplember 03, 2014 40%

On September 01, 2011, the Holding Company increased the ESOP pool by adding 107,407 options taking total ESOP
pool to 1,058,762 as approved by the Board of Directors in the meeting held on August 02, 2011 and by the members in
the Extra Ordinary General Mecting held on August 19, 2011,

On January 30, 2012, the Holding Company has appropriated 4,330 options of INR 10 cach to be granted to one cligible
employee at an exercise price of INR 232 each. These options have a vesting period of 4 years at one year interval in
following proportion:

Date of vesting % of total oplions vesting |
January 30,2012 10%
January 30, 2013 20% |
January 30, 2014 B 30%
January 30, 2015 405%% .




One97 Communications Limited
MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
(Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

On December 29, 2012, the Holding Company has appropriated 196,163 options of INR 10 each to be granted to
eligible employee at an exercise price of INR 180 each as approved by the Board of Directors in the meeting held on
Movember 29, 2012 and by the members in the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on December 29, 2012,

These options have a vesting period of 4 years at one year interval in following proportion:

Date of vesting % of total options vesting |
December 29, 2012 10%0 i
December 29, 2013 20%
December 29, 2014 0%

"December 29, 2015 40%

On August 01, 2013, the Holding Company has appropriated 166,668 options of INR 10 cach to be granted to eligible
emplovees at an exercise price of INR 180 each as approved by the Board of Directors in the meeting held on January
31, 2014, 30% of these options have a vesting period of 4 years at one year interval in following proportion:

Date of vesting % of total options vesting
August 1, 2014 1%
Aupgnst 1, 2015 20%
| August 1, 2016 0%
August 1,2017 40%

Remaining 70% of the options will be vested upon achievement of certain performance largets.

On Maich 31, 2014, the Holding Company increased the ESOP pool by adding 260,000 options taking total ESOP pool
to 1,318,762 as approved by the Board of Directors in the meeting held on January 31, 2014 and by the members in the
Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on August 31, 2014,

On April 01, 2014 the Holding Company has appropriated 313,446 options of INR 10 each to be granted to eligible
employees at an exercise price of INR 90 each as ratified by the Board of Directors in the meeting held on  June 10,
2015,

Date of vesting % of tolal options vesting
April 1, 2015 10%
April 1,2016 20%
Aprl 12017 30%
April 1,2018 40%

On April 01, 2015, the Holding Company has appropriated 491,722 options of INR 10 each to be granted to eligible
employees at an excrcise price of INR 90 each. These options have a vesting period of 4 years at one year interval in
following proportion;

[ Date of vesting % of total oplions vesting
April 1,2016 B 10%
April 1,2017 20% |
April 1,2018 30%
April 1,2019 40% .

On September 30, 2015, the Holding Company increased the ESOP pool by adding 604,858 options taking total ESOP

1 it
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pool to 1,923,620 as approved by the Board of Directors in the meeting held on July 24, 2015 and by the members in the
Annual General Meeting held on September 30, 2015.

On October 01, 2015 the Holding Company has appropriated 104,864 options of INR 10 each to be granted lo cligible

employces at an exercise price of INR 90 cach. These options have a vesting period of 4 years at one year interval in
following proportion:

Dale of vesling oz of total options vesting
October 1.2016 10%
 October 1,2017 20%
October 1,2018 30%
October 1,2019 40%

On April 01, 2016 the Holding Company has appropriated 391,018 options of INR 10 each 1o be granted to cligible
employees at an exercise price of INR 90 each. These options have a yesting period of 4 years al onc year interval in
following proporiion:

Date of vesting 9% of total oplions vesting
April 1,2017 10% |
April 1,2018 20%

April 1,2019 30%

April 1,2020 40%

On October 01, 2016 the Holding Company has appropriated 101,970 options of TNR. 10 each to be granted o eligible
employees al an exercise price of INR 90 each. These oplions have a vesting period of 4 years at onc year interval in
following proportion:

Date of vesting o of lotal options vesting —_l
October 1,2017 10%:

October 1,2018 20%
October 1,2019 0%

| October 1,2020 4%

On April 01, 2017 the Holding Company has appropriated 361,128 options of INR. 10 each to be granted to eligible
employees at an exercise price of [NR 90 cach. These options have a vesting period of 4 years al one year interval in
following proportion:

Date of vesting o4 of total options vesting _|_
April 1,2018 10%
April 1,2019 20%
April 1,2020 ) 30%
April 1,2021 40%

On October 01, 2017 the Holding Company has appropriated 29,044 options of TNR 10 each to be granted to eligible
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employees at an exercise price of INR 90 each. These options have a vesting period of 4 years at one year interval in

following proportion:

Date of vesting % of total options vesting
October 1,2018 10% i
Oclober 1,2019 20%

| October 1,2020 30% ]
October 1,2021 40%

The total options outstanding as at March 31, 2018 are 988,521 (March

and 825,907 (March 31, 2017: 853,398) options have an exercise price of INR 90 each.

Movements during the year

31, 2017: 1,139,075) out of which 19,785
(March 31, 2017: 56,053) options have an exercise price of INR 10 each, 5,016 (March 31, 2017: 6
an exercise price of INR 49 each, 137,813 (March 31, 2017: 161,008) option

The following table illustrates the number and weighted average exercise prices (WAEP) of, and movements

in, sharc options during the year

Mumber of Weiguled Number of Weigtaen
: Average ; Average
; pton Exercise Price Options Exercise Price
Particulars
INR INR
“March 31,2018 March 31,2017
Outstanding at the beginning of the year | 1,139,075 96.31 | 1,035.434 98.51
Options granied during the year 390,172 90.00 505,715 90.00 |
Options exercised during the year (226,034) 77.18 | (166412) 99.86
Options forfeited during the year (314,692) 8837 | (235.662) 90.52
Options outstanding at the end of the
year 988,521 100,74 | 1,139,075 96.31
Vesied options outstanding at the end of
the year (exercisable) 385,779 117.51 433,294 106.60

The weighted average remaining contractual life for the share options outstanding as at 31 March 2018 was

1.82 years (31 March 2017: 1.90 years).

The weighted average fair value of options granted during the year was INR 4,894,771 (March 31, 2017 was

INR 2,622 .92).

The weighted average fair value of options granted under the One 97 ESOP Scheme during the year ended on March 31,
2018 (computed using Black-Scholes model) was INR 4.894.71

estimation of fair value on date of grant was made using the Black-Scholes model with the following assnmptions:

N e

for grant date April 1, 2017 and October 1, 2017, The

%.616) options have
s have an exercise price of INR 180 each
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Grant Date:- April 1, 2017

Share price INR
4,959.04
Weighted average exercise price INR 90
Dividend yield %o %%
Expecied life (years) 4
Risk frec interest rale 6.63%
Anmualized Volalility 36.46%

Grant Date:- Oclober 1, 2017

Share price INR
495904
Weighted average exercise price INR 90
Dividend yield % 0%
Expected life (years) 4
Risk frec interest rate 6.48%
Annualized Volatility 54 87%

The weighted average fair value of options granted under the One 97 ESOP Scheme during the year ended on March 31,
2017 (computed vsing Black-Scholes model) was INR 2,204 97 for grant date April 1, 2016 and INR 4,277 81 for grant
date October 1, 2016. The estimation of fair value on date of grant was made using the Black-Scholes model with the
following assumptions:

Granl Date:- April 1, 2016

Share price INR
2,265.89
Weighted average exercise price INR 90
Dividend vield % 0%
Expected life (years) 4
Risk free inlerest rate 7.43%
Annualized Volatility 53.73%

Grant Date:- October 1, 2016

Share price B _ ~ INR
4,341.506
Weighled average exercise price INR 90
Dividend yield % 0%
Expected life (years) 4
Risk free interest rale 6.82%
Annualized Volatility 52.82%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
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Notes:

(i) Weighted average share price is based on the value of Common Equity Shares arrived at by using Back-solve
method

(i) Dividend yield is considered zero, as no dividend payoul is expected in the foreseeable future,

(iii) Risk free return is based on the yield to maturity of Indian treasury securities, with a maturity corresponding to the
expected term of ESOP.

(1v) Annualized volatility is based on the median weekly volatility of selected comparables companies for a time period
commensurale with the expected erm.

Lattle India Private Limited 2017 Plan (Little Plan)

MNumber of Weighted MNumber of Woighted
Options {Perage Options Lpeige
Particulars Exercise Price Exercise Price
INR INR
March 31,2018 March 31,2017

| Outstanding at the beginning of the yedr - 5 = =
Options granted during the year 1970619 - - o
 Options exercised during the year - - - -
Options forfeiled during the year E £ - 5
Options outstanding at the end of the
| year 1970619 =

The weighted average remaining contractual life for the share options outstanding as at 31 March 2018 was 4.14 years
(31 March 2017: Nil).

The weighted average fair value of options granted during the year was INR 161.84 (March 31, 2017 was INR Nil).

The expense recognised for employee services received during the year is shown in the following table:

 March31,2018  March 31,2017

Expense arising from equity-setiled share-based payment

transaclions 77.26 44.83

Expense arising from equity-setiled share-based payment

transactions (Little Plan) 6.53 = i
Total expense arising from share-based payment transactions 83.81 44 83
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26 Related party transactions

A Entitics over which Group exercise significant influence

Laginext Solutions Private Limited
Socomo Technologies Private Limited
Littke Intemel Smgapore Ple. Limiled
RO Private Limited

Indi Yuwva Lid.

Paytm Payments Bank Limited

Little Intemet Private Limited

B. Key Manapement Personnel

Vijay Shekhar Sharna Managing Director and Chairman
Madhur Deora Chief Financial Officer (from June 10, 2017 to tll date)
Amil Sinha Chief Financial Officer (from April 01, 2006 to October 21, 2016

and from March 20, 2017 to Tune 10,2017)
C. Entithes having significant infMuence over the Group
SATF I Mavritis Company Limited
SAIF Pariners India V Limited
SAIF Pariners India TV Limiled
SATF India ¥ Fil Holdings Limited
Alipay Sigapore E-Commence Private Limited
Adihaba.com Singapore E-Commerce Private Limited
Alipay Labs (Singapore) Ple Limited
SVF Indin Holdings (Cayman) Limited
D. Relatives of Individuals owning interest in the voting power of the Group that gives the control or significant influence
Ajay Shekhar Sharma Brother of Mr. Vijay Shekhar Sharma
E. Related parties as per Com panies Aci, 2013

Paytm E-commeree Private Limitod

(This space is intentionally left Bank)
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(Amounts in INR In croves, unless stherwise siated)

Dretails of transactions with related partica during the year sided March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017:-

Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Ing of services
Payim E-commerce Private Limited 1,630.42 2.56
Faytm Payments Bank Limited 90,86 -
Socomo Technologies Private Limited 0.15 0.24
| bur nl ol F 508
|Paytm Paymenis Bank Linited 117.75 =
Paytm E-commerce Private Limifed 121.21 4.58
en ol Flpnpce Tea
Paytm Paymenis Bank Limited 23.24 -
Eegﬂ:menl for Asseis glven on Finance 1ense
Payim Payments Bank Limited 21,66
In inco
Paytm Payments Bank Limired 578 -
Paytm E-commerce Private Limited 43.95 -
Lain on Sale of Wallet bnsiness
Paytm Paymenis Bank Limited 6200 -
Dl.het E:p_umu:n
Paytm E-commerce Private Linited 1.14 -
Fayim Pavinents Bank Limited 373.06 -
| Alipay Labs (Singapore) Ple Limited 24.11 1,52
¢ of Equity Shares
|5V India Holdings (Cayman) Limited 809 -
rit fum received
EVF India Holdings {Cayman) Limited 6,433.81
|Gal Sale n¥ n_Associa =5
Little Intemet Singapore Pre. Limited (net) .27 -
[Tk Yuva Limited 322
\Redemplion of Shares
Little Internet Singapore Pre. Limited 330 -
Inddi Yuva Limdted 2.87 -
E"ﬂmt I ﬁﬂE“'““"n
Paytm Fayments Rank Limited 110.%0 -
5 Glven durin Ear
Paytin Payments Bank Limited - 6269




Oned? Communications Limited
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Details of balances oulstamding with related partios as af March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017:-

Particulars : March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Other Recejvalbie for expenditure incurred
Alibaba.com Singapore E-Commerce Private Limited (.08 -
Paytm E-commerce Private Limited 157 87 4.62
Paytm Favments Bank Limited 6.97 -
Advance Rﬁ:cuveuh[q: in Casly
Payim Payments Bank Linled 125.44 G269
Paytm E-commerce Private Limited 23.55 -
-J'ngmnl Rm-h'a ble for sule of business
Payim E-commerce Private Limited A95.20 621,25
|Payim Payments Bank Limited 54.29 -
LA L] ecelval rom Fa 1 Cnteway
Payim Fayments Bank Limited 11557 0.72
‘rade eivables
Paytm E-commerce Private Limited 273.23 .94
(Paytm Payments Bank Limited 75.38 -
Ciher Financini Assels
Payim Payments Bank Timited 4.95 -
Trade v bles Iuding accrued expense
Alipay Labs {Singapore) Ple Limited 11.47 1.52
Payim E-commerce Private Limited .80
Paytm Payments Hank Limited 45,26 -
Cither pitvables
Socomo Technologies Privale Limited 0.0z 0.05
Paylin E-commerce Private Timiled 3204 203,29
Faytm Payments Hank Limited 248 -
Aulva omer
Socome Technologies Private Limited 0.0z (.03
Compensation of key management personnel and their relatives
Particulurs March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Salaries, bonus and incentives 5.63 5.86
ESOF Expenses 1240 9.17
Totnl compensation paid 15.23 15.03

Terms and conditions of transaetions with related parties

(i) The services provided and received from refated partics are made on ferms equivalenl 1o those that prevail in arm's Jength tranzactions,

Outstanding balances af the year-ond are unsecured and inferest free and seflement ocours in cash,

received for any related party receivables or payables.

There have been no guaraniees provided or

(£} The remuneration to the key managerial persosne] (*KMP') does not includs the provizions: made for gratuity, leave benelits as they are

determined on an actuarial basis for the Company as a whole,
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Consolidated Finsndal Stat
Thie ¥ Communbcations 1Limked
Motes to the Consalidated Financial $Statemenis for ihe wear ended March 31, 2008

{Amsumis in [M1 n ereres, unbess otherwise stated)

4. Iheanae Tax

The majer componends of Inceme lax expeanse ar the years erded March 21, 2008 and March 31, 2017 are:

Consclidated stateitent of profit s boss

Profitor loss soclion

March 31, 2008 | March 31, 2017
|Curserd Encogine tax
Cureend ieoe b chisge A Lol
Adiistmenss in sespect of et income i of provios year (LAa1} 217
Defersd pax ) TR
Freduting to origina tion and reversil of gy d ferenses {0.25) T
Inorams tax expense ropreried m the slatenment of profit o loss 1.53 148

Reconcilintion of tax expense and the accounding profit multiplied by India's Somestic tax rig for March 3L, 2008 and Mareh 31, 2007,

March 33, 2008 [ Mareh 31, 2007 |

Accounting profit belore nceme dax including discontinued operations {1,603 54 HeT 1%
Al Ioelin’s stuluory inconee las vl of 30.00% (31 Muorch 2007 30 ki (445, 28] {274.23)
Afjustimerds in respoet of current iscoe lax ol previons yours (101} 2407

\%I_m of results of associates 1,58 B9
ax in fﬂ!ﬂ' juridiclion k] 048]

2ffeat of tax, Fee rales i Toreign jandiction (0,37} (284}
Obier nem-deductibde expenses Al {005}
Lusses on wlhich deferred jaxes ol recognised 43358 2E5.04

|llser temporary & fferences on wiich deferred texes utlised X

Other tetigionary differences an which deleried taes not recopnised 50.37 5.0
1,53 4%
Encaits lin sxpense teparted in the staloiwent of profii asd loss 1.5% TAE

Deferred tax relates to the folowinp:

Consolidated statement of profit and |

- Consalidated Balarce Sheet I

March 31, J1% Mardh 31, 3017]  March 31, 18] March 31, 2017]
|Aceelernbed degreciation for tax purposes {2247} (LAY 2245 0.13
|Empboyee benefits - . . "
Benl equalisation reserve - - - -
Prowigion for doukiil delds .42 {24 (0 1B} [20
Unrenlised foreign exchunge gainflees 08 1.64 1.E6 [1.54)
Logses nvailable fo affestting agsnsd folure taxable inceome Q.1 036 0,25 {0.38)
Dreferved fax expensefincome) 4.38 {0.97 |
MNet deferred fax nssetwiiiabilities) (2LAT) 52

Beconcilintlon of deferred tax labilitles {med)

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

|Openang balusnice s of 1 Apnl 2.52 1.55
| Tk inooaneexpense) doring tho petpod recognised i profif or loss [FE] i3
Impact of Foreipn curtency tmnslation reserves (.15} (0,33}
Delemred txes acquired in b combsnntions. {24.40) -

|Cloating balnnce ns 2t 31 Marck {1187 152

* Deferred tux nol recopmsed sance 0 is pol probebile that mxshle prafits walt be available against which the unutilsed tax losses and femporay &fforences oan be
ulilised, 38 assessed at Mareh 31,2018

Espiry dates of unused tax bosses
Aval
Vear ending March 31, March 31,2018
FIiFE] LR
2024 1,404 30
2025 7
26 118815
153201
Unlismited period for umbsorled Deprecistion 163,00
Explry datos of unused fax bovses
Az ol
Year ending Mareh 31, hfarch 31,2017
23 331.61 |
074 1,454,320
2025 B
1,627.68

Unlicmited peried for unabanrbed Depreviation ah.42




Oned? Communications Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements Tor the year ended March 31, 2008
(Amounts in INR in crores, unless otherwise stated)

29. Commitments and contingencies

4. Leases

Operating lease: Company as Lessee

The Company has taken certain office space on operating lease. Rental expense towards leases charged to statement of profit
and lass for the year ended March 31, 2018 amount to INR 16.12 (March 31, 2017 INR 12.81).

Future minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

[Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Mot later than one vear 1041 .54
Later than one year but not later than five years 18.71 0.l
Later than five years 1.32 -

b. Capital commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for is INR 3.59 (Net of capital
advance of INR 0.29) (March 31 2017: INR 39 93 {Net of capital advances of INR 0,37),

e Contingent liabilities

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Claims against the Company not acknowledged 2.70 1.59
as debils
Total 2.70 1.59

Claims against the company not acknowledged us debrs represents certain elaims which the company considers 1o be
frivalous.

The Company has contingent Liability towards Bank Guarantees provided of INR 241.93 (March 31, 2017 INR 92.92).



One®? Communications Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
{Amounts in INR in crores, unless otherwise stated)

30. Details of dues to Micro and Small Enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006

March 31 2018 March 31 2017

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any
supplier es at the end of each accounting year

Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises 0,74 -
Interest due on above 0.14 -
.88 -

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the
MSEMED Act 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to the
supphier beyond the appeinted day during each accounting year - -

The ameunt of interest due and payable for the period of delay m making
paymeni (which have been paid bul beyond the appointed day during the
year) bul withoul adding the interest specilied under the MSMED Act 2006,

The amount of interest acerued and remaining unpaid at the end of each
accounting year

.14 -
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even i the
succeeding years, unlil such date when the interest dues as above are
actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a
deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006 z a
0.14 -




Chne ™7 Communications Linited
Motes 1o the Consalidated Fluancial Statements for ihe yeur ended March 31, 2018
{Amaonnts in INH Crores, unlbess stherwise sluded)

3. Fair value

The monagensent has assessed that fair vabue of all financo) assets and Lukilities including cash and cash equivalents, tade receivables, security deposits, other
finmneinl assets, investments. irade payables, borrowings and sther finarcial ahilitics, approximate theit carrying nmours

Fair valuo hierarchy

The following table provides the fair value mensurement heerarchy of the Compnny's assets and linbilites:

Level 1 - Cucted prices (unndjusted) in nctive matkets For wentical asssls or lighilities.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices inelided within Level | that ase observable for the aseet or linbility, cither directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly
{Le. derived Fom prices).

Level 3 - Inputs for the assets o labilities thut are not based on chserviible ritiricel dta {unohservable inguls),

The following 1ble presents fuir vahse hies urhiy of assets nnd Hobilities measured a1 fair value on g recurring busis as of March 31, 2018

Falr value measurement ot end of the reporiing yeur Using

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assels
Dvestments at Fair value dsraogh OCE - B4
Invesiments at fis value throsgh Profit and loss 370810 - 107
The fallowing table presents fuir value hiesarchy of nssets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring bosis s of March 31, 2017

Fair value measurensent at end of the reporting year Using

Level 1 Level 2 Lawel 3
Assels
Irveatments a1 fair value trougl 00 . - .71
Investments at fir vilue throvgh Prafit and loss 290115 - 59,92

(This space is intenionaetly lefl blank)




Oned7 Communications Limited
Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2018
{Amounis in INR in Crores, unless otherwise stated)

32 Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s activities expose il to a variety of financial risks, including market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Group continues to focus on a system-based approach to business risk management. The Group’s financial risk
management process secks 1o enable the carly identification, evaluation and effective management of key risks facing
the business. Backed by strong intemal control systems, the current Risk Management Framework rests on policies and
procedures issued by appropriate authorities; process of regular reviews/audits to set appropriate risk limits and controls;
monitoring of such risks and compliance confirmation for the same,

a. Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market prices. Markel prices comprise three types of risk: interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and price risk. The
Group has in place appropriate risk management policies to limit the impact of these risks on its financial performance.
The Group ensures optimization of cash through fund planning and robust cash management practices.

(i) Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk refers to the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rales,

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s borrowings with
floating interest rates.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity 1o a reasonably possible change in interest rates, being a 0.5% increase
or decrease in interest rate, with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s loss before tax due to the impact on
floating rate borrowings.

As at March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Effect on loss before tax:

I-Base*- decrease by 50 bps (1.21) (0.45)

1-Base*- increase by 50 bps 121 0.45
*ICICI Bank Base

Other financial assets and liabilities of the Group are either non-interest bearing or fixed interest bearing instruments,
the Group’s net exposure lo interest risk on such instruments is negligible.

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a reasonably possible change in the under-lying interest rate of the Group”s
borrowings while assuming all other variables to be constant.

Based on the movements in the interest rates historically and the prevailing market conditions as at the reporting date,
the Group’s management has concluded that the above mentioned rates used for sensitivity are reasonable benchmarks.



One?7 Communications Limited
Mates to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2018
(Amounts in INR in Crores, unless otherwise stated)

(i) Price risk

The Group invests its surplus funds in various debt instruments and debt mutual funds, These comprise of mainly ligud
schemes of mutual funds (liquid investments) and fixed deposits, All debt mutual fund investments are in AAA rated
government bonds and treasury bills.

Mutual fund investments are susceptible to market price risk, mainly arising from changes in the interest rates or market
yvields which may impact the return and value of such investments.
Set out below is the impact of a 0.25% movement in the NAV of mutual funds on the Group's loss before tax:

Chanpe in NAV Effect on loss before tax
March 31, 2018 0.25% (9.27)
-0.25% 927
March 31, 2017 0.25% (0.73)
0.25% 0.73

(iii) Foreign currency risk

The Indian Rupee is the Group’s most significant currency. As a consequence, the Group’s resulis are presented in
Indian Rupee and exposures are managed against Indian Rupee accordingly. Foreign currency risk is the risk that the
fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates, The Group’s
exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Group’s operating activities (when
revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign currency).

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities denominated in different currencies are as follows:

March 31,2018 March 31,2017

Financial assets Financial liabilitics Financial asscts Financial liabilities

Amount in USD Crores .10 0.23 0.07 0.76

Total 0.10 0.23 0.07 0.76

The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD and exchange rates, with all
other variables held constant. The Group’s exposure to foreign currency changes for all other currencies is not material.

Change in USD rate Effect on loss before tax
March 31, 2018 10% strengthening of USD against INR 0.88
10% weakening of USD against INR (0.72)
March 31, 2017 10% strengthening of USD against INR 5.00
10% weakening of USD against INR (4.09)
M,

\



Oned7 Communications Limited
Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2018
{Amounts in INK in Crores, unless otherwise stated)

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a reasonably possible change in the under-lyving foreign currency against the
functional currency while assuming all other variables to be constant.

Based on the movements in the foreign exchange rates historically and the prevailing market conditions as at the
reporting date, the Group’s management has concluded that the above mentioned rates used for sensitivily are
reasonable benchmarks.

b. Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or contract, leading to a
financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its
financing activitics, including deposits with banks. Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure Lo credit
risk is monitored on an ongoing basis.

(i) Trade receivables

The Group is exposed to credit risk in the event of non-payment by customers. Customer credit risk is managed subject
fo the Group’s established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credil risk management. An impairment
analysis is performed at each reporting date by grouping the receivables in homogencous group. The calculation is based
on lifetime expected credit losses, Trade receivables disclosed above include amounts (sce below for aged analysis)
which are past due at the reporting date but against which the Group has not recognised an allowance for doubtful
receivables because the amounts are still considered recoverable.

Ageing of past due but not impaired receivables is as follows:

As at March 31,2018 March 31,2017
(0 1o 90 days 186.25 35.19

91 to 180 days 56.21 14.70

181 to 270 days 591 6,18

271 to 365 days 12.66 2.04
Total 261.03 58.11

The maximum cxposure to credit risk at the reporting dale is the carrying value of each class of financial assets. The
Group does not hold collateral as security.

At March 31, 2018 the Group had 5 customers (March 31, 2017: § customers) that owed the Group more than INR
414.23 (March 31,2017: INR 61.30) and accounted for approximately 73 % (March 31, 2017 : 63%) of all the
receivables outstanding,

(ii) Other financial assets

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Group’s treasury department in
accordance with the Group’s policy. Investment of surplus funds is made only with banks of high repute.

hY



One97 Communications Limited
Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
(Amounts in INR in Crores, unless otherwise stated)

The Group’s maximum exposure 1o credit risk for the components of the balance sheet at March 31, 2018 and March 31
2017 is the carrying amounts as illustrated in Note 6.

¢, Liquidity Risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank
overdrafts, working capital loans ctc. Group monitor their risk of shortage of funds using cash flow forecasting models.
These models consider the maturity of their financial investments, committed funding and projecied cash flows from
operations.

The Group's objective 15 to provide financial resources to meet its business objectives in a timely, cost effective and
reliable manner. A balance between continuity of funding and flexibility 1s maintained through the uvse of bank
borrowings. The Group also monitors compliance with its debt covenants, The maturity profile of the Group's financial
liabilitics based on contractual undiscounted payments is given in {he table below:

Particulars Less than 180 days
As at March 31, 2018
Borrowings 24212
Trade payables 462.68
Other financial liabilitics 235 80
_Total 940.60
As at March 31,2017
Borrowings 90.28
Trade payables 229.76
Other financial liabilities 1,147.57
Total 1,467.61

There are no financial liabilities with contractual payments beyond 180 days.

33 Discontinued Operations

() On July 29, 2016, the Board of Directors approved the transfer of wallet business on a going concern basis by way of
slump sale, to a newly incorporated entity i.e. Paylm Payments Bank Limited subject to certain approvals. On January 3,
2017, RBI has granted banking licence to Paytm Payments Bank Limited to carry on payments hank business in India
subject to certain terms and conditions. In the month of May, 2017, Paytm Payments Bank Limited has received the
requisite approvals in respect of cerlain lerms as mentioned in RBL letter dated January 3, 2017, Accordingly, the
Company has ransferred its wallel business on May 23, 2017 to Paytm Payments Bank Limited on a going concermn
basis for a consideration of INR 65.00 (present value of which.is INR 63.10). The Company has recognised a gain of

[NR 62.99 which has been shown as exceptional gain in the statement of Profit & loss.



One97 Communications Limited
Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
(Amounts in INR in Crores, unless otherwise stated)

The results of Wallet business for the year are presented below:

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Revenue 30,39 48.00
Expenses 35.64 98.98
Loss for the year from a discontinued operations (5.25) (50.98)

The nel cash flows incurred by Wallet business are as follows:-

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Operating (5.25) (50.9%)
Investing . -
Financing 5 r
Net cash inflow/(outflow) (5.25) (50.98)

(b) During previous vear, the Company had discontinued its Marketplace business. Revenue, cost, and loss of the
Marketplace business for the year ended March 31, 2017 are INR 345,93, INR 574.86 and INR 228,93 respectively. The
business of Marketplace represented Company’s operating segment until March 27, 2017, being the dale on which
transfer of Marketplace segment was consummated. Being a discontinued operation, this segment is no longer presented
in segment reporling nole,

34.Capital Management

The Group’s objectives while managing capital arc (o safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to provide
adequate retumns for its shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders. The key objective of the Gmup’ls capital
management is to ensure that it maintains a stable capital structure with the focus on total equity, uphold umnvestor,
creditor and customer confidence, and ensure future development of its business activities. The Group manages ils
capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions or its business requirements.

The Group's capital management objective is o remain a debt-free Group till the time it achieves break-even, In order to
meel this objective, Group meets anticipated funding requirements for developing new businesses, expanding its
geographical base, entering in to strategic mergers and acquisitions and other strategic investments, by issuance of
equily capital together with cash generated from Group’s operating and investing activities. The Group utilizes certain
short term overdraft and working capital facilities to meet anticipated interim working capital requirements,

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31,
2018 and March 31, 2017.



Oned7 Communications Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the yearended March 31, 2018
{Amounts in INR in Crores, unless otherwise stated)

35. Segment Reporting

The Board of Directors (chicef operating decision maker or CODM) monitor the operating results of the business
scgments scparately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment,
Segment’s performance is evaluated based on segment revenue and segment result viz. profit or loss before tax from
continuing operations.

During the current year, the Group had changed the structure of its internal organization in a manner that causes the
composition of its reportable segment to change. the corresponding items of segment information for previous year has
been accordingly restated.

For management purposes. the Group is organized into business segments based on its services and has four reportable
segments, as follows:

- Payments: Includes the services provided by acting as a pavment facilitator to third party merchants and money
transfer facilitator to consumers.

- Commerce: Includes acting as an aggregator for digital product like movie, deal, online travel aggregator and
provision of services like advertisement, brand promotion and technical suppart,

= Cloud: Includes provision of services to client for their various business needs like hosting services. marketing
SErvices,

= Others: Includes other businesses of the Group like wealth management services,

No operating segments have been aggregated to form the above reportable segments,

The business of Wallet is included in the ‘Payments” segment in Group’s operating segments until May 23, 2017, being
the date on which transfer of Wallet business was consummated. Being a discontinued operation, this business is no
longer presented within the Payments scgment.

The business of Marketplace represents Group’s operating segment until March 31, 2017, being the date on which
transfer of Marketplace was consummated. Being a discontinued operation, this segment is no longer presented in
segment reporting note,

Segment assets comprise asscts directly managed by each scgment, and primarily include receivables, property, plant
and equipment, Capital work-in-progress, intangibles assets, intangible assets under development, Segment liabilities
primarily include operating liabilitics, Segment capital expenditure comprises additions to property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets.

The Group has revenues primarily from customers inside India Substantially all of the Group’s non-current operating
assets are inside India.

Revenue from two customers amounted to INR 578,35 (March 31, 2017: Nil), arising from sale of services in the
Payments segment,

Revenue from two customers amounted to INR 1,516.03 (March 31, 2017 Nil), arising from sale of services in the
Commerce segment,

Revenue from three customers amounted to INR 168,84 (March 31, 2017: Four customer amounting to INR 203.74),
arising from sale of services in the Mobile Value Added Services segment.




Oned7 Communications Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
(Amounts in INR in Crores, unless otherwise stated)

Adjustments and eliminations

(1) Other income including fair value gains and losses on financial assets and finance costs are not allocated to
individual segments as the underlying instruments are managed on the Group level,

(1) Current taxes, deferred taxes and certain financial assets and liabilities are not allocated to those segments as they
are also managed on the Group level.

(i) Capital expenditure consists of additions of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets but excluding
capital work-in-progress and intangible assets under development,

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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Cne®? Communications Limited

Motes to the Consolidated Financlal Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2018

(Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

36, Additional information

Nel Assels, L., total assets S| i ——
Name of the entity minun tedal Habibifies e 5
As % of As % of
consolidated A mound consolidated Amount
nel assets profit or loss
Lmel7 Communications Limited 98.05 %5 7,470,099 92,23 95 (1,481.28)
Subsidiaries
Indian
Cine®T Communications India Limited 0.52 % 39.72 (03 %4 {0.47)
Paytm Financinl Services Limited [L03 % 212 (0.01)% .12
Payim Entertainmont Limiled 0.00 % 0.01 0.00 % {003
Paylm Moncy Limited 0.06 % 4.90 0.32 % (5.10)
Waateland Entertninment Private Limited {0,061 {4.28) 0.27 % (4.28)
Utja Money Private Limited {0.02)% (1.36) 0.08 % (1.36)
Mobiguest Mabile Technologics Private Limited (000 3% {0.99) {10 5 {050
Litile Internel Private Limited {0.16Y% 1217y 1.15 % (1840
Foreign
One27 Communications Singapore Private Limited 0.11% {5.07) 2.21 % {315.55)
CnieST Communications FZ-1LC (.06 ) (4.64) (.78 % {12.46)
OneBT Communications Migeria Limited (8% (5.83) .40 %) (6.38)
Onet7 USA Ine, 005 344 (0,00 0.0
Mon Contraliing infereats in subsidinries 1.78 % 135.47 0.53 % (14.88)
Interest in Associate
Indian
Paylm Poyments Rank Limited 1.42 %) {2276)
Loginext Solutions Privale Limited 0,14 % (2.22)
Socomo Technolopies Private Limited (0. 161% 2.54
Indi Yuwvn Limited (0.00)% .03
CuorL Private Limited 0.0 %% -
Foreign
Little Internel Singapore Ple, Limifed 0.17% {2.70)
100.00% 7,614,31 100.00% {L,606.05)

(Thiz sparce ix intentionally leff blank)




OneT Communications Limited
Motes ta the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
(Amounts in INR in Crores, unless otherwise stated)

37. Business combinations:

a) Acquisition of 63% interest in Little Internet Private Limited

Consequent Lo framework agreement entered on November 30, 2017 hetween the Holding company, Little
Internet Private Limited (‘LI"), shareholders of LI, Nearbuy India Private Limited (‘NBI'), and sharcholders of
NB, the shareholders of NBI swapped their shares in NBI with shares in L1, resulting in their becoming 37%
sharcholders of L1 and NBI becoming whally owned subsidiary of LI, The Holding company through further
restructuring of its existing investments in LI (5%) and Little Singapore Pte Limited (‘LS") (27%), as well as
through its obligation fo issue further shares amounting to INR 173 63 to other shareholders of LI, became 63%
sharcholder in L1. The restructuring of existing investment in LI and LS, as discussed above, resulted in LS
buying back 27% stake of the Holding company in LS for INR 77.40 and the 1 Iolding company further mfusing
INR 83,53 in L1,

With the above, the Group has enhanced the reach of its payment business segment. The acquisition was
accounted for i the books, using the acquisition method and accordingly, all the assets and liabilities were
mcasured at their preliminary fair values as on the acquisition date and the purchase consideration has been
allocated 1o the net assets,

The following table summarizes the fair value of the consideration paid, the amount at which assels acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised and non-controlling interest in L1 as of the date of acquisition, i.e.
December 06, 2017 The acquisition was recorded on the basis of assets and liabilities as at November 30, 2017
for convenience purposes as the transactions between November 30, 2017 and December 6, 2017 were not
malerial.

As of December
6, 2017
Assels acquired
| Property, planl and equipment 5.82
Goodwill 241.22
Intangible assels
Brand 3988
Cuslomer relationship 229
MNon-compele 2.5
Other intangible assets 2.38
| Intangible assets under development 0.43
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 85.06
Trade receivables 1.43
Loans 1.49
Others - 32.69
Other assets ) 6.24
Liabilities assumed
Borrowings (6.14)
Financial habilities
Trade payables {22.04%
Others (15.52)
Other liabilities (27.69)
Net identifiable assets (A) 370.47
Goodwill arising on Acquisition (B) 40.65
Non-controlling Interest (C) 135.81
Purchase Consideration (A+B-() 272,31

C -
LN\



One97 Communications Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financinl Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

{Amounts in INR in Croves, unless otherwise stated)

il

Vi,

Vi,

No contingent liabilities were transferred to the Group as part of acquisition of L1

The goodwill recognised in the transaclion consists largely of the synergies expected {rom the combined
operation of the Group and LI and certan intangible assets such as assembled work force which have not been
recognised separately as it do not meet the eritena for recopnition as intangible assets under IAS 38 “Intangible
Assets”, None of the goodwill recognised is deduetible for Income tax purposes.

From the date of acquisition, LI has contributed INR 8.60 of revenue and INR 29.42 1o the Joss after tax, If the

business combination had taken at the beginning for the year ended March 31, 2018, revenue from LI
operations would have been INR 39.74 and the loss after tax from L1 operations would have been INR 66 82

The details of receivables acquired through business combination are as follows:

As of December 6, 2017 Fair value Gross contractual Best estimate of amount not
amount of receivable expected to be collected
“Trade receivables 143 1.43 -

Purchase Consideration:

Cash paid 83.53
Obligation to issue shares fixed number of shares 173.63
Fair value of existing mvestment in associales 15.15
Total purchase consideration 27231

Analysis of cash flows on acquisition:

Cash consideration paid -
Net cash acquired with the subsidiary 1.53
Net cash outflow in respect of business combination (included in cash flows from investing {1.53)
activities)

b) Acquisition of 54% interest in Urja Money Private Limited

ii.

The Holding company entered into & share subseription agreement with Urja Money Private Limited to acquire
(by infusion of funds) 54% equity interest in Urja Money Private Limited ("Una’) as on September 26, 2017 for
INR 6. The transaction was consummated on October 16, 2017. With this acquisition, the Group will use Urja’s
technology to create a loan managemenl system mn collaboration with lending pariners. The acquisition was
accounted for in the books, using the acquisition method and accordingly, all the assets and liabilities were
measurcd at their preliminary fair values as on the acquisition date and the purchase consideration has been
allocated o the net assets,

The following table summarizes the fair value of the consideration paid, the amount at which assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised and non-controlling interest in Urja as of the date of acquisition, 1.e.
October 16, 2017. The acquisition was recorded on the basis of assels and liabilitics as at October 31, 2017 for
convenience purposes as the transactions between October 16, 2017 and October 31;2131 7 were not material,

%



Oned? Communications Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2008
(Amounis in INR in Crores, unless otherwise stated)

iii.

v,

As of October 16, 2017

Assets acquired
Froperty, plant and equipment 0.02
Other intangible assets 0.02
Intangible assets under development 0.80
Financial assets
| Cash and cash equivalents 4.54
Irade receivables 0.07
Loans 2.13
Others 0.04

Liabilities assumed

Borrowings (2.20) |
Financial Labilities

Trade payables (0.08)

Others (0.19)
Uther current liabilities (0.12)
Net identifiable assets (A) 503
LGoodwill arising on Acquisition (B) 3.30
Non-controlling Interest (C) 2.33
Purchase Consideration (A+B-C) 6.0

No significant receivables have been acquired as part of acquisition of Urja. No contingent liabilities were
transferred to the Group as part of acquisition of Urja.

The goodwill recognised in the transaction consists largely of the synergies expected from the combined
operation of the Group and Urja and certain intangible assets such as assembled work force and customer lists
which have not been recognised separately as these do not meet the criteria for recognition as intangible assets
under [AS 38 “Intangible Assets”, None of the goodwill recognised is deductible for Income tax purposes.

From the date of acquisition, Urja has contributed INR 0.04 of revenue and INR 2.54 to the loss after tax. If the
business combination had taken place at the beginning of the year ended March 31, 2018, revenue from Urja
operations would have been INR 0.29 and the loss after tax from Urja operations would have been INR 4,25,

Analysis of cash flows on acquisition:

Cash consideration paid -

[ Net cash acquired with the subsidiary 0.54
Net cash inflow in respect of business combination (included in cash flows from investing (0.54)
activities)

N\



One?? Communications Limited
Motes to the Consolidated Financial Staternents for the vear ended Murch 31, 2008
(Amounts in INR in Crores, unless otherwise stafed)

) Acquisition of 54% interest in Mobiquest Mobile Technologies Private Limited

A

i

The Holding company acquired 16.99% voting interest in Mobiquest Mobile Technologies Private Limited
(Mobiquest) by investing INR 2.16 on June 28, 2017,

The Group made further investment of INR 8.05 (including INR 4.48 by subscribing to fresh equity shares)
resulting in Group’s holding of 54% in Mobiquest. The transaction got consummated on August 10, 2017. With
this acquisition, the Group has enhanced the reach of its payments business segment towards usage for loyalty
points and data analytics.

The acquisition was accounted for in the books, using the acquisition method and accordingly, all the assets and
liabilities were measured at their preliminary fair values as on the acquisition date and the purchase
consideration has been allocated to the net assets, The acquisition was recorded on the basis of assets and
ligbalities as at July 31, 2017 for convenience puposes as the transactions between July 31, 2017 and
August 10, 2017 were not material.

The following table summarizes the fair value of the consideration peid, the amount al which assets acquired
and the labilities assumed are recognised and non-controlling interest in Mobiquest as of the date of
acquisition, i.e. August 10, 2017,

As of August 10, 2017

Assels acquired

Property, plant and equipment .12
Goodwill -
Intangible assets
Brand 1.13
Customer relationship 221
Non-compete right (.37
Other intangibles 011
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5.33
Trade receivables 306
Others 1.03
Other current assets 077

Liabilities assumed

Deferred tax liability (net) ) (1.26)
Financial liabilitics

Trade payables (489

Others (1.70)
Other current liabilities (0.14)
Met identifiable assets (A) 6.14
Goodwill arising on Acquisition (B) 6.84
Non-controlling Interest (C) &7
Purchase Consideration (A+B-C) 10.21

No contingent Habilities were transferred to the Group as part of acquisition of Mobiquest.



Oned7 Communications Limited
Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
(Amounts in INR in Crores, unless otherwise stated)

The goodwill recognised in the transaction consists largely of the synergies expected from the combined
operation of the Group and Mobiguest and certain intangible assets such as assembled work force and customer
lists which have not been recognised separately as these do not meet the eriteria for recognition as intangible
assets under IAS 38 “Intangible Assets”. None of the goodwill recognised is deductible for Income tax

purposes

iit.  From the date of acquisition, Mobiquest has contributed INR 3.58 of revenue and INR 1.80 to the loss after tax.

iv.  The details of receivables acquired through business combination are as follows:

As of August 10, 2017 Fair value Gross contraciual Best estimate of amount
amount of not expected to be
receivable collected

Trade receivables 3.06 4.47 1.41

v.  Analysis of cash flows on acquisition:

Cash consideration paid ; 573
Met cash acquired with the subsidiary (.83
MNet cash outflow in respect of business combination (included in cash flows from 4.90
investing activilies)

d) Acquisition of 70% interest in Wasteland Entertainment Private Limited

i The Holding company entered into a share subscription agreement with Wasteland Entertainment Private
Limited to acquire (by infusion of funds) 70% equity interest in Wasteland Entertainment Private Limited
(*Wasteland') as on June 14, 2017 for INR 35. The transaction was consummated on July 06, 2017, With this
acquisition, the Group enhanced the reach of its payments business segment towards usage for events and
related activitics. The acquisition was accounted for in the books, using the acquisition method and accordingly,
all the assets and liabilities were measured at their preliminary fair values as on the acquisition date and the

purchase consideration has been allocated to the net assets.

The acquisition was recorded on the basis of assets and liabilities as at Junc 30, 2017 for convenience purposes

as the transactions between June 30, 2017 and July 6, 2017 were not material,

ii. The following table summarizes the fair value of the consideration paid, the amount at which assels acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recopnised and non-controlling interest in Wasteland as of the date of

acquisition, e July 06, 2017,

As determined as of
July 06, 2017

Assels acquired
Property, plant and equipment 0.06
Intangible assets

Brand 2.39

Mon-compete right 1.02

Other intanpibles 152




.
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2008
{Amounts in INR in Crores, unless otherwise stated)

As determined as of
July @16, 2017

Financial assels

Cash and cash equivalenis .00

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 35.02

Oihers 0,05
Liabilities assumed
Deferred tax liability (net) (1.16)
Financial lisbilities

Trade payables (0.03)

Others R (17.62).
Other current liabilities (0.02)
Met identifiable assets (A) 21.24
Goodwill arising on Acquisition (B) 20.19

 Non-controlling Interest (C) 6.44

Purchase Consideration (A+B-C) 35.00

No significant receivables were acquired as part of acquisition of Wasteland. No contingent liabilities were

transferred 1o the Group as part of acquisition of Wasteland,

The goodwill recogmsed in the transaction consists largely of the synergies expected from the combined
aperation of the Group and Wasteland and certain intangible assets such as assembled work [oree and customer
lists which have nol been recognised separately as these do not meet the criteria for recognition as mtangible
assets under 1AS 38 “Intangible Assets”. None of the goodwill recognised is deductible for Income lax

purposes,

From the date of acquisition, Wasteland has contributed INR 8.10 of revenue and INR 6.14 to the loss after tax.
If the business combination had taken place at the beginning of the year ended March 31, 2018, revenue from
Wasteland operations would have been INR 9.40 and the loss after tax from Wasteland operations would have

been INR 6,20,

Analysis of cash flows on acquisition:

Cash consideration paid

Net cash acquired with the subsidiary

0,03

activities)

Met eash outflow in respect of business combmation (included m cash flows from investing

(0.03)

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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38. Impairment review of goodwill

The group during the year has acquired entities (Refer Note 32) for enhancing its payment service business. The
proup monitors the business of the respective acquisitions independently and thus considers cach acquisition as a
separate Cash Generatng Unit (*CGL™L

RS rticulars 0 0| AsatMarch 31,2018
Llll]r.: Internet Prwam Limited (LHﬂL—]I 281.87
Wasteland Entertainment Private Limited (Wasteland) 20,19
Mobiguest Mobile Solutions Pvi. Limited (Mobiquest) 6,80
Urju Mnm.y l’rwale leﬂed {U 'a} ; = ” 335

The Group reviews the goodwill for any impairment at the CGU level. The recoverable amount of the above CGUs
are based on value-in-use, which is determined based on five year business plans that have been approved by the
management for inlemal purposes. The said planning horizon of five years reflects the assumptions for short 1o
medium-term market developments. The cash flows beyond the planning period are extrapolated using appropriate
terminal growth rates. The terminal growth rates used do not exceed the long term average growth rates of the
respective industry and country in which the entity operates and are consistent with the internal/external sources of
information.

The key assumptions used in value-in-use calculations are as follows:

e Harnings before interest and taxes margins (‘EBIT)
¢ Discount rate
s  Growth rates

EBIT margins: The margins have been estimated based on past experience after considering incremental revenue
arising out of increase in payment business from the existing and new customers, Marging will be positively
impacted from the efficiencies and initiatives driven by the Company; whereas, factors like increased cost of
operations may impact the margins negatively,

Discount rate: Discount rate reflects the current markel assessment of the risks specific to the CGU estimated based
on the weighted average cost of capital, Pre-lax discount rale used ranged from 17.50% to 20.00%% for the year ended
March 31, 2018 which is consistent with companies in similar business.

Growth rates: The terminal growth rates used are in line with the long-term average growth rates of the respective
industry in which the entity operates and are consistent with the internal/external sources of information. The
terminal growth rates used in extrapolating cash flows beyond the planning period was 5.5% for one of the CGU and
revenue multiple ranging from 2 to 3.5 for the terminal year for other CGUs.

Sensitivity analysis — For the significant acquisitions the recoverable amount exceed the carrying amount in the
range of 20% to 26% and no reasonable possible change in the discount rate and terminal growth rate beyond the
planning horizon would cause the earrying amount to exceed the recoverable amount,

(This space is intentionally lefi blank}
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39. Events after the reporting period

The Holding Company, subsequent to March 31, 2018, entered into an agreement to sell ils online gaming/eontests
business to Acumen Game Entertainment Private Limited on slump sale basis; as a going concern, for an agreed
consideration of USD 5 million. Acumen Game Entertainment Private Limited is an Indian Company with 35%
shares held by Payim Enterfainment Limited and 45% shares held by AGTech Media Holdings Limited. The
transaction of transfer of business was yet to be consummuated (il the date of adoption of these Nnancial statements

by the Board of Directors
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